
October
1 Special Meeting with EDAC--5:30 pm 

2 Evans Redevelopment Agency Meeting--Immediately after
Council

Worksession/City Council

4  CML District 4 Meeting--Loveland-4 pm

19 CML Policy Group Meeting-CML Offices

23 Worksession/City Council

30 Town  County Dinner-Island Grove Event Center-6 pm

November
6 Worksession/City Council

12 City Offices Closed-Veterans Day Holiday

20 Worksession/City Council

22 City Offices Closed--Thanksgiving Holiday

23 City Offices Closed-Thanksgiving Holiday

December
4 Worksession/City Council

18 Worksession/City Council

September 2012 - August  2013

Yearly Planner

Sep 2012
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

Oct 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

Nov 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

Dec 2012
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Jan 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

Feb 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28

Mar 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

Apr 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

May 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

Jun 2013
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

Jul 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

Aug 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31



 

 

City Manager    
Monitoring Report 

October 2, 2012 
 

Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new or have changed since the 
last City Council meeting. 
 

• IT 
The IT strategic plan process was kicked off on September 26th and will start with the 
phase 1 compatibility review for the Police Department. This phase is set to be completed 
by October 9th, at which time the RFP evaluation team will evaluate the results and 
determine whether to continue the project with the current vendor.  

• Finance Department 
The department is wrapping up the City’s 2013 budget and anticipates the Fire District 
2013 budget will be adopted by their board at the end of October.  
 
The process for implementation of the paperless Accounts Payable is in the design phase.  
The financing for the Fire District fire apparatus is getting closer to being finalized and 
options for the potential financing of the City’s share of the library are being explored.  
 
The team is in the process of scheduling the upgrade of the Revenue (sales tax & 
business license) module of EmGov and is targeting late October for implementation.  

 
Finance Web Stats 

August 1, 2012 – August 31, 2012 
 

Page Views Unique Pageviews Ave Time on Page 
371 316 2:39 

% of Total: 1.28% (29,001) % of Total: 1.44% (21,907) Site Avg: 1:15 (112.74%) 
 

Page Level Pageviews Unique Pageviews Avg Time on Page 
1.  City Business and Tax License 62 50 2:09 
2.  Strategic Tech Plan RFP 59 50 2:02 
3.  Sales/Use Tax Information 57 48 2:14 
4.  2011 Financial Statements 40 36 3:08 
5.  Sales Tax Update Newsletter 37 34 1:24 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

• Fire Department/District 
Evans Fire Protection District – new logos 
At an All-Department Meeting in early September the membership voted on new logos to 
reflect the transition from a City department to a separate District.  A committee worked 
throughout the year researching and brainstorming to create the final choices.  Below is the 
new logo which reflects the Colorado state flag as well as the Evans Fire District values of 
“Dedication, Compassion, Excellence.”  The gold leaf will be used on the apparatus doors.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New 78’ Rosenbauer Quint 
One of the first projects as a new district is to update our 
current fleet.  The first purchase will be a new 78’ 
Rosenbauer Quint Pumper.  Firefighters on the Truck 
Committee have made several trips to the manufacturing 
facility to closely monitor the construction of the new 
apparatus and review options at the various stages of 
construction.  The new apparatus is expected to arrive in 
early summer 2013.  This will be our first apparatus in the 
new black over red paint scheme voted on by the 
membership at the September All-Department Meeting.   

 
 
 

• Economic Development Department 
Evans Urban Renewal Authority 
Timeline for Highway 85 Corridor Plan 
Adoption by City Council of the Urban Renewal Plan  December 18, 2012 
Public Hearing by Planning Commission    December 11, 2012 
Mailings out to all land/business/residents   November 16, 2012 
Submitted to Weld County Commissioners    November 16, 2012 
Publish notice of hearing in newspaper    November 16, 2012 
Public Forum for Information     November 8, 2012 
Letters to all about public forum     October 16, 2012 
Notice regarding blight study     October 15, 2012 
Blight Study Contracted     October 15, 2012 
Economic Impact Study Contracted    October 15, 2012 
Contact Made with all taxing agencies    September 30, 2012 (no 
later than) 

 
Library Project 
The Library Design Advisory Group has been formed, and the first meeting will be 
Tuesday, October 16th at 5:00pm in the City Council Chambers (followed by the 
Planning Commission meeting at 7:00 pm).  We’ll have introductions followed by 
a discussion in general about the DAG and the process, and set future meetings.  
As we progress, the team will be able to interact via email and visually see the 
project on line as it unfolds during the design phase.  We intend to apply for a 
DOLA Energy Impact Grant, which is due December 1, 2012. 

 



 

Retail Strategy 
Our implementation continues with the Highway 85 Corridor Plan (see the Urban 
Renewal Authority update above).  We continue our focus on how best to bring 
retail to Evans, what kind of retail it should be, and how to secure that retail.  Part 
of that process will involved updating the Highway 85 Overlay District, Section 
19.62 of the Evans Municipal Code. 

 
Development Meetings 
Staff has recently had development meetings with the following: 

 
Family Dollar – 35th and 37th – will be submitting a site plan 
Ashcroft Park Apartments – 35th and 34th – is in site plan review 
Cave Creek Phase III – 35th and Prairie View Drive – will submit a new site plan 
CDOT Park and Ride – east side of Highway 85, south of 42nd Street 
 
Wayfinding Signage 
The sign permits are in to CDOT for approval along Highway 85!  The Avenues of 
Evans signs have been designed and reviewed – we had to change some colors to 
adapt to the cultural issues in Evans but they look great!  They are all 
interchangeable panels in the signs so if they don’t work well we can change the 
names, etc to protect the innocent!  We continue to work with CDOT on the big 
green directional signs and adding Evans as a destination. 

 
Business to Business Conference 
Staff is planning a Business to Business (B2B) conference in March/April of 2013 
here at the Evans Community Center.  It will include a vendor show, educational 
seminars, and more.  We will be working with the EEDAC, SBDC, Evans Area 
Chamber of Commerce, and Upstate Colorado. 

 
Upcoming Dates of Interest 
September 26  Bixpo, Loveland 
October 1  Joint City Council and EEDAC Meeting, 5:30 
October 9  Zoning Board of Appeals, 5:30 
October 16  Library DAG, 5:00 
October 16  Planning Commission, 7:00 
October 18 Consumer/Merchant Show and Community Blood Drive, 

Moose Lodge, Evans 
 

• Community Development and Building Services  
Neighborhood Services 
As weed season winds down, staff will be focusing on signage, landscaping, and 
other zoning code violations.  Those have a different, and much more 
complicated, citation process.  We will be working with the City Attorney to update 
that process to include some enforcement issues such as business licenses, 
closing businesses, and more. 

 
Building Services 
As you all know, we are seeing an uptick in the number of building permits being 
pulled.  Right now we have halted all permits in Cave Creek until/unless they can 
meet the landscaping requirements in their agreements.  They will be submitted a 
PUD amendment to address that issue.   

 
 

• City Website Stats 
There are no new updates at this time. Please watch the October 23rd monitoring report 
for September’s stats. 



 

• CM’s Office 
Building the staff’s leadership skills and abilities has been a major priority for City of 
Evans and especially the City Manager’s Office. We are proud to announce for the third 
year in a row the City of Evans will be sending two key leaders of the organization to the 
Rocky Mountain Leadership Program through the University of Colorado of Denver School 
of Public Affairs and Buechner Institute for Governance on October 22nd through the 27th 
at the Cheyenne Mountain Conference Center in Colorado Springs. Zach Ratkai, Building 
and Development Manager, and Sargent Troy McDaniels are the lucky attendees this 
year. Each of them have received a $1,000 scholarship to attend. Upon completion Zach 
and Troy will join fellow alumni Aden Hogan, Julie Roeder, Sheryl Trent, Jessica Gonifas, 
Jessica Scheopner, Cameron Parrott and Fire Captain Jay Diebel. We are super proud of 
their efforts and look forward to seeing their skills expand from this program. 
 



               
 

 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

October 2, 2012 - 7:30 p.m. 
 

City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is 
reviewed and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic 

understanding.  Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or 
analysis.  An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org 

and posted immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  Lyle Achziger 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  John Morris 
 Council:  Laura Brown 

 Fred Burmont 
 April Neibauer 
 Brian Rudy 
 Jay Schaffer 
 

4. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so.  When you are 
recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.  
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement 
and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 18, 2012 
B. EEDAC Appointments 
C. Resolution No. 27-2012 - Adoption of the 2013 Fee Schedule 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing – New Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License – Paradise 
Billiards and Restaurant – 818 31st Street, Unit L 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 

http://www.cityofevans.org/


B. Public Hearing – New Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License – El Borrego 
De Oro, LLC – 2812 11th Avenue 

C. Public Hearing – 2013 Budget 
1.  Resolution No. 28-2012 – Adoption of the 2013 Budget 
2.  Ordinance No. 542-12 – 2013 Budget Appropriations (1st Rd) 

D. Preliminary 2012 Budget Revision – Community and Economic 
Development Departmental Assessment 

E. Resolution No. 26-2012 Adoption of Cooperation Agreement with the 
Evans Redevelopment Agency 
 

 
8. REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
9. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 
 
Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures 
on addressing City Council. 

 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 

“To provide positive and progressive leadership that promotes smart growth, economic 
prosperity and cultural diversity while preserving core and family values and a high 

quality of life that preserves our small town atmosphere.” 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA NO.:   6.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes  
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk Staff 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 
 MINUTES 
 EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
 Regular Meeting 
 September 18, 2012 - 7:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Achziger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Present:  Mayor Achziger Mayor Pro-Tem John Morris, Council members Laura Brown, April 

Neibauer, and Jay Schaffer 
Absent:  Council member Fred Burmont and Brian Rudy 
 
PROCLAMATION 
Mayor Achziger Lyle read the proclamation on making September 29th to October 6th UNC Week in 
Evans. He presented the proclamation to Chuck Lenhart from UNC. Mr. Lenhart highlighted some 
of the events going on during homecoming week. Explained that Community Fest which is focused 
on civic leaders and learning. They allow groups a free booth on the condition that they have an 
activity that is based upon teaching something new.  
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
There was no audience participation. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council member Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve the agenda 
as presented. Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 4, 2012 
 

Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 25-2012-A Resolution Delegation Signing Authority To the City Manager of 
the City of Evans, Colorado for Specific Functions on Behalf of the City Council 

 
Sheryl Trent, Director of Community and Economic Development reported the following: 

 
In 2011 the City Council authorized a retail strategy to be completed, and the City is now 
in Phase II of that implementation project.  The City is also moving forward with an 
Urban Renewal Plan in the Highway 85 Corridor.  As a result of all of these projects, it is 
often necessary to sign documents, contracts, agreements, checks and other tools in order 
to effectively and efficiently conduct business.   

 



 
By this action the City Council will, based on the City’s approved budget, grant the City 
Manager the authority to sign legal documents in an amount up to $2,000,000 for the 
purchase of land, buildings and other furnishings as necessary to implement strategies 
approved by the City Council.  All of those agreements and contracts will be brought 
before the City Council for review and consideration, this action only allows the flow of 
business to remain uninterrupted and smooth. 

 
There is no financial impact as a result of this resolution. The City Council will always 
approve the budget for any expenditure. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Morris made motion, seconded by Council member Schaffer to adopt 
Resolution 25-2012 delegating signing authority to the City Manger specific functions on 
behalf of the City of Evans. Motion passed with all voting in favor of. 

 
B. Preliminary Budget Revision related to IT Strategic Plan 

 
Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director reported the following: 
 
Through the Strategic Operational Planning (Strat Op) process, the management team has 
identified Information Technology as a core issue related to the City’s infrastructure and 
ability to provide services to our Citizens. The Strat Op process surfaced the problem that 
the City’s IT systems are outdated, frequently do not effectively communicate with each 
other, and in some cases, had been implemented without a long term strategic plan. In 
order to start to address this core issue, the identified deliverable is an Information 
Systems assessment and 5 year strategic plan.  

 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was released in August and a team of seven members was 
identified to evaluate and score the proposals. The scoring was weighted and based on 
the following factors: technical capabilities, quality/customer service, conformity to RFP, 
and cost. Two proposals were received and the committee consensus was to move 
forward with ZCo Consulting LLC (ZCo) to perform the services requested.  

 
The timeline for finalization of the report is December of this year and the consultant 
anticipates they will provide a summary of the plan to the City Council in January.  

 
The cost estimate provided by ZCo is $23,940. This includes a “phase 1” compatibility 
review estimated at $3,420. This requirement will give the review team an opportunity to 
evaluate the fit of the assessment in meeting our goals, and the ability to analyze the 
results prior to committing to a full assessment. 

 
The contingency is included at 25 percent based on discussions with ZCo and the 
possibility that the City may find the need to increase the number of processes evaluated 
as part of the assessment. The contingency will also allow flexibility for additional 
services that may be beneficial to the long term strategic plan but not identified until the 
process is underway. The City IT Consultant Time relates to the contract we currently 
have with Hawker Technology to provide IT services and the additional time that will be 
needed for participation in a project of this nature. Finally, staff may need a small budget 
for supplies necessary to complete the project as the regular IT budget does not have 



 
funding allocated to these types of items.  
 
The General Fund revenue source for this appropriation is the Fire District Admin 
Services Contract revenue which has not previously been budgeted. This preliminary 
budget revision will not impact the fund balance or currently projected ending fund 
balance for 2012.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Morris asked if this is for strictly consultation not for software and 
hardware. Ms. Gonifas replied no.  This assessment will basically give us a report card of 
how we are doing and the areas we can improve upon.  

 
           Mayor Pro Tem Morris asked if the services we have in place will be evaluated also. 
 

Ms. Gonifas explained that the consultant will consider that part of staffing evaluation of the 
assessment. The focus is really on the level of service needs for staff and the City. From that 
make recommendations on staffing if necessary. To obtain this information they will be 
doing a survey with employees and focus groups. They will also document several of our key 
processes which will reveal to us the areas in which we can us IT to be more efficient.  

 
City Manager Hogan explained further this is another piece of the overall evaluation of 
where we are now, how we are going, what are we going and how it all compares with where 
we really our now.  This is the next piece in to truly evaluating where we are and IT is a 
critical piece of what we do to provide services. 

 
 Mayor Pro Tem Morris asked about the funding coming from the Fire District Admin 
Services Contract. 
 
 Ms. Gonifas replied that the revenue we are receiving from that contract has not been 
earmarked or budgeted. It has been saved for projects like this that are one-time. 

 
 Mayor Achziger response that he will be supporting this because is the best way to go rather 
than do so in house. This time and money well spent in the long run to ensure we get the best 
result to help us move into the future.  
  
Council member Brown made motion, seconded by Council member Morris to approve 
the preliminary budget revision in the amount of $33,000 from the General Fund revenue 
related to the 2012 Fire District Admin Services Contract. Motion passed all in favor 
thereof. 

 
REPORTS: 
The City Manager Aden Hogan reported the following: 
 
He gave an overview of CML District meetings he just attended which included 4 cities, 5 districts 
in 4 nights. The best part was listening to what was going on in each community. There was a wide 
variety but at the heart of it was improving quality of life. Showcase with what we are doing in 
Evans. His intent is to get to all the districts by the end his tenure as CML president.  
 
The Police Department is heavily engaged in their departmental Strat Op process and completed a 



 
scrub just recently. Also the asphalt overlay project and the concrete repair projects are in full swing. 
And you will see lots of work around the City. The Waste water lagoons dredging project will be 
beginning soon too.  
 
City Attorney Russ Anson reported the following:  
 
For just a matter of information on the Evans Liquor license hearing will be at 11 am on Thursday 
September 20, 2012. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:  
There was no audience participation. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Achziger adjourned the meeting at 8:06 pm 
 
              
          Jessica Scheopner, City Clerk 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA NO.:  6.B 

 
SUBJECT:   Re-Appointment of Members to the Evans Economic Development 

Advisory Committee 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Sheryl Trent, Community and Economic Development Manager 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  The City Council established, by Resolution 20-2010, the 
Evans Economic Development Advisory Council.  Appointments were made by the City Council 
per the attached spreadsheet, in staggered two and four year terms.  The City Council can re-
appoint those members for another term that would then expire in July of 2016: 
 
Bill Garcia   
Ranelle Lang   
Kip McLeland 
Wayne Pickens 
 
There are no term limits for the members. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  No financial impact 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  None 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 “ I move to recommend appointment of the following members to the Evans Economic 
Development Advisory Council:  
 
Bill Garcia  4 year term to expire in July, 2016 
Ranelle Lang  4 year term to expire in July, 2016 
Kip McLeland  4 year term to expire in July, 2016 
Wayne Pickens 4 year term to expire in July, 2016 
 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  October 2, 2012    
 
AGENDA NO.: 6. C.  

 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 27-2012 - Establishing Various Fees for the City of Evans 
 
PRESENTED BY: Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:   
 
Attached is a Resolution and an Exhibit to adopt the 2013 Fee Schedule.  The fees were established 
in one of three ways:  the Consumer Price Index for Denver-Boulder-Greeley which was 3.69% at 
the end of 2011, actual market conditions, and legal constraints.  As a comparison from 2012, an 
explanatory fee schedule is attached that shows both 2012 and 2013 fees. 
 
As a part of the budget process, the Revenue Process team met with each department to discuss 
rates and revenues and that input created this schedule. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:   
 
These rates are built into the revenue structure for the 2013 budget adoption. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution that establishes the fee structure for 
2013. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 27-2012. 
 
Or 
 
“I move to deny Resolution No. 27-2012 
 



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. – 27-2012 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING VARIOUS FEES FOR THE CITY OF EVANS 
 

WHEREAS, the City has established fees for various services and licenses, and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to adopt all fees by resolution to provide for 
an efficient manner in which to establish charges for such services. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  The following fees are hereby adopted by the City of Evans with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Fees specified in any Ordinance shall supersede the fee specified in this Resolution. 
 

2. A fee specified in another Resolution shall be superseded by this Resolution if such other 
Resolution predates this Resolution. 

 
3. A fee adopted by a Resolution dated subsequent to this Resolution shall supersede the 

fee specified by this Resolution. 
 

4. The fees adopted by this Resolution shall supersede all Administrative Orders as to fees, 
whether adopted prior to or subsequent to the date of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2.  The following fees listed on Exhibit “A” are hereby established. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Evans on this   2nd     day of  October  , 2012. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 

By          
  Mayor 

  
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                            

 City Clerk 



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 1 09/26/2012

2013 Rates based on a 3.69%  2011 inflation rate

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Per page (b&w) 1.00 1.00
Per page (color) 2.00 2.00
Per page (computer lab printing) 0.25 0.25
Public Records 0.25 0.25

Street Map (3 pg – 8.5”x 11” w/ index) 6.00 6.00
11” x 17” 3.00 3.00

Maps (Blueprint Copies) 24” x 36” 6.00 6.00
24”x36” 11.00 11.00
36”x48” 21.00 22.00
11”x17” or smaller 6.00 6.00
17”x22” 11.00 11.00
24”x36” 16.00 17.00
36”x48” or larger 21.00 22.00

Memorabilia-City Lapel Pins Cost +25% Cost +25%
Memorabilia-Shirts, Jackets, Hats Cost +25% Cost +25% Cost +25%
Return Check Fee 25.00 25.00
Notary Seal Stamp 2.00 2.00
Project Plans (Large, < 20 pages) 26.00 27.00
Project Plans (Large, > 20 pages) 40.00 42.00
Project Plans (Small, < 20 pages) 11.00 11.00
Project Plans (Small, > 20 pages) 20.00 21.00
Refuse (Trash) Collection Per unit/month 11.25 11.75
Research of Files Cost of staff time Actual cost Actual cost
CDs (Voice Recorded) 10.00 + staff time 10.00 + staff time
Hunting Permit Property owner 100.00 100.00
Hunting Permit Hunter 25.00 25.00

Class II: per hour includes set up 30.00 30.00
Class III:per hour includes set up 55.00 55.00
Class II: per hour includes set up 25.00 25.00
Class III: per hour includes set up 40.00 40.00
Alcohol Fee (for up to 6 hours) 250.00 250.00
Class II:per hour includes set up 40.00 40.00
Class III:  per hour includes set up 55.00 55.00
Alcohol Fee (for up to 6 hours)* 300.00 300.00
Class II:  includes set up 65.00 65.00
Class III: includes set up (Weekend) 85.00 85.00
Alcohol Fee (for up to 6 hours) 450.00 450.00
Class II: includes set up 50.00 50.00
Class III: includes set up 70.00 70.00
Weekend: (16 hours & Gym 
Supervision)

700.00 700.00

4 hour & Gym Supervision 240.00 240.00
8 hour & Gym Supervision 400.00 400.00
Class II: per hour (includes set up 
and security)

85.00
85.00

Class III: per hour (includes set up 
and security)

125.00
125.00

Alcohol Fee (for up to 6 hours) 400.00 450.00
Class II: per hour (includes set up 
and security)

140.00
140.00

Class III: per hour (includes set up 
and security)

175.00
175.00

Alcohol Fee (for up to 6 hours) 600.00 600.00
Outdoor Setup 75.00 75.00

Class III:  Private Groups - Parties, Receptions and other private events

Proposed 2013 Fee Schedule
City of Evans

Maps (scanned copies) 

Continuous Rentals - 10 or more rentals per year - 15 % discount for room rental only (excluding Class I); Minimum 
Rental Fees/Hours may apply per development policy.

Class II:   Non Profit agencies must show certificate or non profit 501(c); Civic and Service organizations; Religious 

Banquet Hall (1/2) (2 room area - 110 capacity)

Banquet Hall (entire room - 220 capacity)

Gymnasium without cover (full gym) Athletic events/programs 
only

Gymnasium with cover (1/2 gym - 280 capacity)

Class I:    City of Evans sponsored or co-sponsored event or program may use the facility at no cost (with the provision that 
a staff member be onsite at all times during the event); agencies with a reciprocal use agreement (District 6) may use the 

facility at no cost during the business hours of Monday-Friday 6am - 5pm (Sports programs exempt from time restraints). If 
requested, after hour use will be accommodated at the Class II cost.

General Fees

Other maps 

Gymnasium with cover (full gym - 575 capacity)

Xerox Copies (personal)   

Banquet Hall (1/4) (3 room area - 55 capacity) Activity Room (50 
capacity) Activity Room II (40 capacity)

Council Room (96 capacity)



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 2 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Delinquent Business and Tax License or Special Event Sales 
Tax License

Delinquent as set forth in Chapters 
3.04500 and 3.04510 of Municipal 
Code

50.00 50.00

Sales & Use Tax Vendor's Allowance Per monthly or quarterly filing period, 
and return must be received by due 
date

3.33%, not to exceed 
$100.00 3.33%, not to exceed $100.00

Interest related to refund due to an overpayment of Sales or Use 
Taxes

Not to exceed .75% per month or 9% 
per annum

.75% per month or 9% per annum

Late filing penalty Late as set forth in Chapter 3.04820 
of the Municipal Code and calculated 
on the estimated taxes due per 
delinquent return

greater of $15 or 15% greater of $15 or 15%

Interest on delinquent taxes and late penalties As set forth in Chapter 3.04.830 of 
the Municipal Code

shall not exceed .75% 
per month or 9 % per 

annum

shall not exceed .75% per month or 9 % 
per annum

Penalty interest On remittance of Sales or Use taxes 
that are delinquent by more than thirty 
(30) calendar days from the due date 
as set forth in Chapter 3.04.840 of 
the Municipal Code

accrued at rate of .75% 
per month or 9 % per 

annum, with total interest 
and penalty interest not 
to exceed one and one-
half percent (1.5%) per 

month or eighteen 
percent (18%) per 

annum

accrued at rate of .75% per month or 9 
% per annum, with total interest and 

penalty interest not to exceed one and 
one-half percent (1.5%) per month or 

eighteen percent (18%) per annum

Special penalties for fraud as set forth in Chapter 3.04.870 of 
the Municipal Code

penalty equal to 100% of 
the amount of the 

deificiency 

penalty equal to 100% of the amount of 
the deificiency 

Special penalties repeated enforcement as set forth in Chapter 3.04.870 of 
the Municipal Code

greater of$250.00 or 
25% of the tax 

deficiency

greater of$250.00 or 25% of the tax 
deficiency

Alcohol (Class I, II, & III)  - 6 hour maximum/must stop serving at 
12:00 a.m.

350.00
300.00

Private Rental 250.00
General (Class I, II, & III) If no alcohol damage deposit. 

Negotiated for smaller rentals.
delete

150.00
Non Profit If no alcohol damage deposit. 

Negotiated for smaller rentals.
150.00

150.00
TV &VCR 10.00 delete
Overhead Projector 5.00 delete
LCD Projector 25.00 25.00
TV & DVD 25.00
Microphone 10.00/each
Screen and projector 25.00

Reservation Fees 30 days up to 18 months in advance Non-refundable (will be deducted 
from total rental fee) or full rental fee, 
whichever is less

200.00

200.00

City Park Pavilion - Full day 50.00 50.00
Riverside Pavilion Sports Park – Full day 50.00 50.00
Ridge Park – Full day (Large pavilion only) 35.00 35.00
Village Park Pavilion- Full day 35.00 35.00
Prairie View Park Pavilion- Full day 50.00 50.00
Riverside Ball Field Rental Per field - 3 hour block 30.00 30.00
Riverside Soccer Field 3 hour block 30.00 30.00
City Park Ball Field Rental No Reservations 0.00 0.00
Additional field prep - dragging &  lining Per field 70.00 70.00

4 hours - 1 field 175.00 175.00
8 hours - 1 field 250.00 250.00
4 hours - 2 fields 225.00 225.00
8 hours - 2 fields 350.00 350.00
4 hours - 3 fields 275.00 275.00
8 hours - 3 fields 450.00 450.00
4 hours - 4 fields 300.00 300.00
8 hours - 4 fields 500.00 500.00
16 hours - Only 4 fields, includes 2nd 
day drag/lined includes supervision

800.00 800.00

Additional Hours Sports Per Hour, after 16 hours only 50.00 50.00
Ball Field Lights Per hour 60.00 60.00
Soccer/Football Field Prep Per game 180.00 180.00

Four Hours 380.00 380.00
Eight Hours 500.00 500.00
Sixteen Hours 650.00 650.00

Equipment Rental

Sales & Use Tax Penalties & Interest Rates

Tournaments - includes initial field prep only-dragging, lining, use 
of bases – Non lighted

Soccer/Football Tournaments with supervisor

Park/Equipment/Ballfield Rental

Damage Deposits



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 3 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

0-50 people (2 hour rental including lifeguards) 175.00 150.00
51-100 people (2 hour rental including lifeguards) 235.00 200.00
101-200 people (2 hour rental including lifeguards) 290.00 250.00
Each additional hour Pro-rated fee 125.00

Adults (16+) each 2.50 2.50
Seniors (60+) & Youth (6-15) each 2.00 2.00
5 and under each 0.50 0.50
Adults (16+) each delete Patron under 5- $1
Seniors (60+) & Youth (6-15) each delete Patron over 5- $3
Tadpoles (0-5) each delete delete

Pool Memberships Price BEFORE 02/01/2012 Price BEFORE 02/01/2013
Family of 4-6 250.00 250.00
Family of 3 175.00 175.00
Family of 2 125.00 125.00
Single 100.00 100.00
Senior 50+ 65.00 65.00
Children under 3 are free 0.00 0.00
Pool Memberships Price on or AFTER 02/01/2012 Price on or AFTER 02/01/2013
Family of 4-6 300.00 300.00
Family of 3 225.00 225.00
Family of 2 150.00 150.00
Single 125.00 125.00
Senior 50+ 75.00 75.00
Children under 3 are free 0.00 0.00
10 Punch Card passes - Pool 25.00 delete

Seniors/Youth 40.00 40.00
 Adult 50.00 50.00
 City Employee 15.00 Employee Family $15
 Non-profit 30.00 30.00
Seniors/Youth delete everyone- $60
 Adult delete delete
 City Employee delete delete
 Tadpoles delete delete
Seniors/Youth 25.00 25.00
 Adult 32.00 32.00
Seniors/Youth delete everyone- $40
 Adult delete delete
 Tadpoles delete delete

Pool – Child Care only – 60 punches delete 60 visits for $100

Swim Lessons Per 10 lesson session member- $20.00
Per 10 lesson session non-member -$28.00

Swim Lessons Per 8 lesson session member-$20.00
Per 8 lesson session non-member- $28.00

 Recreation Day Camp - First Child – Full session 4 week session 380.00 390.00
Additional Child 4 week session 355.00 375.00
Recreation Day Camp per week 100.00
Recreation Day Camp All Summer 950.00
Additional Child All Summer 935.00

Per team (Spring) 350.00 350.00
Per team (Fall) 350.00 350.00

Youth Baseball / NVAA Softball 80.00 90.00
Youth Sports (4-8 years old) 28.00 30.00
Youth Sports (Grades 3-6 ) Excludes baseball & NVAA softball 40.00 40.00
Youth Jersey 15.00 15.00
Youth Dance 8 week 45.00 delete
Youth Dance 6 week 35.00 delete
Youth Dance 4 week 25.00 delete
Youth Dance 5 week 40.00
Men’s Basketball Per team 350.00 350.00
Adult Volleyball Per team 185.00 200.00
Outside Agency Player 22.00 22.00

Per class 3.25 3.00
Per session 16.00 16.00

Senior Oil Painting Per session 18.00 24.00

1 yr. - non-fertile 10.00 10.00
2 yr. - non-fertile 15.00 15.00
3 yr. - non-fertile 20.00 20.00
1 yr. - fertile 15.00 15.00
2 yr. – fertile 25.00 25.00
3 yrs. - fertile 30.00 30.00
Replacement Tag 5.00 5.00
Animal Variance Fee 50.00 50.00

30 Punch Card passes - Pool

15 Punch Card passes - ECC

ECC

Pool

Municipal Pool Rental

15 Punch Card passes - Pool

Recreation – Admissions – Evans Community Complex & Swimming Pool

Aquatics-Swim Lessons 

Recreation

30 Punch Card passes - ECC

Senior Fitness Classes

Adult Softball

Animal License Fees



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 4 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Retail Liquor Store 22.50 22.50
Drugstore 22.50 22.50
Beer/Wine 48.75 48.75
Club 41.25 41.25
Hotel/Restaurant 75.00 75.00
Hotel/Restaurant with optional premises 75.00 75.00
Tavern 75.00 75.00
Race Track 75.00 75.00
Arts 41.25 41.25
Brew Pub 75.00 75.00
Optional Premises 75.00 75.00
3.2% Beer 3.75 3.75
Special Events Permit Per day 100.00 100.00
Manager Registration (H/R & Tavern) 75.00 75.00
Corp/LLC change background investigations Per person 100.00 100.00
Annual Renewal Per year 75.00 75.00
Late Renewal 500.00 500.00
New License 1000.00 1000.00
Transfer of Ownership 750.00 750.00
Change of Location 750.00 750.00
Temporary Permit 100.00 100.00
Bed & Breakfast Permit 25.00 25.00
Applicant Packet Deposit 25.00 25.00
Hotel & Restaurant Mini Bar Permit 325.00 325.00
Alcoholic Beverage Tastings Permit 75.00 Application            

25.00 renewal
75.00 Application                                                   

25.00 renewal
Modification of Premises 150.00 150.00
Change in Corporate Name 50.00 50.00
Background check (In-state) 20.00/ person 20.00/ person
Background check (Out-of-State) TBD TBD
Police Fingerprint Fee 17.00/ person 17.00/ person
Duplicate Licenses 25.00 25.00

3.2% Beer Per year 400.00 400.00
Retail Liquor Store Per year 500.00 500.00
Drugstore Per year 500.00 500.00
Beer/Wine Per year 600.00 600.00
Club Per year 400.00 400.00
Hotel/Restaurant Per year 1500.00 1500.00
Tavern Per year 1500.00 1500.00
Brew Pub Per year 1500.00 1500.00
Optional Premises Per year 1500.00 1500.00
Racetrack Per year 1500.00 1500.00
Arts Per year 1500.00 1500.00

One year license (to be paid by licensee) Per year 350.00 350.00
Temporary permit 100.00 100.00
Daily vendors license Per day per space 100.00 100.00
Annual vendors license Per year per space 50.00 50.00

Annual fee for persons, firms and corporations Per year 50.00 50.00

Business and Tax License One Calendar Year 25.00 25.00
Special Event Sales Tax License Per event 25.00 25.00
Adult Business 2,000.00 2000.00
Temporary Vendor One Day 25.00 25.00

One Week 50.00 50.00
One Month 75.00 75.00
Quarterly 100.00 100.00

Background check for Temporary Vendor (in-state) 20.00/ person 20.00/ person
Background check for Temporary Vendor (out-of-state) TBD TBD
Refuse Hauler One Calendar Year 400.00 400.00
Pawn Broker One Calendar Year 75.00 75.00
Accommodation Tax One Calendar Year 25.00 25.00
Mobile Home Park/Community Annual License Fee 25.00 25.00

Per space for the first 25 spaces 2.00 2.00
Each additional space after 25 0.50 0.50

Mobile Home Park/Community License Transfer Fee 10.00 10.00

Open Air Market Fees

Occupational Tax Fees

Private Security Fees

Business Licenses/Fees

Liquor License Fees



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 5 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Grave Space Adult Includes $150.00 Perpetual Care - 
Per Space

875.00 900.00

Grave Space Infant Includes $150.00 Perpetual Care - 
Per Space

440.00 450.00

Opening & Closing - Adult Adult - includes $75.00 Perpetual 
Care

775.00 800.00

Opening & Closing - Infant Infant - includes $75.00 Perpetual 
Care

390.00 400.00

Opening & Closing - Cremains Cremains - includes $75.00 Perpetual 
Care

350.00 350.00

Disinterment (casket) 2000.00 2000.00
Disinterment (infant) 1000.00 1000.00
Disinterment (cremains) 325.00 325.00
Columbarium (niche & O/C) Includes niche & O/C, per niche 800.00 825.00
Engraving Dob, dod, name 285.00 285.00
Additional engraving One line of personalization 175.00 175.00
Second or additional lines completed at later date 175.00 175.00
Disininurnment -  Columbarium Costs (replace niche front and/or 

engraving
500.00 plus costs to 
replace niche front

500.00 plus costs to replace niche front

Additional Charge for Weekend & Holiday (adult/infant) Adult/infant 750.00 750.00
Additional Charge for Weekend & Holiday (cremains) Cremains 410.00 410.00
Delayment of Arrival at Cemetery 150.00/ hour 150.00/ hour
Transfer of Deed delete delete
Transfer of Deed Administrative Cost 10.00/ transfer 10.00/ transfer
90 day hold for burial space (nonrefundable) 125.00/space 125.00/space
Indigent Burial 100% of the allotted 

amount designated by 
State of Colorado/Social 

Services

100% of the allotted amount designated 
by State of Colorado/Social Services

Municipal Court Costs 20.00 25.00
Surcharges 50.00 50.00
Payment Plan Fee 25.00 30.00
Juror’s Fee 10.00 10.00
Jury Fee 6.00 6.00
OJW - City 15.00 15.00
Bench Warrant Fee 50.00 55.00

New Residential Dwelling Units For the first unit 240.00 250.00
For each additional attached unit 25.00 25.00

New Residential Dwelling Units which have had their plans 
reviewed and approved previously and which are being built 
again by the same contractor (re-writes)

155.00 160.00

$1.00 to $10,000.00 No fee charged 0.00 50.00
$10,000.01 to $25,000 25.00 75.00
$25,000.01 to $50,000 50.00 100.00

$50,000.01 to $100,000.00 75.00 125.00
$100,000.01 and up For the first $100,000 155.00 250.00

For each additional $1,000.00 or 
fraction thereof 2.50 5.00

$1.00 to $10,000.00 50.00 50.00
$10,000.01 to $50,000.00 100.00 100.00
$50,000.01 to $100,000.00 155.00 160.00
$100,000.01 and up For the first $100,000.00 200.00 200.00

For each additional $100,000.00 or 
 

75.00 75.00
$300.01 to $2,000.00 50.00 50.00
$2,000.01 & up - for the first $2,000 50.00 50.00
Each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof above $2,000

20.00 25.00

Additional Plan review required by changes, additions or 
revisions to approved plans (minimum charge - 1 hour)

Per hour or the total hourly cost to the 
jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest.  
This cost shall include supervision, 
overhead, equipment, hourly wages 
and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved

Actual costs Actual costs

Infill and Redevelopment Application 155.00 160.00

Cemetery

Municipal Court

Community Development
Site Plan Review – New Residential Construction

Site Plan Review – Residential Remodels Based on Total Valuation of Work

Site Plan Review – Commercial and Industrial (New and Remodel)



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 6 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Sketch Plan 155.00 160.00
Preliminary Plan 550.00 570.00

Additional per Lot 10.00 10.00
Final Plat 315.00 325.00
Lot Line Adjustments 155.00 160.00
Minor Replats 155.00 160.00
PUD Plan Application 550.00 570.00
PUD Plan Agreement Direct Staff Costs Actual Costs Actual Costs
PUD Amendment Application 155.00 160.00
Recording, Postage and Advertising Fees Direct Staff Service Costs Actual Costs Actual Costs
Neighborhood Development Plan 155.00 160.00
Filing Fee -Vested Property Right 155.00 160.00
R.O.W. / Easement Vacation 155.00 160.00

Use by Special Review  155.00 160.00
Variances 155.00 160.00
Zoning Amendments 155.00 160.00
Zoning Letter 100.00
Recording, Postage and Advertising Fees Direct Staff Service Costs Actual costs Actual costs
Telecommunications Filing Fee 265.00 275.00
Public Hearing 50.00 50.00
Annexation Petition 155.00 160.00
Annexation Agreement Direct Staff Service Costs Actual costs Actual costs

Permit Application Fee 0.00 25.00
Permit Issuance Fee Depending on cost of sign Varies Varies

Building/Fire Code Appeal 62.00 100.00

Construction Code Appeal 269.00 300.00
New Single Family Dwellings and Duplexes Per unit regardless of valuation, plus 

electrical permit fee
805.00 1000.00

Mobile, Modular & Factory Built Housing Building Permit Fee               546.00 600.00

Mobile Homes & Manufactured Homes at previously occupied 
sites such as existing mobile home parks & manufactured home 
communities

Regardless of valuation, plus 
electrical permit fee

84.00 100.00

Building Permit-All other Occupancies (multi-family residential-
greater than 2 units- or commercial)--Total Valuation  

$1.00 up to & including $500 25.00 50.00

$500.01 to $2,000 - for the first $500
25.00 50.00

For each $100 valuation or fraction 
thereof to and including $2,000

3.50 4.00
$2,000.01 to $25,000 for the first 75.00 100.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 

 f ti   t  d i l di  
15.00 15.00

$25,000.01 to $50,000 for the first 
$25,000 421.00 500.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 
or fraction up to and including 
$50,000 11.00 11.00
$50,000.01 to $100,000 for the first 
$50,000 692.00 750.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 
or fraction up to and including 
$100,000 7.50 7.50
$100,000.01 to $500,000 for the first 
$100,000 1,069.00 1,250.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 
or fraction up to and including 
$500,000 6.00 6.00
$500,000.01 to $1,000,000 for the 
first $500,000 3,478.00 3,750.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 
or fraction up to and including 
$1,000,000 5.25 5.25
$1,000,000.01 and up for the first 
$1,000,000 6,031.00 6,250.00
For each additional $1,000 valuation 
or fraction thereof 4.00 4.00

Electrical Plan Review 50% of Electrical Permit Fee 0.00 75.00
Electrical Fee Schedule - Residential Up to 1,000 sq ft. 47.00 50.00

1001 to 1500 Sq Ft 68.00 75.00
1501 to 2000 Sq Ft 83.00 100.00
2001+ sq ft (for the first 2000) 83.00 100.00
For each addition 100 sq ft or fraction 
thereof 5.00 5.00

Electrical Fee Schedule - Commercial/Industrial <$500.00 42.00 60.00
(Based on valuation of work) $501-$1000 47.00 75.00

$1001+ 47.00 85.00
Each additional $1000 of fraction 
thereof above $1000 17.00 20.00

Sign Permit Fees

Building & Construction Fees

Zoning Fees

Subdivision Fees



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 7 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 8 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

Administration Fees   45.00
Electronic Submittal (Application, Plans, Applicable 
Supplemental Materials)

  5% Discount on PERMIT FESS

Plan Review Fees New Construction  50% of Fee Costs
(Plan Review Fees to be paid at time of submittal). Stock Plans/Rewrites 50.00
 Additions/Remodels  50.00
Use of Outside Consultants   Actual Cost + 3% for Admin

Pre-Inspection / Courtesy Inspection For inspections requested prior to 
submittal for building permit, business 
license, sales tax license, or liquor 
license. 

 50.00

Inspections outside of normal business hours (minimum charge - 
2 hours)

Per hour or the total hourly cost to the 
jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest.  
This cost shall include supervision, 
overhead, equipment, hourly wages 
and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved

62.00 65.00

Reinspection fees (minimum charge - 1 hour) Per hour or the total hourly cost to the 
jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest.  
This cost shall include supervision, 
overhead, equipment, hourly wages 
and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved

52.00 55.00

Inspections for which no fee is specifically indicated (minimum 
charge - 1 hour)

Per hour or the total hourly cost to the 
jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest.  
This cost shall include supervision, 
overhead, equipment, hourly wages 
and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved

62.00 65.00

Mobile Home Pre-inspections; to be used for inspection of pre-
1976 mobile homes prior to being relocated to or within the City 
of Evans 

Plus 36 cents for each mile traveled 
to and from the inspection site or the 
total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest.  This cost 
shall include supervision, overhead, 
equipment, hourly wages and fringe 
benefits of the employees involved*

130.00 150.00

Building Pre-inspection; to be used for inspection of structures 
prior to being relocated to or within the City of Evans

Plus 36 cents for each mile traveled 
to and from the inspection site or the 
total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest.  This cost 
shall include supervision, overhead, 
equipment, hourly wages and fringe 
benefits of the employees involved*

234.00 300.00

House Moving/Relocation Permit; to be used for the actual 
moving of structures as outlined in the Municipal Code

Or the total hourly cost to the 
jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest.  
This cost shall include supervision, 
overhead, equipment, hourly wages 
and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved*

234.00 250.00

*This fee is in addition to all other fees established for Building, Fire and Electrical Codes.

Automobile wrecking yard Annually delete delete
Carnivals and Fairs delete delete
Compressed Gas 104.00 delete
Explosives or blasting agents Annually 221.00 delete
Fireworks Annually 1500.00 delete
Temporary Retail Fireworks Stand Annually delete delete
Flammable or Combustible Liquids As provided for the Fire Code delete delete
Hazardous Materials Annually delete delete
Liquefied Petroleum Gases As provided for the Fire Code delete delete
Mall, covered 0.00 delete
Open Burning No City fee charged but must have 

County Permit
83.00

delete
Temporary membrane structures delete delete

Administrative Citation 1st Offense 150.00 150.00
Administrative Citation 2nd Offense 500.00 500.00
Administrative Citation 3rd Offense 999.00 999.00
Mowing/Clean Up of Cited Property Per Hour (Minimum 2 hours) 45.00 50.00
Large Lot Mowing or Contracted Clean Up Rental of Equipment or Hired Labor 

Charge
Actual Cost + 3% Admin Actual Cost + 3% Admin

Graffiti Removal Per Hour (minimum 1 hour) 25.00 50.00
   

Neighborhood Services/Code Enforcement Fees

Building Administration, Inspection and Review Fees 

Fire Department Fees



Exhibit A

City of Evans Page 9 09/26/2012

2012 Rate 2013 Dept Recommendation

For excavation of 25 square feet or less (width x length)  56.03 57.00

For excavations larger than 25 square feet For each additional 25 square feet or 
fraction thereof

11.21 11.50

Residential Per dwelling unit per month 3.93 4.08
Commercial/Industrial/Manufactured Home Communities Per 20,000 sf lot or fraction thereof 

per month
6.11 6.34

Residential Undeveloped property < 10,000 sf 581.68 600.00
Undeveloped property > 10,000 sf 581.68 600.00
For each sq ft of area over 10,000 sq 
ft

0.05 0.06

Maximum fee for each lot or parcel of 
property on which 1 SFD is built

1,058.43 1,095.00

Commercial/Industrial Undeveloped property < 10,000 sf 899.51 930.00
Undeveloped property > 10,000 sf 899.51 930.00
For each sq ft of area over 10,000 sq 

   
0.06 0.07

Residential (Single Family) Per Dwelling Unit 203.74 200.00
Residential (Multi-Family) Per Dwelling Unit 203.74 200.00
Commercial/Industrial 203.74 200.00

For each sq ft over 10,000 0.00 0.00

Security Guard License New 47.00 48.50
Renewal 29.50 30.00

Fingerprinting Per card 17.50 18.00
VIN Verifications Per vehicle 26.50 27.50
Records Search / Clearance Letter Per person per address 12.00 12.00
Police Reports First 5 pages 5.00 5.00

Each additional page 1.00 1.00
Digital Photo CD Reproductions Each 21.50 22.00
Digital Recording CD Reproductions Each 21.50 22.00
Color Photos Reproductions Each - 6 photos per page 6.00 6.00
Vehicle Release Authorization Each 25.50 26.00
Sex Offender Registration New 75.00 75.00

Annual 25.00 25.00
Quarterly 25.00 25.00

Police Services

Twenty-Third (23rd)Avenue Drainage Basin Fee

Public Right-of-Way – Construction Permit

Drainage Fees – Development

Storm Drainage Fees – Monthly User



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA NO.:  7.A 

 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing – Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for  
    Paradise Billiards and Restaurant 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Russ Anson, City Attorney 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Angie A. Medina, representing Paradise Billiards and Restaurant, submitted an application for a 
Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License located at 818 31st Street, Unit L. The nature of the 
proposed establishment is a restaurant and billiards hall. 
 
The preliminary findings and report submitted for this hotel and restaurant liquor license application 
is as follows: 
 

The application was filed on August 20, 2012. 
 
The City Attorney and Staff find that the applicant has submitted all the necessary 
information for a complete application. 
 

 The evidence submitted by the applicant entitles them to possession of the premises where 
they propose to exercise the license applied for. 

 
No licensing authority has denied an application for a liquor license at this location within 
two years preceding the date of filing of this application. 

 
That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the zoning, 
fire and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   
 
That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection Department 
indicates the premises are in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 
 
This is a legal nonconforming site that has signed an agreement and made an escrow deposit 
to ensure compliance with the code. 
 
That the building where the applicant proposes to exercise the privilege of selling liquor is 
not within the 500 foot limitation from any public or parochial school or principal campus of 
any college, university or seminary. 
 
The neighborhood for purposes of determining the reasonable requirements of the 
neighborhood was established as a one (1) mile radius from the location.   
 



 
 
The applicant submitted petitions addressing the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  The 
petitions submitted reflect 108 signatures in favor of the proposed liquor license and there 
are no signatures showing opposition to the proposed liquor license.  The petitions are 
attached. 
 
The memo from the police department indicates no information was found relating to the 
applicants of a criminal history nature or which would reflect on the moral character of the 
applicants. 

 
Notice of Public Hearing was posted on the property on September 19, 2012 by the 
applicant’s representative and publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on September 
22, 2012. 
 
Before granting any license, the local licensing authority shall consider the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, the moral character of 
the applicants and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicants.  

    
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Applicant has paid all the fees.  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is satisfied that the application for a new hotel and restaurant liquor license is complete and 
that all requirements regarding the new license application have been met. Staff recommends 
approval. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 "I move to approve the Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for Paradise Billiards and 

Restaurant.” 
 "I move to deny the approval of the Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for Paradise 

Billiards and Restaurant for the following reasons . . ." 
 



CITY OF EVANS, LICENSING AUTHORITY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 
                   
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND REPORT UPON APPLICATION FOR A NEW HOTEL AND 
RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE 
              
IN RE: 
Angie A. Medina 
dba Paradise Billiards and Restaurant 
818 31st Street Unit L 
Evans CO 80620 
               

TO THE APPLICANT NAMED ABOVE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 

You are hereby advised that with regard to your application for a new Hotel and Restaurant 
Liquor License, an investigation has been made, and based on the results thereof, the following has 
been determined: 
 

1) That the application was filed on August 20, 2012. 
 

2) That the Notice of Public Hearing was posted on or before September 19, 2012 on 
the property and publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on September 22, 
2012. 

 
3) That there has not, within one year preceding the date of your application, been a 

denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local 
Licensing Authority of the City of Evans for a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor license 
application at the location for which you make application for the reason that the 
reasonable requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were 
satisfactory by the existing outlets. 

 
4) That it appears from the evidence submitted by you that you will be entitled to 

possession of the premises where you propose to exercise the license applied for. 
 

5) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.  
This is a legal nonconforming site that has signed an agreement and made an escrow 
deposit to ensure compliance with the code.  

 
6) That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection 

Department indicate that before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the 
premises will be in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
7) That the building where you propose to exercise the privilege of selling liquor at 



retail does not appear to be within 500 feet from any public or parochial school or 
principal campus of any college, university or seminary. 
 

 
8) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius, where you 

propose to sell malt, vinous and spirituous liquors in sealed containers for 
consumption off the premises at 818 31st Street, there are the following existing 
liquor outlets located: 

   
   Brew Pub:  1 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 4 

3.2 Beer:  4 
Retail Liquor Store: 6 
Tavern:   11 
Club   2 
  

9) That according to the information submitted by the Evans Police Department, there 
exists the following record:    

 
   The memorandum from Rick Brandt, Chief of Police dated August 6, 2012  
    is hereby attached. 
 
10) That the Public Hearing on your application will be held on Tuesday, October 2, 

2012 at 7:30 p.m. at the Evans Community Complex, Council Chambers, 1100 37th 
Street, Evans CO.  At said hearing, you will have an opportunity to be heard regar-
ding all matters related to your application, including all matters herein set forth. 

 
You are advised to obtain and read a copy of the State of Colorado Liquor Code and 

 Regulations and Chapter 5.08, Alcoholic Beverages of the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

Dated this   25th    day of September, 2012. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Julie Roeder 
Interim Administrative Services Director 





























































818 31st Street,
Unit L

US Highway 34

37th St

GREELEY MALL

CENTENNIAL
ELEMENTARY

42nd St

37th St

US
 H

wy
 85

17
th 

Av
e

42nd St

1s
t A

ve

25th St

31st St

11
th 

Av
e

34th St

8th
 Av

9th
 Av

Highway 52

Sta
te 

St

17
th 

Av

11
th 

Av

US Hwy 34

1s
t A

v

Em
pir

e S
t

Bo
uld

er 
St

2n
d A

v

27th St

Pr
iva

te

Go
lde

n S
t

5th
 Av

All
ey

4th
 Av

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

8th
 Av

e

6th
 Av

10
th 

Av

Ra
mp

16
th 

Av

15
th 

Av

13
th 

Av

Ce
ntr

al 
St

Pu
eb

lo 
St

49th St

19th Av

30th St

Tri
nid

ad
 S

t

Bran
tne

r R
d

15
th 

Av
 C

t

7th
 Av

Se
rvi

ce
 R

d

12
th 

Av
 C

t

14
th 

Av
 C

t

43rd St

38th St

E 24th St

Hig
h D

r

E 28th St

14
th 

Av

E 37th St

As
h A

v

35th St

26th St

E 27th St

Ind
us

tria
l P

kw
y

28th St Rd

Conn
ect

ing
 Rd

44th St

Alp
ine

 Av

15th Ave

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

My
rtle

 St

5th

Co
llin

s A
ve

18th Av

31st St Rd

Lu
pto

n A
ve

12
th 

Av

RR Diag Rd

40th St

Skyline Dr

10
th 

Av
 C

t
Pri

va
te 

Dr

23rd St

29th St

Levis Rd

La
rso

n S
t

29th St Rd

Ida
ho

 S
t

39th St

McNitt St

Su
ns

et 
Dr

Ma
rig

old
 St

1s
t A

v C
t

30th St Rd

Ma
gn

oli
a S

t

Mo
ntr

os
e S

t

All
es

 D
r

41st St

Va
lm

on
t S

t

De
nv

er 
St

State Farm Rd

33rd St

E 30th St

27th St Rd

La
ke

sid
e D

r

Ap
ple

 Av

32nd St

Sa
lid

a C
t

Me
ad

ow
s A

ve

Re
se

rvo
ir R

d

38th St Rd

17
th 

Av
 C

t

9th
 Av

 C
t

Glendale Dr

Carson Ave

Pleasant Acres Dr

Latham Ave

20
th 

Av

24th St

St.
 V

rai
n S

t

Riv
ers

ide
 P

kw
y

19
th 

Av
e

Mc
Av

oy
 Av

e

E 26th St

42nd St Rd

3rd
 Av

Ell
is 

Ct

36th St

20
th 

Av
e

Linden Dr

23rd St Rd

Co
un

ty 
Ro

ad
 41

Burlington Ave

Cla
rem

on
t A

ve

Cr
am

er 
Av

e

Ash Ct

41st St Rd
24th St Rd

Bir
ne

y C
t

26th St Rd

31st St Ln

Whitney W
ay

Pr
iva

te 
St

39th St Ct

Unnamed Street

40th St Ct

San Juan Cir

King Ct

Ell
iot

 C
t

Darrell Rd

19
th 

Av
 C

t

Ca
rso

n C
t

Ro
wa

n L
n

US Hwy 34

4th
 Av

La
tha

m 
Av

e

US Hwy 85

40th St

6th Av

27th St

25th St

Ida
ho

 S
t

US
 H

wy
 85

Private

As
h A

v

Ramp

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

Connecting Rd

24th St

15
th 

Av
e

30th St Rd

Pr
iva

te

12
th 

Av

24th St

Ca
rso

n A
ve

30th St

35th St

15
th 

Av
 C

t

27th St
Ramp

US Hwy 34

35th St

US
 H

wy
 85

US
 H

wy
 85

Unnamed Street

43rd St

13
th 

Av

As
h A

v

43rd St

29th St

All
ey

26th St

29th St

27th St

23rd St

41st St

Co
nn

ec
tin

g R
d

15
th 

Av

29th St

17th Av Ct

16
th 

Av

39th St

32nd St

25th St

23rd St

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

35th St

Ra
mp

De
nv

er 
St

24th St

Private

Service Rd

36th St

7th
 Av

36th St 36th St

7th
 Av

US Hwy 85
Va

lm
on

t S
t

31st St

Ramp

26th St

35th St

US
 H

wy
 85

All
ey

30th St

38th St

40th St

Alp
ine

 Av

Ca
rso

n A
ve

Ramp

Service Rd

26th St

De
nv

er 
St

Pr
iva

te

      Vicinity Map            Vicinity Map      
818 31st Street,818 31st Street,

Unit LUnit L
IEvans

City Limits

LegendLegend

Proposed
Location_̂
One-mile Radius

_̂



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA NO.:  7.B 

 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing – New Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for  
    El Borrego De Oro 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Russ Anson, City Attorney 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Enrique and Myrna Carrillo, representing El Borrego De Oro, submitted an application for a 
Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License located at 2812 11th Avenue.   The nature of the proposed 
establishment is a restaurant with liquor service. 
 
The preliminary findings and report submitted for this hotel and restaurant liquor license application 
is as follows: 
 

The application was filed on August 29, 2012. 
 
The City Attorney and Staff find that the applicant has submitted all the necessary 
information for a complete application. 
 

 The evidence submitted by the applicant entitles them to possession of the premises where 
they propose to exercise the license applied for. 

 
No licensing authority has denied an application for a liquor license at this location within 
two years preceding the date of filing of this application. 

 
That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the zoning, 
fire and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   
 
That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection Department 
indicates the premises are in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 
 
That the building where the applicant proposes to exercise the privilege of selling liquor is 
not within  the 500 foot limitation from any public or parochial school or principal campus 
of any college, university or seminary. 
 
The neighborhood for purposes of determining the reasonable requirements of the 
neighborhood was established as a one (1) mile radius from the location.   
 
 
 
 



The applicant submitted petitions addressing the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  The 
petitions submitted reflect 150 signatures in favor of the proposed liquor license and there 
are no signatures showing opposition to the proposed liquor license.  The petitions are 
attached. 
 
The memo from the police department indicates no information was found relating to the 
applicants of a criminal history nature or which would reflect on the moral character of the 
applicants. 

 
Notice of Public Hearing was posted on the property on September 18, 2012 by the 
applicant’s representative and publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on September 
22, 2012. 
 
Before granting any license, the local licensing authority shall consider the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, the moral character of 
the applicants and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicants.  

    
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Applicant has paid all the fees.  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is satisfied that the application for a new hotel and restaurant liquor license is complete and 
that all requirements regarding the new license application have been met. Staff recommends 
approval. 
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
 "I move to approve the Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for El Borrego De Oro." 
 "I move to deny the approval of the Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for El Borrego 

De Oro for the following reasons . . ." 
 



CITY OF EVANS, LICENSING AUTHORITY, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 
                   
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND REPORT UPON APPLICATION FOR A NEW HOTEL AND 
RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE 
              
IN RE: 
El Borrego De Oro, LLC 
dba El Borrego De Oro 
2812 11th Ave 
Evans CO 80620 
               

TO THE APPLICANT NAMED ABOVE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 

You are hereby advised that with regard to your application for a new Hotel and Restaurant 
Liquor License, an investigation has been made, and based on the results thereof, the following has 
been determined: 
 

1) That the application was filed on August 29, 2012. 
 

2) That the Notice of Public Hearing was posted on or before September 18, 2012 on 
the property and publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on September 22, 
2012. 

 
3) That there has not, within one year preceding the date of your application, been a 

denial of an application by either the State Licensing Authority or the Local 
Licensing Authority of the City of Evans for a Retail Liquor license application at 
the location for which you make application for the reason that the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the inhabitants were satisfactory 
by the existing outlets. 

 
4) That it appears from the evidence submitted by you that you will be entitled to 

possession of the premises where you propose to exercise the license applied for. 
 

5) That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the 
zoning, fire and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   

 
6) That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection 

Department indicate that before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued, the 
premises will be in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 

 
7) That the building where you propose to exercise the privilege of selling liquor at 

retail does not appear to be within 500 feet from any public or parochial school or 
principal campus of any college, university or seminary. 



 
 
8) That within the boundaries which were identified as a one mile radius, where you 

propose to sell malt, vinous and spirituous liquors in sealed containers for 
consumption off the premises at 2812 11th Avenue, there are the following existing 
liquor outlets located: 

 
   Hotel-Restaurant: 9 

3.2 Beer:  5 
Beer and Wine:  0 
Club:   2 
Retail Liquor Store: 6 
Drugstore:  0 
Tavern:   12 
Brew Pub:  1 
  

9) That according to the information submitted by the Evans Police Department, there 
exists the following record:  

 
    The memorandum from Rick Brandt, Chief of Police dated August 29, 2012  
    is hereby attached. 
 
10) That the Public Hearing on your application will be held on Tuesday, October 2, 

2012 at 7:30 p.m. at the Evans Community Complex, Council Chambers, 1100 37th 
Street, Evans CO.  At said hearing, you will have an opportunity to be heard regar-
ding all matters related to your application, including all matters herein set forth. 

 
You are advised to obtain and read a copy of the State of Colorado Liquor Code and 

 Regulations and Chapter 5.08, Alcoholic Beverages of the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

Dated this   21st    day of September, 2012. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Julie Roeder 
Interim Administrative Services Director 



































































El Borrego De Oro, LLCUS Highway 34

23
rd

 A
ve

37th St

GREELEY MALL

WALMART

CENTENNIAL
ELEMENTARY

42nd St

SAM'S CLUB

US
 H

igh
wa

y 8
5

37th St

US
 H

wy
 85

8th
 Av

25th St

42nd St

9th
 Av

17
th 

Av
e

1s
t A

v
1s

t A
ve

11
th 

Av

23
rd 

Av

2n
d A

v

6th
 Av

34th St

31st St

10
th 

Av

11
th 

Av
e

17
th 

Av

US Hwy 34

5th
 Av

Sta
te 

St

22nd St

Em
pir

e S
t

W 
Se

rvi
ce

 R
d

Bo
uld

er 
St

4th
 Av

27th St

Go
lde

n S
t

8th
 Av

e
30th St

Ra
mp

16
th 

Av

15
th 

Av

23
rd 

Av
e

13
th 

Av

All
ey

Reservoir R
d

Ce
ntr

al 
St

Pu
eb

lo 
St

Tri
nid

ad
 S

t

Service Rd

15
th 

Av
 C

t

7th
 Av

12
th 

Av
 C

t

14
th 

Av
 C

t

43rd St

38th St

Hig
h D

r

19th St

14
th 

Av

20th St

26th St

35th St

18
th 

Av

36th St

28th St Rd

Conn
ect

ing
 Rd

22
nd

 Av

McNitt St

15th Ave

21
st 

Av

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

My
rtle

 St

La
ke

sid
e D

r
Co

llin
s A

ve

31st St Rd

Lu
pto

n A
ve

12
th 

Av

RR Diag Rd

40th St

Glenmere Blvd

Sk
yli

ne
 D

r

10
th 

Av
 C

t
Pri

va
te 

Dr

29th St

Levis Rd

La
rso

n S
t

Alles Dr

29th St Rd

Ida
ho

 S
t

39th St

Su
ns

et 
Dr

19
th 

Av

21
st 

Av
 C

t

Ma
rig

old
 St

1s
t A

v C
t

30th St Rd

Ma
gn

oli
a S

t

Mo
ntr

os
e S

t

20th St Rd

41st St

Va
lm

on
t S

t

De
nv

er 
St

State Farm Rd

33rd St

Private

27th St Rd

32nd St

Linden Dr

Sa
lid

a C
t

3rd
 Av

Me
ad

ow
s A

ve

38th St Rd

24th St Rd

La
ure

l D
r

Bran
tne

r R
d

E 20th St

23rd St

17
th 

Av
 C

t

9th
 Av

 C
t

21
st 

Av
Ct

21st St

E 24th St

Carson Ave

Pleasant Acres Dr

Da
hli

a S
t

Latham Ave

E 27th St

24th St

E 22nd St

St.
 V

rai
n S

t

Riv
ers

ide
 P

kw
y

E 28th St

E 30th St

19
th 

Av
e

Mc
Av

oy
 Av

e

Elbow Ln

42nd St Rd

E 37th St

Ell
is 

Ct

20
th 

Av
e

Unnamed Street

20
th 

Av

23rd St Rd

Burlington Ave

Cla
rem

on
t A

ve

21st St Rd

22nd St Rd

Glenmere Rd

Cr
am

er 
Av

e

Glenfair Rd

Ash Ct

41st St Rd

Mo
ntv

iew
 D

r

Ba
ldw

in 
Av

e

La
rks

pu
r R

d

Driveway

Anchor Dr

Bir
ne

y C
t

26th St Rd

31st St Ln

Whitney W
ay

Ba
rcl

ay
 C

t

W 29th St

Pr
iva

te 
St

W 27th St

39th St Ct

Co
lum

bin
e C

t

40th St Ct

Ponderosa Park

San Juan Cir

King Ct

Ell
iot

 C
t

Darrell Rd

19
th 

Av
 C

t

Lila
c C

t

W 30th St

Ca
rso

n C
t

Laurin St

Ro
wa

n L
n

32nd St

40th St

41st St

US Hwy 85

30th St

Priva
te

De
nv

er 
St

21
st 

Av

29th St

7th
 Av

22nd St

19th Av

22nd Av

Va
lm

on
t S

t

7th
 Av

15
th 

Av 13
th 

Av

25th St

27th St

15
th 

Av
 C

t

27th St

Alley

36th St

40th St

Un
na

me
d S

tre
et

17t
h A

v

23rd St

24th St

31st St

Ca
rso

n A
ve

Ramp

36th St

35th St

12
th 

Av
27th St

Pr
iva

te

US Hwy 85

Private

13
th 

Av

16
th 

Av

29th St

23rd St

35th St

6th Av

14
th 

Av

All
ey

36th St

21
st 

Av
 C

t

Ramp

26th St

Private

7th Av

Connecting Rd

Co
nn

ec
tin

g R
d

22nd St

24th St

23
rd 

Av

Ramp

All
ey

25th St24th St

19th Av

US
 H

wy
 85

21st St Rd

29th St

12
th 

Av 19th St

La
ke

sid
e D

r

26th St

22
nd

 Av

33rd St

21
st 

Av

22
nd

 Av 10
th 

Av
 C

t

35th St

17th Av Ct

30th St

43rd St

24th St

27th St

21
st 

Av

Bu
rlin

gto
n A

ve

Be
lm

on
t A

ve

30th St Rd

US Hwy 34

39th St

4th
 Av

43rd St

Se
rvi

ce
 R

d

24th St

21st St

All
ey

26th St

Ida
ho

 S
t

RampRamp

US Hwy 85

20th St

18th Av

23rd St

4th
 Av

All
ey

38th St

15
th 

Av
e

Pr
iva

te

15
th 

Av

All
ey

Lakeside Dr

7th
 Av

35th St

De
nv

er 
St

      Vicinity Map            Vicinity Map      
El Borrego De Oro, LLCEl Borrego De Oro, LLC

2812 11th Avenue2812 11th Avenue
IEvans

City Limits

LegendLegend

Proposed
Location_̂
One-mile Radius

_̂



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE: October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA NO.:  7.C 

 
SUBJECT:   2013 Budget 
    Resolution No. 28-2012 - Adopting 2013 Budget 

   Ordinance No. 542-12 – Appropriating money to defray expenses 
      
PRESENTED BY:  Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 

The City Council, by resolution, shall adopt an annual budget and shall make annual 
appropriations pursuant to procedures outlined by State law and as required by the City of Evans 
Home Rule Charter (Section 8.5).  The revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and 
transfers have been previously reviewed by the City Council.  

 
Resolution No. 28-2012 adopts the annual budget. 
 
Ordinance No. 542-12 appropriates the expenditures, expenses and transfers.  
  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 

We are excited to present you with the 2013 City of Evans Operating and Capital budget 
along with the five year projections.  This budget is the result of several years of significant work on 
the part of the City Council and staff.  While the economic conditions continue to be uncertain, we 
continue to use our proven financial management tools and look for opportunities for improvement. 
The transition to self – collection of sales taxes in 2011, has proven to be positive and has given us 
the ability to predict our sales tax revenues in a more timely and accurate manner. The 2013 budget 
is built conservatively with careful analysis based on the results of 2011 and projections for 2012.   

The reductions of 2010 which cut about $1 million of fixed costs from the 2011 General 
Fund budget stand to be a prudent and necessary decision to begin the process of dealing with the 
structural gap which had developed over the past 10 years. 2013 is targeted as a year to analyze 
current service levels and plan for adjustments as we move into the future.  

With the voter approved creation of the Evans Fire Protection District (District) in 2011, the 
final step of transferring 10 of the City’s property tax mills to the District will happen in 2013. You 
will notice several footnotes on the following pages specifically related to projected revenue 



decreases that point to this occurrence. All assets and employees of the Fire operations will also 
transfer to the District in 2013.  

From a process perspective, we continue to focus on including staff in the budget process 
(and associated Long Range Plans), creating a higher level of awareness and accountability.  Process 
teams were developed for revenues, payroll, supplies and services, asset management, and capital 
programs. These teams worked with the departments to review and prepare the budgets, providing 
for an independent review.  The goal for each of these teams is to train the team for next year and 
each year increase the level of analysis that goes along with developing the financial plans.  An 
additional benefit is the increased number of city employees who have a significantly greater 
understanding of the City finances and operations.  The increased knowledge usually leads to more 
accurate information in the community.  

The Finance Committee provides oversight and recommendations to the budget process.  
Ultimately, it is the City Council that approves the annual budget based on the recommendations of 
the City Manager and input from citizens.   

The 2013 General Fund budgeting started five years ago, a benefit to our long term 
perspective on managing the finances of the City. Although the City made significant reductions to 
long term operating expenses in 2010 in response to the recession and structural gap, the City the 
City’s management team has been able to maintain a balanced operating budget. As we moved into 
the official 2013 budgeting season, the 2012 sales tax revenues are showing strong growth over prior 
years, due in part to the policy decision to move to self-collection (in 2011) and improved economic 
conditions.  The challenge going forward, still remains to be determining at what level the sales 
taxes are going to stabilize. In order to mitigate the risk of funding long term fixed costs based on 
one-time increases in the budget, we have taken an approach in this year’s budget which allows us to 
budget for an increase in sales tax revenue (which our models support) but programs in a portion of 
that related only to one-time costs. This method allows us to remain ultra-conservative in increasing 
our long term fixed costs, but plan to complete some critical projects as they year begins.  

The City Council’s goal for 2013 is to retire the remaining general obligation debt in 
December, three years early. This will result in the City being debt free related to the general 
government and a savings of over $100,000 in interest to the citizens.      

The 2009 restructuring of the financial management of the Water Fund has proven to be an 
effective tool for managing enterprise funds. The attached budget includes higher revenues based on 
increasing the base rate from $14.50 per month to $16.50 per month. The 2009 study indicated the 
rate required to generate appropriate major maintenance revenue should be around $17.00 per 
month, the increase in 2013 is intended to implement the correct rate over several years. 2013 will be 
a year to reevaluate the results of the increases. Additionally, funding two large operational water 
storage projects (Windy Gap and NISP-Glade Reservoir) face the City as we move into the future.  

 

The restructuring of the Waste Water fund took place in late 2011 and was implemented in 
2012. Similar to the issues identified in the Water Fund, the Waste Water fund is not recovering its 



costs on the operational side and does not have a mechanism in place to fund system maintenance. 
These issues will start to be addressed through potential modifications to the rate structure starting in 
2013.  

The final City enterprise fund, Storm Drainage, also requires any in depth analysis to assure 
that these operations are self-sustaining as required by law.   

The attached budget book includes information intended to answer the most frequently asked 
questions.  To accomplish the purpose of being useful on an everyday basis, the budget book does 
not attempt to answer every conceivable question (ultimately leading to a document that is too 
cumbersome).  The budget document will be updated following City Council approval and made 
available online as well as in print format.   

Although the economic future is uncertain, the City has the systems and resources in place to 
manage these challenges.  This is an accomplishment that puts Evans in an elite group of cities and 
towns.  We are definitely among the municipal leaders in Colorado with regard to how we 
financially plan and manage our budgets.  

In summary, the budget is flexible and a living document with constant monitoring and 
management. With adoption of the 2013 budget, the staff will move to closeout 2012 and identify 
fund balances that can be used to fund one time projects.  By constantly updating and discussing the 
budget we can eliminate the antiquated once a year budget model and move to a more fluid financial 
management system.  Thank you for your continued leadership, trust and support.  

 
Details of all financial items are available for Council or Citizens upon request from the 

Finance Department by contacting Jessica Gonifas at 970-475-1106 or jgonifas@ci.evans.co.us . 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of the resolution and approval of the ordinance.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 

I move to adopt Resolution No. 28-2012 and approve Ordinance No. 542-12 on first reading. 
Or  

I move to deny adoption of Resolution No. 28-2012 and deny approval of Ordinance No. 
542-12 on first reading. 

Or  
I move to adopt Resolution No. 28-2012 as amended and approve Ordinance No. 542-12 on 
first reading as amended. 

 
 

mailto:jgonifas@ci.evans.co.us


CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  28-2012 
 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH 
FUND, AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, 
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING THE 1ST DAY OF JANUARY, 2013 
AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, has appointed the City Manager to 

prepare and submit a proposed 2013 budget to said governing body at the proper time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted a proposed 2013 budget to the governing body on 
October 2, 2012 for its consideration; and  
 

WHEREAS, upon due notice, published in accordance with the law, said proposed budget was 
open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was held on October 2, 2012 and 
interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register objections to said proposed budget; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  That estimated revenues and transfers in for 2013 for each fund are as follows: 
General Fund $10,551,841 
Emergency Contingency                                                                         0           
Cemetery Perpetual Care 3,000 
Fire Impact  580 
Street Impact                                             3,987 
Parks Impact     2,362 
Conservation Trust   172,886 
Refuse Collection                                                             641,556 
Debt Service G.O. Bond  507,000 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,612,636 
Waterworks 4,289,632 
Wastewater 1,263,179 
Storm Drainage 467,061 
Firemen's Pension 0 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 
 

Section 2.   That estimated expenditures and transfers out for 2013 for each fund are as follows: 
 

General Fund $10,600,906 
Emergency Contingency                                                                   99,438        
Cemetery Perpetual Care                                                                  75,000 
Fire Impact  - 
Street Impact             -  
Parks Impact     85,000      
Conservation Trust   200,000 
Refuse Collection                                                             628,718 
Debt Service G.O. Bond  505,786 
Capital Projects-Streets                                                                1,477,000 



Waterworks 4,596,215 
Wastewater 1,355,847 
Storm Drainage 539,734 
Firemen's Pension                                                                                       - 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 
 

Section 3.  That the 2013 Budget as submitted, amended, hereinabove summarized by fund, and 
summarized in Exhibit “A” be and the same is approved and adopted as the budget of the City of Evans, 
Colorado, for the year stated above. 
 

Section 4.  That the 2013 Budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the Mayor of 
the City of Evans, Colorado, and made a part of the public records of the City of Evans, Colorado. 
 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Evans on this 2th day of     October    , 2012. 

 
 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
 By:                                                       

          Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
 
                                         

City Clerk 
 



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 542-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY EXPENSES AS 
PROVIDED IN THE 2013 BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate sums from the revenues and fund balances 

provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to impair the operations of 
the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1. That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenues and fund 
balances of each fund for the purposes stated: 

 
General Fund $10,600,906 
Emergency Contingency      99,438 
Cemetery Perpetual Care 75,000 
Fire Impact  - 
Street Impact             -  
Parks Impact     85,000      
Conservation Trust   200,000 
Refuse Collection                                                            628,718 
Debt Service G.O. Bond  505,186 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,477,000 
Waterworks 4,596,215 
Wastewater 1,355,847 
Storm Drainage 539,734 
Firemen's Pension - 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

          
 
PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 

this 2nd day of October, 2012. 
 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 
 



 2  Ord. 476-09 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 23rd  day of 

October, 2012. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 
 
 

 



JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text
      	

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text
  

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
New Stamp

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Typewritten Text

JPacheco
Budget Book Rockwell Black

JPacheco
Leading the Way Blue 2



 

 

Table of Contents 
  

Transmittal Letter                3 
Budget Overview                6 
General Fund Long Range Plan and Information             

General Government - Information             9 
Community Development - Information                    11 
Public Safety – Information                     12  
Public Works – Information                     13  
Culture, Parks & Recreation – Information                   14  
General Fund Long Range Financial Plan                   15 
General Fund Revenue Summary                    16 
General Fund Expenditure Summary                    17 

Enterprise Fund Long Range Plans and Information  
Water Fund 

Information                      18 
Long Range Plan and Capital Improvement Plan 2010-2017                20 

Waste Water – Information, Long Range Plan                   23           
Storm Drainage – Information, Long Range Plan                         25 

Special Revenue, Debt, Capital, and Trust Fund Long Range Plans and Information 
Emergency Contingency LRP - Special Revenue Fund                  27 
Cemetery Perpetual Care LRP – Special Revenue Fund                 28 
Fire Impact Fees LRP – Special Revenue Fund                  29 
Street Impact Fees LRP – Special Revenue Fund                  30 
Park Impact Fees LRP - Special Revenue Fund                   31           
Conservation Trust LRP - Special Revenue Fund                     32  
Refuse Collection LRP – Special Revenue Fund                   33 
General Obligation Bonds LRP – Debt Fund                     34 
Capital Projects - Streets LRP – Capital Projects Fund                  35 
Volunteer Fireman’s Pension LRP – Trust Fund                   36 
Cemetery Endowment Fund LRP – Trust Fund                   37 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A 2013 Budget Summary                     38 
Attachment B Revenue and Expense Trends                    39 

1



 

 

Attachment C Summary of Personnel Positions                      40  
Attachment D Summary of Personnel Expenditures                45 
Attachment E Summary of Supplies and Services by Program                  46 
Attachment F Summary of Supplies and Services by Fund                  48 
Attachment G Summary of Debt                         49            
Attachment H Asset Management Plan                       50  
Attachment I Summary of Capital Expenditures                     51 
Attachment J Intra Fund Transfers               52 
Attachment K 2013 Budget Resolution             53 
Attachment L 2013 One Time Funding             55 
Attachment M Financial Policies               56

2



3



4



5



 

 

2013 Budget Overview 

The 2013 budget document has been prepared as a useful tool for City Council, citizens, 
and staff. This document is designed to answer the majority of the questions related to the 
budget from a policy maker and citizen perspective. Budget direction is provided from the 
Home Rule Charter, City Council, and the Financial Policies. 
 
Budget development in the City of Evans is an ongoing and vibrant team process involving 
the City Council, Department Directors, and many members of staff. Updating the long 
range plans and preparing the annual budget begins with a comprehensive review of rates 

and revenues, specifically in the General Fund. Taxes are approved by citizens and rates for services are set by the City Council. 
Other rates are reviewed each year to ensure the rate increases with inflation and the subsequent cost of providing these services. 
The 2013 budget includes $17,792,545 of total revenues as outlined by fund in Attachment A, 2013 Budget Summary. 
Attachment B, Revenue and Expense Trends shows the past and projected trends, including revenues that will impact the City.  
 
Sales tax revenues amount to 53% of total General Fund revenue. Consequently, it is important to accurately project these 
revenues. The City closely monitors these revenues on a monthly basis and the transition in 2011 to self-collection has allowed for 
more timely and accurate projections. For 2013, sales and use taxes are projected to increase 17.2% from 2012.  
 
In prior years, Property tax was the second largest contributor to General Fund revenue. Due to the voter approved transfer of 10 of 
the City’s total 13.536 mills in 2013 to the Evans Fire Protection District, this revenue source now represents 3.9% of the General 
Fund revenue. 
 
User fees are charged for specific services and in 2013 are projected based on a rate increased 
by inflation and anticipated activity.   
 

For 2013, the personnel budget includes funding for employee merit, but does not include 
increases to benefit packages, nor does it include any additional positions.  Attachment C, the 
Summary of Personnel Positions identifies the 82 positions approved by department. 
Attachment D, the Summary of Personnel Expenditures identifies funded positions, part 
time employees and overtime for a total cost in 2013 of $6,608,327.  
 
This Supplies and Services budget includes an inflationary increase, any increases which were 
mandated above and beyond inflation, and a minimal amount of increases necessary to provide 
services to the citizens in the most efficient and effective way possible. Despite the significant 
reductions in supplies and services over the past four years, departments continue to look for 

6



 

 

ways to eliminate outdated or lower priority activities. Each department has, and will continue to evaluate each activity or expense to 
identify savings. Attachment E, the Supplies and Services by Program for Operating Funds shows a decrease of 3% in 
General Fund 2013 budgeted supplies and services. The major contributor to this reduction is 2012 one-time budget appropriations 
from 2011 excess revenues.  
 
Attachment F, the Summary of Supplies and Services Expenditures by Fund shows the City wide budget for supplies and 
services of $7,475,048, a decrease of $293,592 or 4% from 2012.  As mentioned above, the main driver of the decrease is the one-
time appropriations in the General Fund for 2012 from excess 2011 revenue.  The majority of the supplies and services budget in the 
Refuse Collection and Water Funds is a contract to provide services to an outside agency. 
 
Please note that 2013 and 2014 projected amounts are based on current service levels and may change as citizen’s request and 
Council approves changes. The acquisition and maintenance of facilities and equipment required to deliver services to the citizens is 
included in these categories. These expenses are identified on the Long Range Plans based on the funding sources. As an example, 
the use of Impact Fees is restricted to equipment and capital purchases (indicating they should not be used for operations) and 
separate funds exist to account for these revenues and expenditures. 
 
The City of Evans carries very little debt.  Attachment G, Summary of Debt includes the annual obligations along with the total 
obligations. City’s debt at the end of 2013 will total $465 thousand and includes only Waste Water related debt obligations.  The City 
Council plans to retire the general obligation bonds three years early using excess sales tax revenue, saving the tax payers 
approximately $103 thousand dollars in interest expense. 
  
The City staff has developed an Asset Management Plan, Attachment H, with the strategy of anticipating and funding the 
replacement of equipment with an approximate replacement cost between $5,000 and $100,000. Delaying the replacement of 
equipment can be extremely expensive in terms of lost productivity and high cost of emergency repairs. In 2013, the Asset 
Management Plan is funded adequately based on our current model.  
 
Attachment I, the Summary of Capital Expenditures identifies capital projects by fund for 2010 to 2017. The long term goal is to 
refine and implement the Capital Improvement Plan for all capital 
funds. Capital purchases are budgeted in the Cemetery Perpetual 
Care, Parks Impact, Conservation Trust, Street Impact, Capital 
Projects, and Enterprise Funds. Funding in the Conservation Trust, 
Capital Projects Streets, and Enterprise Funds is based on the 
projected 2013 ending fund balance. Because Impact Fees are less 
predictable, the available funding is based on 90% of the projected 
2012 ending fund balance. 
 

7



 

 

Attachment J, Intra Fund Transfers, identifies transfers made to reimburse funds 
for expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) recognized in separate funds.  
Transfers are identified by the fund paying the other fund. 
 
The 2013 budget challenges were primarily in the Waste Water Fund. With the 
significant amount of work that has been done balancing the General Fund starting in 
2009, and most recently transitioning the fire department to a Fire District, the focus 
now transfers to the service level delivery and long-term sustainability.   
 
In addition to the economic factors that impact all funds, the General and Enterprise 
Funds are impacted by the overhead allocation from the Enterprise Funds to the 
General Fund for administrative support. As the City moves into the future, more 
sophisticated measures are being put in place to estimate these costs.  

 
After the significant work done to the Water Fund in 2009 and programed base rate increases, the fund is moving towards a 
sustainable level of funding for operations and the focus is now on obtaining funding for large water projects such as Northern 
Integrated Supply Project (NISP) and Windy Gap.  
 
The Waste Water Fund presents a significant challenge as we move into the future. It will have a similar driving factor as the Water 
Fund did with questions about the City’s ability to fund future regulatory requirements, capital, and system expansion projects. The 
focus moving forward is on implementation of the recommendations of the 2010 Waste Water Utility Plan and the significant amount 
of regulatory compliance the City must address over the next several years.  

 
Each operating fund has a long range plan which identifies revenues and expenditures. Prior year actual is identified to help 
understand trends and the increased costs of providing services. Future years are included to identify the costs of providing services 
which may be added during the year or as a result of capital projects. The main goal is to identify the highest priority services each 
year, eliminating lower priority expenditures and ultimately operate more efficiently and effectively. 
 
The City of Evans budget is a year round planning and management tool. 2013 was the fourth year where the budget focused on 
increased staff involvement and City Council direction as policy makers. The Budget Resolution, Attachment K, is submitted to the 
City Council before October 15th as required by the City Home Rule Charter.                                            

8



 

 

General Fund 
  

General Government includes services required for the operation of a City government including the City Council, City Manager, City 
Clerk, Customer Service Unit, Human Resources and Risk Management, and Finance. 
 
Service Areas 
 
City Council – includes the community’s 
legislative body which has the authority for 
enacting City ordinances and resolutions as 
needed to conduct the business of the City and to 
provide policy direction to City staff. 

 Maintain excellent communication on fiscal 
status and 2013  
legislative issues. 

 Continue implement operational and 
strategic decisions based on Council’s 
vision priorities. 

 
City Manager – includes operating with a 
Council-Manager form of government with the 
City Manager being the chief administrative officer 
and is responsible for the overall management of 
City operations. 

 Continue Strategic Operations Planning 
Process to enhance City services. 

 Continue to push out the Financial 
Planning Model toward 10 years. 

 Explore technology that will result in more 
cost effective operations. 

 Develop comprehensive sustainability plan to support City services and operations.  
 

9



 

 

City Clerk – includes general and specialized administrative responsibilities 
in many areas, including: administrative support to City Council; Council 
agenda and packet preparation; animal and liquor licensing; cemetery 
administration, maintaining Municipal Code and Home Rule Charter; records 
management; public records; and Municipal elections. 
 
Customer Service Unit –includes timely and consistent customer service 
responsibilities both externally to citizens and internally to staff in many 
areas including: utility billing, courts, human resources, and the public 
works department. 

 Actively communicate with Citizens, City Council and Staff.  
 Develop streamlined processes for consistent, cost effective 

customer service and administrative support to citizens and staff 
members. 

 Provide reliable delivery of services to the citizens and customers of 
the City. 

 
Human Resources & Risk Management – includes providing an organizational framework to recruit, select, classify, compensate, 
and develop the City’s diverse workforce, while ensuring a safe environment that optimizes productivity, efficiency and 
effectiveness.   
 

 Manage and complete the City’s compensation and classification study, including creating or updating of all job descriptions, 
developing of the total rewards strategy, designing and establishing a base compensation structure, completing cost analysis 
of plan implementation and developing compensation administrative guidelines. 

 Improve the open enrollment process by exploring the use of workflow capabilities.    
 Continue to work collaboratively with the management team to revise the City’s employment policies and procedures. 
 Evaluate and adjust the City’s integrated health risk management strategy and plan, including the expansion of the City’s 

wellness program to improve employee health, well-being and safety as well as reduce insurance costs.  
 Continue to develop and strengthen regional partnerships, including identifying opportunities for greater cost efficiency while 

maximizing the City’s resources.  
 
Information Technology – includes management of the City’s information services serving both the citizens and staff.  
 

 Complete 5 year strategic plan 
 Assists departments with providing services to citizens in the most efficient and effective manner. 

 

10



 

 

Financial Services – includes the financial planning, budgeting, accounting and reporting functions to accurately identify the 
activities of the City and the financial condition.  

 Increase efficiency and transparency by reducing the use of paper and manual processes. 
 Develop key performance indicators for the department in an effort to increase accountability and define ownership. 
 Develop a financial literacy program for all City staff.  

 
Community Development includes planning and zoning services, building services, economic development, neighborhood services 
and transit services.  
 
Service Areas 
 
Neighborhood Services – combines Building Services and the Code Enforcement function to ensure compliance with city safety 
codes through the administration and enforcement of the Building Codes and related ordinances of the City as well as the laws of the 
State of Colorado which regulate building construction.  Additionally, Neighborhood Services ensures citywide compliance with the 
municipal codes relating to nuisance code violations and animal control.  
 
Community Development – Community Development focuses on the long term growth and sustainability of the City using tools 
such as the Comprehensive Plan, updated codes and regulations, new development review, and cross departmental teams.  Long 
term goals include developing policies to better evaluate the financial impact of specific developments and continuing to plan for the 
redevelopment and growth of the City.  The Urban Renewal Authority was put in place by the Council to help in those efforts. Goals 
for 2013 include: 

 Continue to update codes and regulations to improve our image.  
 Develop new and better regional relationships to solve long standing land use issues. 

 
Economic Development – the focus is on business attraction, business 
retention, and business expansion by marketing and promoting Evans as a place 
to live, work and play.  Through tools such as websites, marketing materials, face 
to face contacts and networking, the ultimate goal is to create a higher quality of 
life in Evans.  Goals include creating better regional jobs, improving services 
through increased revenue, and offering more opportunities to work and play.  
The main areas of concentration for 2013 include: 

• Continue to market and promote Evans as a place to work and live.  
• Continue to implement the retail strategy recommendations   
• Implement Phase II of the way finding signage program by installing signs 

in public private partnerships. 
  

11



 

 

The Police Department has 30 sworn officers and two civilian support staff. We are committed 
to providing professional police services through proactive, problem solving methods of law 
enforcement and to building community partnerships to promote a desirable quality of life for 
the citizens of Evans. 
 
                                                       
Service Areas 

 
Patrol - the most visible part of the Department is under the direction of Commander Pat Haugse. Four sergeants supervise 
24/7/365 Patrol operations. Officers handle an array of issues in Evans from traffic safety initiatives to responding to a multitude of 
calls for service. Evans police officers focus on problem identification and solutions in their districts rather than simply taking reports.  
 
Investigations/Administrative Services – under the direction of Commander Jason Phipps, the bureau is responsible for all 
investigative follow up, crime analysis, sex offender tracking, property and evidence handling, records, IT, the Crime Free Multi-
Housing program, and Internal Affairs. A sergeant supervises two detectives who investigate all serious crimes in Evans, and the 
School/Community Resource Officer who also provides investigative support to the detectives.   
 
Community Oriented Policing and Problem Solving (COPPS) – through programs such as Crime Free Multi-Housing, 
Neighborhood Watch, the School Resource Officer and COPPS initiatives, officers work with our citizens in partnerships to solve crime 
and quality of life issues to continue to make Evans a safe, desirable community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

12



 

 

 
Public Works - includes the services required for the operation and maintenance of public rights-of-way, fleet services, and 
engineering including the areas within Public Works of Maintenance of Condition, Fleet Services, and Engineering. 
 
Service Areas 
 
Infrastructure Maintenance – includes the maintenance, construction, and public safety on public streets, alleys, and rights-of-
way within the City. This includes, but is not limited to, street sweeping, snow removal, alley grading, maintenance of signs and 
other traffic control devices, pavement marking, and asphalt pavement maintenance. 

 Address concerns over our ability to provide an acceptable level of service in the pavement management area in light of 
dwindling revenue. 

 Investigate the feasibility of implementing a street maintenance fee. 
 Update the City’s Pavement Management System with current inspections. 

 
 

Fleet Services – maintains the City’s fleet of vehicles and equipment at 
the safest, most efficient and dependable condition possible, at the lowest 
cost per mile or hour of operation.  

 Continue to maintain vehicles in an efficient and dependable 
condition. 

 Make recommendations for the asset management plan for 
replacement of vehicles and equipment. 

 Manage supplies and services in such a manner to reduce costs 
while providing optimal service to the community.  

 
Capital Construction – the Engineering Division has the responsibility 
for providing engineering support in the planning and design of the City’s 
Capital Improvement Projects, performs subdivision plan review and 

construction inspections, approving construction in public rights-of-way, and to provide engineering support to other City 
departments as needed. 
 
Transit – includes the administration of the City’s transit services agreement with the City of Greeley. This function serves to ensure 
adequate levels of public transportation service to the City of Evans. 

13



 

 

The Culture, Parks and Recreation area of the budget includes services required for the general 
operations of Public Facilities, Recreation services, Aquatics operations, Parks maintenance, Cemetery 
maintenance, Forestry, Senior Services and Museum operations.  
 
Service Areas 
 
Public Facilities – includes maintenance and operational expense of the Evans Community Complex. 
 
Recreation – includes administration of all recreation services and programs, the recreation center 
and front desk operations, and administrative needs of the Parks & Recreation Department. 
 
Aquatics – Aquatics – The Evans Municipal Pool is a small neighborhood pool that is open in the 
summer to the community.  The pool offers memberships, punch passes and drop in rates.  
 
 
Parks – includes all of the operational expenses of the City’s park and trail system (9 neighborhood 
parks, 1 off-leash dog park, 1 community park, 6 undeveloped park sites, 4 miles of trail, and oversight 
of the City’s open space areas). 

 
Cemetery – operational maintenance of the City’s only Cemetery (including 
opening/closing of graves). 
 
Forestry Care – includes care of trees on public property, horticultural 
care on public properties, code enforcement for trees on private property, 
and landscape plan review. 
 
Senior Services – administration of the City’s Senior Services and the 
Evans Senior Center. 
 
 
 
 

14



2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 1,521,391         2,290,648         3,652,050         3,652,050         3,354,601         3,305,537         4,210,718         5,050,073         5,742,056         

Revenues:

Sales Tax 4,958,797         5,736,322         4,788,951         6,351,951         5,547,082         5,305,981         5,388,191         5,472,044         5,557,574         

Property Tax 
1

1,701,476         1,501,310         1,524,462         1,524,462         404,359            412,446            416,571            420,736            424,944            

Other Taxes 487,345            824,208            540,404            899,110            776,000            765,767            776,672            788,130            799,173            

License & Permits 657,342            759,574            734,860            734,860            823,100            838,190            859,984            882,510            905,799            

Intergovernmental 643,209            691,137            652,940            652,940            624,243            1,155,663         1,155,663         1,155,663         1,155,663         

Charges for Services 536,714            485,143            534,543            534,543            433,395            441,787            442,500            443,215            443,934            

Fines & Forfeitures 502,774            449,264            430,000            430,000            410,500            415,600            428,706            431,318            431,936            

Assessments 13,803              21,856              4,000                4,000                20,000              20,000              20,000              20,000              20,000              

Misc 154,206            186,245            691,623            691,623            118,987            177,166            206,322            233,502            254,262            

   Total revenues 9,655,667         10,655,059       9,901,784         11,823,490       9,157,666         9,532,600         9,694,607         9,847,119         9,993,284         
   CT 9,655,667                        10,655,059                      9,901,784                        11,823,490                      9,157,666                        9,532,600                        9,694,607                        9,847,119                        9,993,284                        

    Transfers In 1,039,201         1,201,506         1,258,083         1,258,083         1,294,737         1,332,558         1,352,913         1,373,567         1,393,684         

Total Available Funds 10,694,868       11,856,565       11,159,867       13,081,573       10,452,403       10,865,158       11,047,520       11,220,686       11,386,968       

      Total Annual Increase 1.79% 10.86% 5.93% 10.33% -20.10% 3.95% 1.68% 1.57% 1.48%

Expenditures:

GG Personnel 1,011,892         1,081,592         1,152,573         1,152,573         1,184,701         1,214,989         1,268,570         1,324,514         1,382,925         

GG Operations 1,086,111         1,261,568         1,411,783         1,411,783         1,364,280         1,374,044         1,116,125         1,132,267         1,148,651         

General Government 2,098,003         2,343,161         2,564,355         2,564,355         2,548,981         2,589,034         2,384,695         2,456,781         2,531,576         

-11.11% 11.69% 7.07% 5.21% -0.60% 1.57% -7.89% 3.02% 3.04%

CD Personnel 441,410            344,832            367,761            367,761            344,054            332,276            346,929            362,229            378,203            

CD Operations 100,216            147,901            249,342            249,342            209,569            150,012            152,262            154,546            156,865            

Community Development 541,627            492,733            617,103            617,103            553,623            482,288            499,192            516,775            535,068            

10.43% -9.03% 31.89% 2.49% -10.29% -12.89% 3.50% 3.52% 3.54%

PS Personnel 3,946,226         4,141,777         3,020,284         3,020,284         3,041,506         3,171,046         3,310,890         3,456,900         3,609,349         

PS Operations 374,082            542,230            274,270            274,270            267,404            271,415            275,486            279,619            283,813            

Public Safety 4,320,308         4,684,006         3,294,554         3,294,554         3,308,910         3,442,461         3,586,376         3,736,518         3,893,162         

-5.99% 8.42% 1.57% 0.92% 0.44% 4.04% 4.18% 4.19% 4.19%

PW Personnel 778,727            835,816            850,415            850,415            844,481            879,185            917,957            958,439            1,000,706         

PW Operations 563,773            561,910            712,908            712,908            666,216            676,210            686,353            696,648            707,098            

Public Works 1,342,500         1,397,726         1,563,323         1,563,323         1,510,697         1,555,395         1,604,310         1,655,087         1,707,804         

-11.51% 4.11% 4.27% 4.27% -3.37% 2.96% 3.14% 3.17% 3.19%

CPR Personnel 801,899            468,402            634,744            634,744            700,610            716,104            747,684            780,657            815,084            

CPR Operations 237,970            380,952            546,793            546,793            581,641            590,365            599,221            608,209            617,332            

Culture, Parks & Rec 1,039,869         849,354            1,181,537         1,181,537         1,282,251         1,306,469         1,346,905         1,388,866         1,432,416         

-35.73% -18.32% 8.17% 1.11% 8.52% 1.89% 3.10% 3.12% 3.14%

IGA - Fire Services -                    -                    1,458,682         1,458,682         440,000            449,240            458,674            468,306            478,141            

Asset Management 51,919              475,400            368,573            368,573            321,443            300,000            300,000            300,000            300,000            

Debt 80,396              247,556            559,317            559,317            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total operating expenditures 9,474,622         10,489,936       11,607,445       11,607,445       9,965,906         10,124,887       10,180,152       10,522,334       10,878,166       

      Total Annual Increase -14.10% 10.72% 10.60% 2.92% -14.14% 1.60% 0.55% 3.36% 3.38%

   Capital Improvements -                    5,920                1,680,500         1,680,500         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   Transfers Out (To Fire Protection Dist) -                    -                    16,000              16,000              300,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    

   Transfers Out (To other City Funds) 450,989            (693)                  75,076              75,076              335,000            -                    28,014              6,369                77,974              

   Transfers In (From EC Fund) -                    -                    -                    -                    99,438              164,911            -                    -                    -                    

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 

Expenditures 769,257            1,361,402         (2,219,154)        (297,448)           (49,065)             905,182            839,354            691,983            430,828            

Ending Fund Balance 2,290,648         3,652,050         1,432,895         3,354,601         3,305,537         4,210,718         5,050,073         5,742,056         6,172,883         
   CT 2,290,648                        3,652,050                        

Minimum Target Reserve - One Month in General Fund789,552            874,161            967,287            967,287            830,492            843,741            848,346            876,861            906,514            

Available Funds 1,501,096         2,777,888         465,608            2,387,314         2,475,044         3,366,978         4,201,727         4,865,194         5,266,369         

1 
Reflects 2013 Property Tax transfer to the Evans Fire Protection District

City of Evans General Fund Long Range Financial Plan

15



 

 

General Fund Revenue Summary 
  
The following graph illustrates the breakdown of revenue used to fund general City operations. 
 

REVENUE BY SOURCE – General Fund 
Fiscal Year 2013 

 
 

Source Revenue Percentage 
Sales Tax $       5,547,082 53.1% 
Property Tax $          404,359 3.9% 
Other Taxes $          776,000 7.4% 
License & Permits $          823,100 7.9% 
Intergovernmental $          624,243 6.0% 
Charges for Services $          433,395 4.2% 
Fines & Forfeitures $          410,500 3.9% 
Misc $          138,987 1.3% 
Transfer from Other Funds $       1,294,737 12.4% 

Total Revenue $     10,452,403 100% 

16



 

 

General Fund Expenditure Summary 
  

 
EXPENDITURES – General Fund 

Fiscal Year 2013 
 

             
                  
                 Expenditures by Category                    Expenditures by Type 
                                                                                                                                     

                

17



 

 

Water Fund 
  

The Water Fund is a municipal utility enterprise fund established to account for the operational and infrastructure costs, and related 
revenues, necessary for providing the distribution of treated water and untreated irrigation water (non-potable) to Evans’ residential 
and commercial customers. This fund includes all services required for the operation and maintenance of the water distribution 
facilities, the non-potable irrigation delivery systems, and the Evans Town Ditch.  
 
Service Areas 
 
Administration – includes the expenses necessary for the administration of the Water Fund including water resource management, 
water treatment costs, legal issues, and engineering services.  

 Continue to pursue acquisition of additional water resources as allowed within the budget. 
 Participate in the ongoing efforts to develop the Northern Integrated Supply Project (NISP) and the Windy Gap Firming 

Project (WGFP). 
 Implement a more aggressive water conservation program designed to reduce the City’s water consumption over time by 

approximately 13%. 
 

Distribution – includes expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the City’s treated water delivery system including 
all water mains, fire hydrants, valves, meters, and other appurtenances. 

 Implement the first phase of a fix base automated meter reading system to increase efficiencies and improve accuracy. 
 Develop a leak detection program consistent with standards as set forth by the American Water Works Association. 
 Develop a meter change out program based upon meter size consistent with the recommendations of the American Water 

Works Association. 
 
Non-potable Irrigation – includes expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the City’s non-potable irrigation 
system including all pump stations, water mains, valves, meters, and other appurtenances.  

 Create a standardized approach to pump station maintenance to ensure a long and useful life for the City’s non-potable 
irrigation pump stations. 

 Ensure the City’s non-potable infrastructure is accounted for within our Asset Management Plan and future replacement costs 
are appropriately allocated through the 5 year Capital Improvement Plan. 

 Investigate options to expand the City’s non-potable irrigation system and further reduce the City’s demand for treated 
water. 

 
 
 
 

18



 

 

Evans Town Ditch – includes expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the historic Evans Town Ditch delivery 
system including the delivery ditch, all head gates, check structures, dump structures, conduits, and other appurtenances. 

 Ensure the Evans Ditch infrastructure is accounted for within our Asset Management Plan and future replacement costs are 
appropriately allocated through the 5 year Capital Improvement Plan. 

 Develop a plan for major maintenance of the Evans Ditch facilities and integrate into future plans. 
 Investigate options to expand the utilization of the Evans Town Ditch and further reduce the City’s demand for treated water. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues

Base Rate (base, np, penalty, misc) 1,199,842            1,388,149            1,541,409            1,541,409            1,724,652            1,774,972            1,822,725            1,824,825            1,826,925            

Variable Rate 2,134,111            2,297,724            2,343,250            2,343,250            2,450,000            2,511,250            2,574,031            2,638,382            2,704,342            

Interest Income 2,908                   4,532                   17,160                 17,160                 15,747                 20,507                 21,020                 21,545                 22,084                 

Total Operating Revenues 3,336,861            3,690,406            3,901,819            3,901,819            4,190,400            4,306,728            4,417,776            4,484,752            4,553,350            

Operating Expenses

Fixed costs 1,093,233            1,259,216            1,481,052            1,481,052            1,575,404            1,574,370            1,602,737            1,631,739            1,653,537            

Variable costs 1,766,910            2,201,953            2,126,118            2,126,118            2,168,530            2,212,031            2,256,159            2,301,169            2,347,080            

Total Operating Expenses 2,860,143            3,461,169            3,607,170            3,607,170            3,743,934            3,786,401            3,858,896            3,932,908            4,000,616            

Net Revenues over (under) expeneses 476,718               229,236               294,648               294,648               446,465               520,328               558,880               551,844               552,734               

Transfer for Major Maint (w AMP) 49,558                 78,253                 62,024                 62,024                 149,248               200,602               219,988               193,086               173,388               

Transfer for Water Conservation 88,033                 102,948               217,132               217,132               281,470               299,219               317,873               337,213               357,262               

Net Operations after Transfers 339,127               48,035                 15,493                 15,493                 15,747                 20,507                 21,020                 21,545                 22,084                 

Running Cash Balance 723,838               771,873               787,366               804,526               820,274               840,781               861,800               883,345               905,429               

Target Operating Reserve - 3 months                 715,036                 819,992                 832,004                 832,004                 828,304                 821,645                 830,259                 850,652                 867,491 

Available Funds 8,802                   (48,119)                (44,637)                (27,477)                (8,030)                  19,136                 31,541                 32,693                 37,937                 

Water Rights Revenues

Payment in Lieu & Water Rights Lease 19,032                 42,166                 60,000                 60,000                 45,000                 47,000                 49,200                 51,620                 54,282                 

Interest Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Water Rights Expenses

Water Right Acquisition -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Annual Net 19,032                 42,166                 60,000                 60,000                 45,000                 47,000                 49,200                 51,620                 54,282                 

Running Balance (270,056)             (227,890)             (167,890)             (107,890)             (62,890)                (15,890)                33,310                 84,930                 139,212               

System Maintenance & Expansion Revenue

Tap Fee Revenue 73,881                 59,562                 50,000                 172,000               50,000                 55,000                 60,500                 66,550                 73,205                 

Water Meter Sales 5,645                   5,272                   1,384                   11,000                 1,500                   1,384                   1,384                   1,384                   1,384                   

Interest Income 15,120                 9,585                   23,320                 23,320                 2,733                   -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfer for Major Maint (w AMP) 49,558                 78,253                 62,024                 62,024                 149,248               200,602               219,988               193,086               173,388               

Transfer for Water Conservation 88,033                 102,948               217,132               217,132               281,470               299,219               317,873               337,213               357,262               

Other 

Total System Expansion Revenue 232,236               255,620               353,859               485,475               484,950               556,205               599,744               598,233               605,239               

System Maintenance & Expansion Expenses

Capital Outlay 248,151               227,912               1,430,987            1,430,987            393,063               1,566,838            7,175,209            1,560,000            4,352,000            

Major Maintenance & AMP 49,558                 78,253                 62,024                 62,024                 149,248               200,602               219,988               193,086               173,388               

Water Conservation Projects 88,033                 102,948               217,132               217,132               281,470               299,219               317,873               337,213               357,262               

Misc Expenses 52,856                 28,175                 179,020               58,500                 28,500                 18,500                 18,500                 18,500                 18,500                 

Total Expenses 438,598               437,288               1,889,162            1,768,642            852,281               2,085,159            7,731,569            2,108,799            4,901,150            

Annual Net (206,361)             (181,668)             (1,535,303)          (1,283,167)          (367,330)             (1,528,954)          (7,131,825)          (1,510,566)          (4,295,911)          

Running Balance 1,853,607            1,671,938            136,635               388,771               21,441                 (1,507,513)          (8,639,338)          (10,149,904)        (14,445,815)        

Total Water Fund Revenue 3,450,539            3,806,990            4,036,523            4,168,139            4,289,632            4,410,112            4,528,860            4,604,306            4,682,221            

Total Water Fund Expenses 3,298,741            3,898,457            5,496,333            5,375,813            4,596,215            5,871,560            11,590,465          6,041,707            8,901,767            
CT -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    

(306,583)                           

Changes in Working Capital (281,968)             43,570                 

Total Water Fund Cash Balance 2,254,509            2,206,612            746,802               998,938               692,355               (769,092)             (7,830,697)          (9,268,098)          (13,487,644)        

2,254,509                         2,206,612                         

City of Evans Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan

20



Water Fund

Expense Summary 

2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues

Base Rate (base, np, penalty, misc) $1,199,842 $1,388,149 $1,541,409 $1,541,409 $1,724,652 $1,774,972 $1,822,725 $1,824,825 $1,826,925

$10.50 $12.50 $14.50 $14.50 $16.50 $17.00 $17.50 $17.50 $17.50

 Base Major Maintenance Calculator

Administrative GF OH 520,200               621,238               651,053               651,053               674,143               694,918               705,342               715,922               726,661               

Water Fund Payroll, Supplies & Services 573,033               637,978               829,999               829,999               901,261               879,452               897,396               915,817               926,876               

AMP -                       -                       42,000                 42,000                 95,000                 43,260                 60,471                 56,822                 56,822                 

Major Maintenance Projection 106,609               128,933               18,357                 18,357                 54,248                 157,342               159,517               136,264               116,566               

Total Base Rate $1,199,842 $1,388,149 1,541,409            $1,541,409 $1,724,652 $1,774,972 $1,822,725 $1,824,825 $1,826,925

Major Maintenance and AMP in Fixed Costs

Asset Management Plan -                       -                       42,000                 42,000                 95,000                 43,260                 60,471                 56,822                 56,822                 

Major Maintenance Projects: -                       -                       18,357                 18,357                 4,248                   157,342               159,517               136,264               116,566               

Equipment -                       -                       1,667                   1,667                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Line Work 49,558                 78,253                 -                       -                       50,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total In Fixed Costs 49,558                 78,253                 62,024                 62,024                 149,248               200,602               219,988               193,086               173,388               

Budgeted CIP from System Expansion Tap Fee Revenue

Windy Gap Storage Project 188,151               167,912               197,987               197,987               203,063               121,838               4,935,209            -                           -                           

NISP Storage Project 60,000                 60,000                 40,000                 40,000                 40,000                 20,000                 375,000               393,000               3,551,000            

Whitney Way - Crossing 37th St -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           272,000               -                           

West Service Rd. - 31st St. to 35th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       50,000                 -                           -                           20,000                 -                           

Ashcroft Draw Drop & Measurement Str -                       -                       -                       -                       100,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           

38th St. - Belmont to Burlington -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

37th St. - 17th Ave. to Latham -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           450,000               -                           -                           -                           

37th St - 23rd Ave to 17th Ave -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           580,000               -                           -                           

36th St. - 11th Ave. to Idaho -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           100,000               

35th St. - Empire to Trinidad -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           200,000               -                           -                           

23rd Ave. - 37th to 42nd St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           390,000               -                           -                           

Larson Ave. - 41st  St. to 42nd St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           90,000                 -                           -                           -                           

Montrose St. - 34th St. to 37th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           170,000               -                           -                           -                           

North-South Split Adj -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           75,000                 -                           -                           -                           

31st St. & Empire Measurement Facility -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           30,000                 -                           -                           -                           

42nd St. & Golden Measurement Facility -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           30,000                 -                           -                           -                           

37th St. Sediment Removal Basin -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           10,000                 -                           

17th Ave.  Sediment Removal Basin -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           10,000                 -                           -                           -                           

17th Ave. to 42nd St. Lining -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           75,000                 -                           -                           

37th St. to 11th Ave. Lining -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           75,000                 -                           

Evans WWTF Lining -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           125,000               

Brantner Rd & Ind Pkwy 43rd to 44th St -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           50,000                 400,000               -                           

Boulder St. - 36th St. to 37th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           65,000                 

Central Ave. Pipe - 40th St. to 39th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           20,000                 -                           

Empire St. - 33rd St. to 35th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           117,000               

Idaho St. Pipe - 42nd St. to 40th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           25,000                 

Golden St. Pipe - 40th St. to 37th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           25,000                 

SCADA - North-South Split -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           10,000                 -                           

SCADA - 17th Ave. Drop -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           35,000                 -                           

SCADA - Head of Ditch -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           35,000                 -                           -                           -                           

SCADA - Measurement Facility -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           35,000                 -                           -                           -                           

SCADA - Purney Drop -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           35,000                 -                           -                           

SCADA - Ashcroft Draw -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           35,000                 -                           -                           

SCADA - 31st St. & Empire -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           17,000                 

SCADA - 42nd St. & Golden -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           17,000                 

Pleasant Acres Dr. - 32nd St. to 11th Ave. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           260,000               -                           

Denver St. - 39th St. - 40th  St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           65,000                 -                           

Greeley Investment Fees -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           300,000               -                           -                           

North Point Pumphouse Improvements -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           100,000               -                           -                           -                           

Tuscany Non-Potable Ponds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           275,000               -                           -                           -                           

Tuscany Pumphouse -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           200,000               -                           -                           

State St. - 33rd St. to 35th St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           80,000                 

Southgate Dr. - Denver to 31st St. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           230,000               

Non-Potable Master Plan Update -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           75,000                 -                           -                           -                           

21



Grapevine Irrigation Upgrades -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           50,000                 -                           -                           -                           

Carryforward Projects -                       -                       533,000               533,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

State Farm Waterline - 30th to St Farm Rd -                       -                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

17th Ave. Drop & Measurement Structure -                       -                       250,000               250,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

11th Ave Waterline - 32nd to Cemetery -                       -                       410,000               410,000               -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

Total in CIP from Tap Fee revenue 248,151               227,912               1,430,987            1,430,987            393,063               1,566,838            7,175,209            1,560,000            4,352,000            

Total Capital in Attachment I (includes water rights) 297,709               306,165               1,451,011            1,451,011            447,311               1,724,180            7,334,726            1,696,264            4,468,566            

Other Balance Accumulators

Major Maintence Accumulator

Revenue 1,202,750            1,392,682            1,558,569            1,558,569            

Expenses 1,142,791            1,337,469            1,543,076            1,543,076            

Balance 59,959                 115,171               130,664               130,664               

Water Conservation Accumulator

Revenue 2,134,111            2,297,724            2,343,250            2,343,250            

Expenses 1,854,943            2,304,901            2,343,250            2,343,250            

Balance 279,168               271,991               271,991               271,991               

Carryforward Projects Detail

CIP Tap Construction -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Equipment -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Hwy 85 Improv -                       -                       93,000                 93,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

State Farm Water Line -                       -                       75,000                 75,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Lakeside/State Farm Fire Flow -                       -                       45,000                 45,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Ashcroft Draw Drop & Measurement Str -                       -                       50,000                 50,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

North Point Storage -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

17th Ave Pump Staton -                       -                       250,000               250,000               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Riverside Lake overflow -                       -                       20,000                 20,000                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       533,000               533,000               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

22



 

 

 
Wastewater Fund 

  
The Wastewater Fund includes services required for the operation and maintenance of the City’s two wastewater collection and 
treatment systems (original Evans system and the Hill n’ Park System).  
 
Service Areas 
 
Wastewater Treatment – includes the expenses necessary to provide wastewater treatment services to the community that meet 
applicable Federal and State regulations related to the environmental water quality parameters. This includes all treatment plant 
operational expenses and laboratory compliance testing services.  

 Begin to implement the recommendations from the Wastewater Utility Plan prepared by HDR Engineering. 
 Develop a public information campaign designed to educate the public on environmental issues and challenges facing the 

wastewater utility. 
 Initiate design of the first phases of treatment plant improvements. 

 
Wastewater Collection – includes the operations, maintenance and replacement of 
the City’s waste water collection system.  

 Maintain our current level of treatment operations and infrastructure 
maintenance for both systems. 

 Begin to implement the recommendations from the Wastewater Utility Plan 
prepared by HDR Engineering. 

 Limit treatment compliance violations at both plants. 
                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues

Sewer Sales 1,022,094         1,027,800         1,091,776         1,091,776         1,216,525         1,223,742         1,231,095         1,238,586         1,246,216         

Other 11,029              2,254                3,902                3,902                1,927                2,052                2,262                2,211                1,805                

   Total Operating Revenues 1,033,123         1,030,054         1,095,678         1,095,678         1,218,452         1,225,794         1,233,357         1,240,796         1,248,021         
   CT 1,033,123                       1,030,054                       1,095,678                       1,095,678                       1,218,452                       1,225,794                       1,233,357                       1,240,796                       1,248,021                       

Operating Expenses

Personnel 289,261            284,713            295,864            295,864            328,280            343,157            358,290            374,091            390,588            

Operations 300,002            310,895            313,756            313,756            336,256            318,800            323,582            328,436            333,362            

Debt 115,005            113,361            111,707            111,707            115,454            108,626            107,048            110,762            110,762            

Transfer for Overhead to General Fund 363,517            412,824            428,095            428,095            430,156            441,221            447,840            454,557            461,376            

Total Operating Expenses 1,067,785         1,121,793         1,149,423         1,149,423         1,210,147         1,211,805         1,236,760         1,267,846         1,296,088         

Net Revenues over (under) expenses (34,662)             (91,739)             (53,745)             (53,745)             8,305                13,990              (3,403)               (27,050)             (48,067)             

Running Cash Balance 273,966            182,227            128,482            128,482            136,787            150,777            147,373            120,323            72,256              

Target Operating Reserve - 3 months 266,946            280,448            287,356            287,356            302,537            302,951            309,190            316,962            324,022            

Available Funds 7,019                (98,222)             (158,873)           (158,873)           (165,750)           (152,175)           (161,817)           (196,638)           (251,766)           

System Maintenance Revenues

Revenue -                    -                    -                    -                    16,818              16,818              16,818              16,818              16,818              

Interest 4,662                495                   495                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   Total System Maintenance Revenues -                    4,662                495                   495                   16,818              16,818              16,818              16,818              16,818              

System Maintenance Expenses

Supplies & Services -                    -                    396,500            396,500            -                    300,000            -                    -                    -                    

Asset Management -                    -                    15,000              15,000              145,700            72,100              24,363              91,738              10,429              

Capital Outlay - Regulatory Compliance -                    -                    717,000            717,000            -                    -                    -                    1,730,000         8,426,000         

Capital Outlay - Major Maintenance 38,449              4,396                -                    -                    -                    224,000            -                    -                    307,000            

   Total System Maintenance Expenses 38,449              4,396                1,128,500         1,128,500         145,700            596,100            24,363              1,821,738         8,743,429         

Annual Net (38,449)             266                   (1,128,005)        (1,128,005)        (128,882)           (579,282)           (7,545)               (1,804,920)        (8,726,611)        

Running Cash Balance 732,367            732,633            (395,372)           (395,372)           (524,254)           (1,103,536)        (1,111,081)        (2,916,001)        (11,642,612)      

System Expansion Revenues

System Development Fees 32,592              35,165              25,000              78,881              25,000              27,500              30,250              33,275              36,603              

Interest 2,323                2,597                2,597                2,909                3,284                3,696                4,150                4,649                

   Total System Expansion Revenues 32,592              37,488              27,597              81,478              27,909              30,784              33,946              37,425              41,252              

System Expansion Expenses

Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   Total System Maintenance Expenses -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Annual Net 32,592              35,165              25,000              78,881              25,000              27,500              30,250              33,275              36,603              

Running Cash Balance 79,863              115,028            140,028            193,909            218,909            246,409            276,659            309,934            346,536            

Total Waste Water Fund Revenue 1,065,715         1,072,204         1,123,770         1,177,651         1,263,179         1,273,396         1,284,121         1,295,039         1,306,090         

Total Waste Water Fund Expenses 1,106,234         1,126,189         2,277,923         2,277,923         1,355,847         1,807,905         1,261,123         3,089,584         10,039,517       

(92,669)             

Changes in Working Capital 21,400              1,376                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Cash 1,371,344         1,318,735         164,583            218,464            125,795            (408,714)           (385,716)           (2,180,261)        (10,913,688)      

   CT 1,371,343                1,318,735                

Restricted Cash 238,195            252,108            

2010-2017 Capital Improvement Plan

2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 V2 2012 Projected 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

WWTP Expansion to 2.0 MGD - Planning/Design -                    -                    410,000 410,000 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Evans - Biological Process Improvements -                    -                    250,000 250,000 -                    -                    -                    -                    250,000

Evans - UV Disinfection -                    -                    57,000 57,000 -                    -                    -                    -                    57,000

HNP - Biological Process Improvements -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,469,000 7,122,000

HNP - UV Disinfection -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    261,000 1,304,000

HNP - Stand By Power -                    -                    -                    -                    224,000 -                    -                    -                    

Evans Wastewater Utility Plan 38,449 4,396 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Waste Water Fund Total 38,449 4,396 717,000 717,000 0 224,000 0 1,730,000 8,733,000

City of Evans Waste Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan

24



 

 

Storm Drainage Fund 
  

The Storm Drainage Fund provides the operations and maintenance of 
the City’s storm drainage system including the curb and gutters, storm 
inlets, and storm sewers throughout the community. 
 
Service Areas 
 
Storm Drainage – includes the expenses necessary for the 
operations and maintenance of the City’s storm drainage system 
including the curb and gutters, storm inlets, and storm sewers 
throughout the community. The storm drainage fund provides for the 
replacement of existing assets as well as the construction of new 
systems as recommended by the storm drainage master plan. The 
storm drainage fund also serves to manage the City’s water quality 
efforts as it relates to storm drainage. 
 
 

 

25



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V2 Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Cash 483,503             736,495             607,775             114,639             41,966               (136,618)           (154,617)           (355,012)           

Operating Revenues

Storm Drainage Sales 424,015             427,430             442,551             455,800             464,916             474,214             483,699             493,373             

Other 5,534                 37,077               891                    1,261                 462                    (1,503)               (1,701)               (3,905)               

   Total Operating Revenues 429,549             464,507             443,442             457,061             465,378             472,712             481,998             489,467             
   CT 429,549                            464,507                            443,442                            457,061                            465,378                            472,712                            481,998                            489,467                            

Operating Expenses

Storm Personnel 12,161               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Storm Operations 8,001                 10,920               25,984               41,374               26,994               27,399               27,810               28,227               

Total Operating Expenses 20,162               10,920               25,984               41,374               26,994               27,399               27,810               28,227               

Transfer Out - Overhead to GF (125,907)           (136,994)           (147,909)           (158,360)           (162,967)           (165,412)           (167,893)           (170,411)           

Operating Income (Loss) after transfers 283,480             316,593             269,549             257,327             275,416             279,901             286,295             290,829             

Other Income (Expense)

Plant Inv Fees/Cash in Lieu of Fees 6,139                 30,203               10,000               10,000               11,000               12,100               13,310               14,641               

Capital Outlay (46,136)             (503,905)           (772,685)           (340,000)           (465,000)           (310,000)           (500,000)           (600,000)           

Asset Management (23,584)             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Changes in Working Capital 9,509                 51,973               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Increase (Decrease) in Cash 252,992             (128,720)           (493,136)           (72,673)             (178,584)           (17,999)             (200,395)           (294,530)           

Ending Cash 736,495             607,775             114,639             41,966               (136,618)           (154,617)           (355,012)           (649,542)           
   CT 736,495                            607,775                            

Target Reserve - 3 months                  5,041                  2,730                  6,496                10,343                  6,749                  6,850                  6,953                  7,057 

2010-2017 Capital Improvement Plan

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget V2 Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

23rd Ave. Drainage Basin Improvements 46,136               475,850             233,066             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

23rd Ave Outfall Design -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    600,000             

Hwy 85/37th St Drainage -                    -                    40,000               -                    235,000             -                    -                    -                    

Ashcroft/Tuscany Ditch & Trail Improvements -                    28,055               84,619               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

15th Ave. Storm Sewer - 37th to 36th -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    200,000             -                    

US 34 By-pass Storm Sewer Improvements -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    300,000             -                    

37th St. Storm Sewer - Trinidad to Boulder -                    -                    285,000             340,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    

Riverbend Storm Sewer Outfall -                    -                    10,000               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

31st St. Storm Sewer - US 85 to ditch outfall -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

41st St. Storm Sewer - Boulder St. to Golden St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000               -                    -                    

41st St. Storm Sewer - Central to Boulder -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000               -                    -                    

Boulder St. Storm Sewer - 40th St. to 41st St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000               -                    -                    

Boulder St. Storm Sewer - 41st St. to 42nd St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000               -                    -                    

Central St./State St. Storm Sewer Rehab. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    150,000             -                    -                    

37th St. Storm Sewer - Boulder to US 85 -                    -                    40,000               -                    230,000             -                    -                    -                    

42nd Street Storm -                    -                    80,000               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Storm Drainage Total 46,136               503,905             772,685             340,000             465,000             310,000             500,000             600,000             

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected ending fund balance after operations.1,000,512          798,591             343,769             295,544             139,845             130,489             (44,588)             

City of Evans Storm Drainage Fund Long Range Financial Plan

26



 

 

Emergency Contingency Fund 
  

The Emergency Contingency Fund was established in the City Home Rule Charter. The fund is required to have a balance equal to 
25% of actual General Fund expenditures of the preceding year. At any time the fund is less than this amount, the City Council shall 
budget and appropriate funds, not exceeding 5% of estimated General Fund revenues, until the fund is again equal to 25% of actual 
General Fund expenditures of the preceding year. The City Council must approve any expenditure by an ordinance declaring an 
emergency. The ordinance must be passed by five affirmative votes of the Council. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

27



 

 

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 
 
This fund is administered for the care and maintenance of the cemetery grounds; for the capital improvements necessary for upkeep 
of the cemetery; and for equipment necessary for maintenance of the Evans City Cemetery.  
 

28



 

 

Fire Impact Fund 
 

The Fire Impact Fund was established to provide or to assist in providing the financing to acquire, develop and maintain fire stations 
and apparatus. The fire/rescue impact fees are established annually by the City Council by ordinance and are paid by property 
owners desiring to develop property with improvements. The current fee is in Section 15.50.100 of the City Municipal Code.  
 

 

29



 

 

Street Impact Fund 
 
The Street Impact Fee Fund manages the design and construction of the City’s major roadway improvement projects as identified by 
the City of Evans Transportation Plan. Financing priorities are established in the City’s five year Capital Improvement Plan which is 
approved on an annual basis by the City Council. The current fee is in Section 12.20 (Exhibit A) of the City Municipal Code.  

30



 

 

Park Impact Fund 
 
 This fund is administered for the acquisition, development, and improvements to the City’s park system, trail system, and 
 miscellaneous park amenities utilizing impact fees collected from building permits for new construction of residential 
 dwellings. The current fee is in Section 15.52.045 of the City Municipal Code. 

           

31



 

 

Conservation Trust Fund 
 
Funds distributed quarterly from the Colorado State Lottery are utilized for the development and maintenance of new conservation 
sites, or capital improvement or maintenance for recreational purposes on public sites in accordance with Colorado Revised Statutes.  

 

32



 

 

 
Refuse Collection Fund 

 
The Refuse Collection Fund is a special revenue fund established to account for expenses and revenues related to the provision of 
trash collection and recycling services to the citizens of Evans. The refuse collection program also includes clean up programs 
conducted in the spring and fall of each year.  
 

 
 

33



 

 

General Obligation Bond Fund 
 
The General Obligation Bond Fund is a debt service fund established to account for repayment of the 1996 voter approved GO bond 
issuance. The funds were used for the expansion of the Evans Community Complex. The bond repayment is funded through the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Greeley providing for the sharing of sales taxes collected within certain commercial 
areas of the City of Greeley. The annual rate of interest on the bond issuance is between 2.0% and 3.75% and will mature in 2016.  
 

 
 

34



 

 

Capital Projects - Streets Fund 
 

 
The Capital Projects – Streets Fund manages the City’s major assets such as roadways, alleys, and public rights-of-way through the 
on-going maintenance and repair of existing assets and the construction of new assets. Priorities are established in the City’s five 
year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which is approved on an annual basis by the City Council.  

 

35



 

 

Volunteer Fireman’s Pension Fund 
 
The Volunteer Fireman’s Pension is a trust fund established to account for the management of the Volunteer Fireman’s Pension.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 

 

Cemetery Endowment Fund 
 

 
The Cemetery Endowment Fund is a trust fund established to earn interest on a restricted corpus. The interest earned is utilized for 
the general care and maintenance, capital improvements, and equipment acquisition for the maintenance of the Cemetery.  
 

37



Attachment A – 2013 Budget Summary

Fund/Department  Revenue Wages

Supplies & 

Services Asset Management Transfers Debt Capital Miscellaneous    Net Impact

General Fund

General Government 9,157,666         1,184,701       1,364,280        20,000                    1,059,175            -               -                   -                          

Community Development 344,054       209,569        -                       

Public Safety 3,041,506       267,404           25,443                    740,000                  

Public Works 844,481       666,216        239,000               

Culture, Parks & Recreation 700,610          581,641           37,000                    

Total General Fund 9,157,666         6,115,352       3,089,110        321,443                  1,059,175            -               -                   740,000                  (49,064)            

Emergency Contingency -                    -                  -                   -                          (99,438)               -               -                   -                          (99,438)            

Cemetery Perpetual Care 3,000                -                  -                   -                          -                      -               75,000             -                          (72,000)            

Fire Impact 580                   -                  -                   -                          -                      -               -                   -                          580                  

Street Impact 3,987                -                  -                   -                          -                      -               -                   -                          3,987               

Parks Impact 2,362                -                  -                   -                          -                      -               85,000             -                          (82,638)            

Conservation Trust 172,886            -                  -                   -                          -                      -               200,000           (27,114)            

Refuse Collection 641,556            -                  596,640           -                          (32,078)               -               -                   -                          12,838             

Debt Service  - GO Bonds 507,000            -                  600                  -                          -                      505,186       -                   -                          1,214               

Capital Projects  - Streets 1,277,624         -                  190,000           -                          335,000               -               1,287,000        -                          135,624           

Water 4,289,632         164,693          3,215,069        95,000                    (674,143)             -               447,311           -                          (306,584)          

Waste Water 1,263,179         328,280          336,256           145,700                  (430,156)             115,454       -                   -                          (92,667)            

Storm Drainage 467,061            -                  41,374             -                          (158,360)             -               340,000           -                          (72,673)            

Volunteer Firefighters Pension -                    -                  -                   -                          -                      -               -                   -                          -                   

Cemetery Trust 6,000                -                  6,000               -                          -                      -               -                   -                          -                   

TOTAL CITY 17,792,533       6,608,325       7,475,049        562,143                  -                      620,640       2,434,311        740,000                  (647,935)          

38



Attachment B - Revenue and Expense Trends

Year -  Revenue  Personnel  Supplies & Services  Asset Management  Debt  Capital  Miscellaneous 
  3  

Net Impact

2010 17,436,424        7,406,960            5,761,972                   51,919                      695,211             1,440,789          106,275                1,973,298       

2011 18,465,106        7,293,703            6,826,972                   498,984                    865,527             1,896,272          109,221                974,427          

2012
1

18,233,421        6,462,986            7,889,160                   428,907                    1,168,634          6,261,500          1,628,882             (5,606,648)      

2013
2

17,792,533        6,608,326            7,475,048                   562,143                    620,640             2,434,311          740,000                (647,935)         

2014 17,462,075        6,826,013            7,756,343                   415,360                    108,626             4,548,180          449,240                (2,641,687)      

2015 17,921,655        7,127,023            7,313,450                   384,834                    107,048             14,999,726        458,674                (12,469,100)    

2016 17,614,956        7,441,059            7,447,170                   448,561                    110,762             12,066,264        468,306                (10,367,166)    

2017 17,750,856        7,761,085            7,572,174                   367,251                    110,762             27,041,566        478,141                (25,580,123)    

* Does not include intrafund transfers

1)
 2012 Council Adopted Budget

2)
 The majority of the revenue decrease from 2012 to 2013 is due to the property tax mill transfer to the Evans Fire Protection District.

3)
 Volunteer firefighter pension distributions and starting in 2012, transfer to Evans Fire Protection District.

 16,250,000

 16,500,000

 16,750,000

 17,000,000

 17,250,000

 17,500,000

 17,750,000

 18,000,000

 18,250,000

 18,500,000

 18,750,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Revenue Trends

Series2

36%

41%

3%

3%
13%

4%

2013 City Expenditures

Personnel

Supplies & Services

Asset Management

Debt

Capital

Miscellaneous

39



 

 

Attachment C – Summary of Personnel Positions 
 

The following summary is to provide information regarding the number of employees by department. Please note that in prior years, some staff 
was coded to different departments than identified on the following summary.  This summary reflects the number of benefited employees in the 
City. Part time, non-benefited employees are not included here, but are included in the totals on Attachment D, which accurately reflects the total 
personnel expense in the City. 
 
 
 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 
City Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Assistant to City 
Manager 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Management Intern .5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Admin Services       
Director/City Clerk 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Customer Service Unit 3.75 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
HR/Risk Management 
Director 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

HR Analyst 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Finance Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Accountant 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Accounting Tech 1.75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Sales Tax Specialist 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 13 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 

  
Personnel Highlights 

 2010 reflects reorganization of staff from Customer Service Unit to City Manager’s office. 
 2010 reflects the reorganization of staff from Customer Service Unit to Finance. 
 2010 reflects the reorganization of the Deputy Clerk position to a .75 customer service administrator. 
 2010 reflects the elimination one accounting tech.  
 2011 reflects the reclassification of .75 Accounting Tech to Customer Service Unit.  
 2011 reflects the reclassification of 1 Accounting Tech to Sales Tax Specialist.  

 
 

 
 

General Government Personnel 

40



 

 

 
 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Chief Building Official 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Building & Development 
Manager 

0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Building Inspector 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 
Admin Assistant 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 

Code Enforcement 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Community & Economic 
Development Director 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
 
Personnel Highlights 

 2010 reflects the reorganization of two Code Enforcement positions from Public Safety to Community Development.  
 2010 reflects the reorganization of GIS Coordinator to Engineering.  
 2010 reflects the elimination of one Code Enforcement position and the City Planner. 
 2012 reflects the reclassification of Chief Building Official to Building Services Manager. 
 2013 reflects the reclassification of Building Inspector to Admin Assistant.  

 
 

 

Community Development Personnel 

41



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Police Chief 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Police Officers 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 
Police Admin 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Municipal Court 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 

 
Personnel Highlights 

 2010 reflects the reorganization of two Code Enforcement positions from Public Safety to Community Development.  
 2010 reflects the elimination of one police officer.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Public Safety Personnel 

42



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Engineers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Superintendent 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Foreman 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Technician 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
GIS Coordinator 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 

 
Personnel Highlights 

 2010 reflects the reorganization of one Technician to the Waste Water Fund. 
 2010 reflects the elimination of one Engineering Technician, one Technician, and one Mechanic. 
 

 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Recreation Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Superintendent 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Building Maintenance 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Rec Coordinator 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 
Rec Specialist 0 0 1.5 0 0 0 0 0 
 7 7 7.5 7 7 7 7 7 

Personnel Highlights 
 2010 reflects the reorganization of the Rec Supervisor to a Coordinator and one Superintendent to Manager. 
 2010 reflects elimination of two Rec Coordinator’s, four Technicians, one Forester, one Coordinator, two Custodians. 
 2010 reflects the full time benefited technician positions, whereas 2008 & 2009 reflect full time equivalents.  
 2011 reflects the elimination of the vacant park superintendent position.  
 2012 reflects the reclassification of 1.5 rec specialist from part time non-benefited to part time benefited. 
 2013 reflects the reorganization of 1.5 rec specialist and one rec coordinator to two rec coordinators.   

 

Public Works Personnel 

Culture, Parks & Recreation Personnel 

43



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
General Government 13 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 
Community Development 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Public Safety 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 
Public Works 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 
Culture, Parks, Rec 7 7 7.5 7 7 7 7 7 
 83 82 82.5 82 82 82 82 82 

 
 

 
 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Superintendent 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

 
 2010 reflects the reorganization of one Technician from Public Works. 
 2010 reflects the elimination of one Utility Locator and one Foreman. 

 
 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
General Fund 83 82 82.5 82 82 82 82 82 
Water Works Fund 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Waste Water Fund 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
 90 89 89.5 89 89 89 89 89 

General Fund Personnel by Department 

Water Fund Personnel

Waste Water Fund Personnel 

Total City of Evans Personnel 

44



Attachment D – Summary of Personnel Expenditures

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual 
1)

Actual Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

General Government

Regular 979,157 1,081,592 1,096,662 1,127,775 1,156,444 1,209,146 1,264,199 1,321,705

Over Time 127 -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Part Time 32,608 -                         55,911 56,926 58,546 59,424 60,315 61,220

Community Development

Regular 441,410              344,832                  364,915                  329,054              317,275              331,267              345,876              361,129              

Part Time -                      -                         2,847 15,001 15,001 15,662                16,353                17,074                

Public Safety

Police & Muni Court

Regular 2,702,288           2,939,104               2,914,723                2,957,246           3,086,786           3,222,914           3,365,044           3,513,443           

Over Time 52,719                30,460                    73,296                    73,260                73,260                76,491                79,864                83,386                

Part Time 7,651                  -                         32,266                    11,000                11,000                11,485                11,992                12,520                

Fire

Regular 1,154,643           1,131,843               -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Over Time 28,924                40,370                    -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Part Time -                      -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Public Works

Regular 775,236              835,816                  850,415                  844,481              879,185              917,957              958,439              1,000,706           

Over Time 3,491                  -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Part Time -                      -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Culture, Parks & Rec

Regular 599,932              307,554                  291,718                  324,002              334,495              366,076              399,048              433,475              

Over Time 11,867                2,979                     4,700                      4,700 4,700 4,700 4,700 4,700

Part Time 190,100              157,869                  338,326                  371,909 376,909 376,909 376,909 376,909

General Fund Total 6,980,154           6,872,419               6,025,778                6,115,353           6,313,601           6,592,031           6,882,739           7,186,268           

Regular 131,825              131,825                  135,944                  159,295              163,856              171,066              178,593              178,593              

Over Time 4,746                  4,746                     5,400                      5,398                  5,398                  5,636                  5,636                  5,636                  

Water Fund Total 136,571              136,571                  141,344                  164,693              169,254              176,702              184,229              184,229              

Regular 285,861              277,086                  290,464                  322,883              337,759              352,893              368,693              385,191              

Over Time 3,400                  7,627                     5,400                      5,398                  5,398                  5,398                  5,398                  5,398                  

Waste Water Fund Total 289,261              284,713                  295,864                  328,280              343,157              358,290              374,091              390,588              

Regular 12,161                -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Storm Drainage Fund Total 12,161                -                         -                          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

TOTAL WAGES 7,418,147           7,293,703               6,462,986                6,608,327           6,826,012           7,127,022           7,441,058           7,761,085           

-12% -5% -16% 2% 3% 4% 4% 4%

1) Does not include expenditures in the amount of $3,526 from the Fire Impact Fund as these were a one year, one time project costs

** All positions are budgeted in the category they spend the majority of their time.

45



Attachment E - Supplies and Services By Program for Operating Funds

2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

GENERAL FUND
1)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Council 64,466                101,589              114,590              114,590              106,159              107,751              109,368              111,008              112,673              

City Council Projects 35,873                25,000                44,024                44,024                44,684                45,354                46,035                46,725                47,426                

ESTIP 37,137                42,027                40,000                40,000                40,000                40,000                40,000                40,000                40,000                

ESTIP Sam's Club 243,675              275,769              274,040              274,040              278,150              250,823              -                      -                      -                      

City Manager 30,630                54,138                86,247                86,247                89,041                90,376                91,732                93,108                94,504                

City Clerk 12,531                25,158                33,480                33,480                32,967                33,462                33,964                34,473                34,990                

HR / Risk Mgr 296,736              289,586              318,580              318,580              380,877              386,590              392,389              398,275              404,249              

IT 104,523              112,673              110,437              110,437              103,036              102,981              104,526              106,094              107,686              

Customer Service Unit 8,251                  9,195                  14,210                14,210                14,423                14,639                14,859                15,082                15,308                

Elections 13,275                -                      20,000                20,000                23,000                

Finance 99,242                129,030              114,746              114,746              108,046              109,667              111,312              112,982              114,676              

Public Facilities 139,772              197,405              241,430              241,430              166,896              169,400              171,941              174,520              177,138              

GG TOTAL S&S 1,086,111           1,261,568           1,411,783           1,411,783           1,364,280           1,374,044           1,116,125           1,132,267           1,148,651           

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Community & Economic Dev. 19,847                79,503                158,702              158,702              84,870                26,143                26,535                26,933                27,337                

Building Inspection 11,225                13,871                12,485                12,485                52,672                53,462                54,264                55,078                55,904                

Neighborhood Services 69,144                54,527                78,155                78,155                72,027                70,408                71,464                72,536                73,624                

CD TOTAL S&S 100,216              147,901              249,342              249,342              209,569              150,012              152,262              154,546              156,865              

PUBLIC SAFETY

Municipal Court 64,001                57,712                69,020                69,020                70,055                71,106                72,173                73,255                74,354                

Police 131,601              195,747              205,250              205,250              197,349              200,309              203,314              206,363              209,459              

Fire 178,480              288,770              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

PS TOTAL S&S 374,082              542,230              274,270              274,270              267,404              271,415              275,486              279,619              283,813              

46



2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

PUBLIC WORKS

Maint of Condition 378,697              349,412              424,204              424,204              379,817              385,514              391,297              397,167              403,124              

Engineering 7,872                  19,276                25,240                25,240                18,984                19,268                19,557                19,851                20,149                

Fleet 160,380              176,334              207,060              207,060              210,166              213,318              216,518              219,766              223,062              

PW Administration 16,824                16,888                56,404                56,404                57,250                58,108                58,980                59,865                60,763                

PW TOTAL S&S 563,773              561,910              712,908              712,908              666,216              676,210              686,353              696,648              707,098              

CULTURE, PARKS & REC

Rec Administration 7,660                  1,261                  11,723                11,723                11,899                12,078                12,259                12,443                12,629                

Recreation 54,717                64,894                98,252                98,252                99,726                101,222              102,740              104,281              105,845              

Senior Citizens 43,173                164,482              248,010              248,010              251,730              255,506              259,338              263,228              267,177              

Museum 1,469                  1,375                  508                     508                     515                     523                     531                     539                     547                     

Aquatics 1,221                  1,990                  27,274                27,274                27,683                28,098                28,520                28,947                29,382                

Parks 108,473              129,953              130,935              130,935              164,899              167,373              169,883              172,431              175,018              

Cemetery 584                     841                     3,857                  3,857                  3,915                  3,974                  4,033                  4,094                  4,155                  

Forestry 20,675                16,156                26,235                26,235                21,274                21,593                21,917                22,246                22,580                

CPR TOTAL S&S 237,970              380,952              546,793              546,793              581,641              590,365              599,221              608,209              617,332              

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 2,362,153           
2)

2,894,561           3,195,095           3,195,095           3,089,110           3,062,047           2,829,447           2,871,289           2,913,758           

CT to LRP 2,362,153                 2,894,561                 3,195,095                 3,195,095                 3,089,110                 3,062,047                 2,829,447                 2,871,289                 2,913,758                 

1) Supplies and services do not include asset management, capital or debt payments.

2) The increase in General Fund Supplies and Services for 2011 is related to one-time expenditures appropriated from excess 2010 revenues. 

47



Attachment F - Supplies and Services By Fund

2010 2011 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual
1)

Actual Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

General Fund 2,362,153      2,894,561      3,195,095      3,195,095      3,089,110      3,062,047      2,829,447      2,871,289      2,913,758      

Parks Impact 58                  -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Conservation Trust -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Fire Impact 32,907           89,031           -                -                -                -                -                -                -                

Refuse Collection 527,205         516,089         554,300         554,300         596,640         612,555         623,921         635,292         635,292         

Debt Svc - GO Bonds -                600                600                600                -                -                -                -                

CIP -  Streets 170,095         163,043         190,000         190,000         190,000         190,000         190,000         190,000         190,000         

Water 2,358,321      2,839,229      3,210,925      3,090,405      3,215,069      3,239,710      3,313,225      3,388,471      3,465,489      

Waste Water 300,002         310,895         710,256         710,256         336,256         318,800         323,582         328,436         333,362         

Storm Drainage 8,001             10,920           25,984           25,984           41,374           26,994           27,399           27,810           28,227           

Cemetery Trust Fund 3,230             8,000             2,000             2,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             

TOTAL CITY S&S 5,761,972      6,831,768      7,889,160      7,768,640      7,475,048      7,456,106      7,313,575      7,447,298      7,572,129      

1) The increase in General Fund Supplies and Services for 2011 is related to one-time expenditures appropriated from excess 2010 revenues. 

48



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Actual Actual Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Tri Pointe Land Purchase 49,585        49,585        559,317       -                -              -              -              -              
Jack Meakins HVAC Lease 30,811        197,971      -              -                -              -              -              -              
General Fund - Total 80,396        247,556    559,317     -              -             -            -            -            
G.O. Debt Issuance 499,810      504,610      497,610       497,610        -              -              -              -              
Waste Water Fund 115,005      113,361      111,707       115,454        108,626      107,048      110,762      110,762      
Total Annual Obligation 695,211      865,527    1,168,634  613,064      108,626      107,048    110,762    110,762    

Additions Retirement Balance 

G.O. Debt Issuance 1,840,000    -                1,840,000   -              
Sewer CWRPDA Notes 580,872       -                115,454      465,418      
Total Obligation 2,420,872  -              1,955,454   465,418    

Description of Debt

Summary of Total Obligations

Attachment G - Summary of Debt

Summary of Annual Obligations

Balance 
12/31/12

Sewer CWRPDA Notes: The April 1998 Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority  “CWRPDA”) loan is for $1,141,617. The 
note is due in semiannual installments beginning February 1, 1999, through August 1, 2018. Interest rates range from 3.7% to 5.375%. The 
November 1998 CWRPDA loan is for $400,000. The note is due in semiannual installments of $15,352 beginning August 1, 1999, through 

February 1, 2019. Interest rate on this note is 4.5%.

Tri Pointe Land Purchase: On February 6, 2007, the City entered into a agreement with Arsenault Holding LLC to acquire vacant land know 
as Tri-Pointe. The agreement required interest only at 5.75% for 20 years at which time the Note shall be discharged and cancelled by the note 
holder and all outstanding principal thereunder shall be waived and forfeited by the holder thereof as a charitable donation by the note holder. 

The principle was paid off early in 2012.
Jack Meakins HVAC Lease: During 2005, the City entered into a capital lease for the purchase of HVAC equipment. The lease requires 48 

quarterly payments of $7,703 beginning in January 2007 and bears interest at the rate of 4.15% per annum. Through 2007, the City has 
capitalized $289,068 of assets under this capital lease. The City paid this debt off early in 2011. 

G.O. Debt Issuance: During 2003, the City issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, dated May 1, 2003, due December 1, 
2016, with semiannual interest payments beginning June 1, 2003, and annual principal payments beginning December 1, 2003, through 

December 1, 2016. Interest rates range from 2.0% to 3.7%. Proceeds from the bonds were used to construct and furnish an addition to the city 
complex and to refinance the City’s 1996 General Obligation Bonds. Repayment of this debt is made by the G.O. Debt Service Fund. The City 

plans to call the remaining bonds in December of 2013, three years early.

49



Attachment H - Asset Management Plan

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Actual Actual Budget Rev #2 Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

General Fund - Administration 17,310   30,045          20,000           20,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         

General Fund - Public Works -         174,427        160,000         239,000       100,000       100,000       100,000       100,000       

General Fund - Police 8,400     210,302        120,448         25,443         100,000       100,000       100,000       100,000       

General Fund - Fire 20,210   60,626          43,125           -               -               -               -               -               

General Fund - Recreation 5,999     -                25,000           37,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         

General Fund - Total 51,919   475,400        368,573         321,443       300,000       300,000       300,000       300,000       

Water Fund -                42,000           95,000         43,260         60,471         56,822         56,822         

Waste Water Fund -                15,000           145,700       72,100         24,363         91,738         10,429         

Storm Drainage Fund 23,584          -                 -               -               -               -               -               

Total 51,919   498,984        425,573         562,143       415,360       384,834       448,560       367,251       

The City of Evans asset management philosophy can be described as managing assets to minimize the total life cycle cost of owning and 

operating our assets worth $5,000 or more, have a life greater than one year, and have maintenance needs for the next five years, while 

delivering good quality service citizens expect and desire. The goal of our asset management plan is to ensure that the best decisions are being 

made throughout an asset’s useful life to optimize performance, reduce risk of failure, and minimize the cost of operation and maintenance.

In alignment with the City’s asset management philosophy our financial policies state under VI. Capital Planning & Budgeting Policies, 

Policies, 8. Asset Management Plan (AMP)  – The city will develop an AMP that protects investment and minimizes future maintenance and 

replacement costs.  The City will maintain accurate information on the condition, life span use and replacement cost of their capital assets to 

assist in long term planning.  The AMP will also indicate future major repairs and their costs, utility costs and other operating costs. a. 

Equipment replacement – The City will estimate its equipment replacement (items over $1,000 with a life greater than one year) and 

maintenance needs for the next five years and will update this projection each year.  From this projection, a maintenance and replacement 

schedule will be developed and followed. B.  Cash for equipment – Equipment replacement should be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.  

Equipment should be replaced on a useful life basis considering optimum trade-in value and maintenance costs.

50



Attachment I - Summary of Capital Expenditures by Fund

2010                

Actual

2011           

Actual

2012              

Budget

2013           

Projected

2014            

Projected

2015             

Projected

2016   

Projected

2017  

Projected

General Fund -               5,920           1,680,500    -               -                -                -                -                

Parks Impact -               62,855         46,000         85,000         -                -                -                -                

Conservation Trust 95,839         459,382       204,670       200,000       -                300,000        -                -                

Street Impact 12,983         -               332,000       -               1,350,000     6,150,000     4,200,000     12,650,000   

Fire Impact -               -               46,405         -               -                -                -                -                

Capital Proj - Streets 949,673       553,649       1,011,229    1,287,000    785,000        905,000        3,940,000     590,000        

Water Works 297,709       306,165       1,451,011    447,311       1,724,180     7,334,726     1,696,264     4,468,566     

Waste Water 38,449         4,396           717,000       -               224,000        -                1,730,000     8,733,000     

Storm Drainage 46,136         503,905       772,685       340,000       465,000        310,000        500,000        600,000        

Total 1,440,789    1,896,272    6,261,500    2,359,311    4,548,180     14,999,726   12,066,264   27,041,566   

51



 

 

Attachment J – Intra Fund Transfers and Methods 
 
The City of Evans maintains several funds based on the use of revenues in each fund. Intra fund transfers are made to reimburse funds for 
expenses (or expenditures in enterprise funds) recognized in separate funds.  Transfers are identified by the fund paying the other fund. 
 

Transfer from General Fund to Emergency Contingency Fund 
2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Budget 

$450,989 (77,637) $75,076 ($99,438) 
   
The transfer is required by Section 8.7-1 of the Evans’ Home Rule Charter. In 2011 and 2013 the Emergency Contingency Fund is over funded 
and the General Fund will recognize a transfer in from the Emergency Contingency Fund. 
 

Transfer from Refuse Fund to General Fund 
2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Budget 

$29,577 $30,450 $31,026 $32,078 
 

The transfer reimburses the General Fund for the administrative expenditures related to managing the refuse services for citizens. The transfer is 
calculated at 5% of revenue, or the amount necessary to sustain fund reserve requirements, whichever is less.   
 
  Transfer from Water Fund to General Fund 

2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Budget 
$520,200 $621,238 $651,053 $674,143 

 
The transfer reimburses the General Fund for wages, supplies, and services expended to benefit the Water Fund. In 2007 and before, this transfer 
was for supplies and services only, General Fund employees were budgeted by percentage in different funds. The 2008 transfer includes a 
reimbursement based on the actual cost of Administrative, Finance and Public Works employee’s time working on Water Fund activity.  The 
following Waste Water and Storm Drainage fund transfers are based on the same methods.  
 

Transfer from Waste Water Fund to General Fund 
2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Budget 

$363,517 $412,824 $428,095 $430,156 
Overhead transfer description as identified in the Water Fund. 
 

Transfer from Storm Drainage Fund to General Fund 
2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Budget 2013 Actual 

$125,907 $136,994 $147,909 $158,360 
Overhead transfer description as identified in the Water Fund. 

52



 

 

Attachment K – 2013 Budget Resolution  
 

 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  XX-2012 

 
A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND, AND ADOPTING A BUDGET 
FOR THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING THE 1ST DAY OF JANUARY, 
2013 AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, has appointed the City Manager to prepare and submit a proposed 2013 

budget to said governing body at the proper time; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted a proposed 2013 budget to the governing body on October 2, 2012 for its consideration; and  
 

WHEREAS, upon due notice, published in accordance with the law, said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a 
designated place, a public hearing was held on October 2, 2012 and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register objections to 
said proposed budget; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  That estimated revenues and transfers in for 2013 for each fund are as follows: 
General Fund $10,551,841 
Emergency Contingency                                                                         0           
Cemetery Perpetual Care 3,000 
Fire Impact  580 
Street Impact                                             3,987 
Parks Impact     2,362 
Conservation Trust   172,886 
Refuse Collection                                                             641,556 
Debt Service G.O. Bond  507,000 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,612,636 
Waterworks 4,289,632 
Wastewater 1,263,179 
Storm Drainage 467,061 
Firemen's Pension 0 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

53



 

 

 
Section 2.   That estimated expenditures and transfers out for 2013 for each fund are as follows: 

 
General Fund $10,600,906 
Emergency Contingency                                                                   99,438        
Cemetery Perpetual Care                                                                  75,000 
Fire Impact  - 
Street Impact             -  
Parks Impact     85,000      
Conservation Trust   200,000 
Refuse Collection                                                             628,718 
Debt Service G.O. Bond  505,786 
Capital Projects-Streets                                                                1,477,000 
Waterworks 4,596,215 
Wastewater 1,355,847 
Storm Drainage 539,734 
Firemen's Pension                                                                                       - 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 
 

Section 3.  That the 2013 Budget as submitted, amended, hereinabove summarized by fund, and summarized in Exhibit “A” be and the 
same is approved and adopted as the budget of the City of Evans, Colorado, for the year stated above. 
 

Section 4.  That the 2013 Budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the Mayor of the City of Evans, Colorado, and made a 
part of the public records of the City of Evans, Colorado. 
 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on this 2th day of     
October    , 2012. 

 
 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
 By:                                                            

     Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
 
                                         

City Clerk 
 

54



Attachment L - One Time Funding Requests

2013

Description Requested Amount Requested By

Repair/Upgrade Skate Park 75,000                   PW

Landscape Ashcroft/Tuscany Channel 100,000                 PW

Landscape Prairie View Drive Center Median (partial) 124,500                 PW

Conference Room Image 10,000                   FIN,CM,HR

Wayfinding Signage Phase II 50,000                   ED

Landscape South Side of 37th St. - 23rd to 35th Ave. 40,000                   PW

Entry Way Signage 150,000                 ED

Pave cemetery internal roads 135,000                 PW-CEM

Land Acquisition 500,000                 ED

Retail Strategy Phase III 150,000                 ED

Demolition of JMRC 200,000                 ED

River Corridor Development Plan Phase I 25,000                   CD

Trails Master Plan 15,000                   CD

Financial Model 25,000                   ED

IT Infrastructure replacements 8,500                     IT

Branding Program 25,000                   ED

Data Base 12,000                   ED

Incentive Programs for Residents 2,500                     ED

Incubator 50,000                   ED

Marketing Services 5,000                     ED

Matching Grants 10,500                   ED

Real Estate Promotion 1,700                     ED

Primary Employent Strategy - Partnership with Greeley 10,000                   ED

Taser Program 48,000                   PD

Work Stations 18,000                   PD

Web Site Improvements 3,000                     PW-ENG

Expand Geodetic Control Network 30,000                   PW-ENG

Public Safety Radio Replacement 50,000                   FD/PD

Pave the Operations Center entryway and parking lot 50,000                   PW

Radiant heat for existing garage 40,000                   PW-PARKS

Radiant heat for equipment/material facility 60,000                   PW-PARKS

Construction new cemetery storage facility 10,000                   PW-CEM

Construct new cemetery material storage bins 6,000                     PW-CEM

Construct new material storage bins at Ops Center 30,000                   PW-OPS 

Construct new de-icer storage facility 90,000                   PW-OPS 

De-icer applicator tank 15,000                   PW-OPS 

Equipment facility extension (to hazmat storage area) 110,000                 PW-PARKS 

Concrete pad on south side of equipment/material facility 10,000                   PW-PARKS 

Equipment facility extension (for sanders) 110,000                 PW-OPS 

Tree Spade 6,000                     PW-PARKS 

Gradall (used) 120,000                 PW-OPS 

Total 1,846,200              

55



 

 

 
Attachment M– Financial Policies  
 

 
As part of the Financial Management System, City Council reviews and updates the Financial Polices in February of each year. The 
policies provide long term and consistent direction for the financial management of the City. These policies outline the best practices 
to insure the citizen’s funds are used appropriately, efficiently, and effectively. 
 
I. Financial Planning Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A long range plan that estimates revenue and expenditure activity in the City as impacted by regional and national economies is necessary to support the 
Council and community in decisions they make regarding City services.  This planning must recognize the effects of economic cycles on the demand for 
services and the City's revenues.  Financial planning should be designed to ensure the delivery of needed services as defined by policy and the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
POLICIES 
The financial planning and subsequent budgeting for all funds shall be based on the following policies: 
 
1.  Five year plans - The City will prepare annually a five (5) year financial long range plan (LRP) for each fund.  Each plan will include revenues, 
expenditures and other sources and uses with sufficient detail to identify trends and items with major impact. 
 
2. Conservative revenue estimates - Revenue estimates should be prepared on a conservative basis to minimize the possibility that economic fluctuations 
could imperil ongoing service programs during the budget year. 
 
3.  Include contingencies - Expenditure estimates should anticipate contingencies that are foreseeable. 
 
4.  Include asset management plan (AMP) on LRPs. The five-year AMP plans will include equipment, major maintenance and associated expenses less 
than $100,000.  Major renovation or maintenance projects will be identified on long range plans. 
 
5.  Use proven methods - The City will constantly test both its planning methodology and use of planning tools in order to provide information that is 
timely, accurate and widely disseminated to citizens and staff.  
 
6. The City recognizes it is in a complex regional economic system.  The City should have the capacity to evaluate and anticipate changes in both regional 
and national economic systems in order to engage in strategic financial and management planning.  The purpose of these plans will be to allow the 

56



 

 

Council and citizens to evaluate the impact of the financial needs of these programs on the regional economy and to coordinate funding needs with all 
funds. 
 
7. Department responsibilities - Department Directors and the Finance Department will share responsibility for the preparation of financial plans for 
operations and asset management needs.  The City Manager requires a minimum of two reviewers of detailed work sheets used to generate the long range 
plans.  The Finance Department will assist in developing appropriate systems to monitor and update the long range plans. Each department will meet with 
the Council to approve strategic policy, identify goals, and performance measures, at intervals determined by the City Manager.   
 
8.  Regular status reports - The Staff will continually update the long range plans when any significant change is anticipated.  The Staff may distribute the 
long range plans to the Council at any time to inform the Council.  The long range plans will be submitted to the Council for approval at least twice a 
year.  The first update will follow the closing of the year and will include a final comparison of actual to budget for the completed year.  The second report 
will be presented before the presentation of the annual budget and will include an update on the current budget and estimates. 
 
9.  Rate structure - The plans must disclose revenue assumptions including rate structures and consumption.  The long range plans will include annual rate 
increases based on inflation unless the Council overrides this direction. 
 
10.  Staffing - The plans will identify staffing levels including justification for any changes. 
 
11. Expenditures - The plans will include expenditures based on the service levels / policies and work load indicators (population, strategy, etc.) approved 
by the Council. 
 
12.  Include reserves - The plans will include reserves for operations, capital and debt service coverage as established in the Financial Policies and / or as 
required to issue bonds. 
 
II. Budget Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Staff is responsible for preparing, managing and reporting on the City's annual budget.  This function is in compliance with the Home Rule Charter 
and direction of the Council. 
 
A. GENERAL BUDGET POLICIES 
The annual budget will be administered based on the following policies: 
 
1.  The Fiscal Year - The fiscal year of the City is the calendar year, January 1st through December 31st.  The City may adopt budgets for a term of one or 
more fiscal years. The City Manager shall prepare and submit to the City Council on or before the fifteenth of October of each year a recommended 
budget covering, at a minimum, the next fiscal year. The purpose of the long range plans is to provide the City Council with a continuous budget update.  
 

57



 

 

2.  Present a balanced budget to the Council - The City will pay for all current expenditures with current revenues.  The City will avoid budgetary 
procedures that balance current expenditures at the expense of meeting future years' expenses, such as postponing maintenance and other expenditures, 
accruing future years' revenues, or rolling over short term debt.  The exceptions to this policy would be planned equipment purchases, operating 
maintenance and capital projects based on accumulated funding over the years. 
 
3.  Increase efficiency in all City operations - The City staff will identify programs to increase efficiency in order to provide for "long-term cost savings" to 
the City.  This may include the use of technology, revised organizational structures or other tools which may be identified. Eliminating out dated practices 
is encouraged.   
 
4.  Promote investment in our future - The City staff, wherever possible will take a long term view of investments (people and resources) and emphasize 
"quality" operations which encourage productivity for today and the future. 
 
5. Share resources / services throughout the City -The City staff will explore ways to share staff, training resources and equipment / supplies in order to 
more effectively utilize resources.   
 
6.  Identify funding for new services or service levels - Proposals to add new services or increase existing services will be presented with revenue alternatives 
to fund or subsidize the new service levels.  This includes initial costs and ongoing operations. 
 
7.  Asset Management Plan - The budget will provide adequate maintenance of capital plant and equipment and for their orderly replacement.  
 
8. Employee programs -  The City recognizes that employees are the most valuable asset of the organization and commits to fund this resource 
appropriately including adequate funding for all retirement systems, benefit packages and employee incentive programs including training. 
 
9. Overhead allocations - The budget will include transfers or overhead allocations for expenditures / services in the General Fund that benefit other City 
funds.  The formula for calculating this transfer or overhead allocation may include revenues, staff and or supplies and services.  The formula shall be 
reviewed annually.   
 
10. Fund Reserves – Cash reserve policies directly relate to fund accounting.  Fund accounting is used as a control device to segregate financial resources 
and ensure that the segregated resources are used for their intended purposes.  Cash reserves provide stability for operations and can cushion the impact to 
City programs during times of economic downturns.  Reserves targets are established based on the type of Fund. 
 

a. Operating funds will accumulate and maintain 3 months of operating reserves based on estimated personnel, supplies and services and AMP 
expenditures.  Operating reserves allow for the efficient management of cash flow and the opportunity to expand services or fund one time 
opportunities during the year. The Emergency Contingency Fund, is required by the City Charter, and includes the Colorado Tax Payer Bill of 
Rights (TABOR) reserves. The General Fund budget must also provide for a minimum of one month’s operating reserves. 

 

58



 

 

b. Reserves for capital funds, including impact fee funds, are established based on the budgeting methodology. Capital fund budgets are based on 
the estimated current year ending cash balance for the next year.  Subsequently the reserves are funded by the revenues restricted to capital funds.  
Capital projects may include a contingency for unexpected expenditures. 

 
c. Debt service fund reserves are based on required debt reserves established when debt is issued. 
 
d. Fund reserves - The first priority of the City will be to maintain target reserves by individual funds based on the above target.  The City Council 

may identify specific reserves on an individual basis.  When a cash reserve deficit exists the City Council will identify the specific fund to off set 
the deficit and a plan to increase the reserve in the fund.  

 
11. Comprehensive Plan - The Financial Plan (Budget) and the Comprehensive Plan are considered the two key tools to provide a vision of the future and 
a method of accomplishing those goals.  Based on the value of these two documents, the City will develop a methodology to cross reference both tools in 
order to accomplish the goals of the community as expressed through the City Council.   
 
Municipal code – Should concur with Long Range Financial Plans and the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
12. Grants to non-profit or community organizations – The City of Evans may provide grants to qualified non-profit or community organizations that 
provide services within the City. A grant may not exceed $10,000 per organization per year. Any funding provided to non-profit or community 
organizations beyond $10,000 will not be considered a grant and must follow all other City purchasing policies.  
 
B. BUDGET PREPARATION 
Each year the Staff will prepare the annual budget following these policies: 
 
1. Council direction as goals - It is the responsibility of the Staff to prepare an annual budget to implement policy and accomplish the goals identified.  
Staff will identify the impact to the budget, including alternatives when new service levels are approved by the Council.   
 
2. Budget schedule - The staff will present the Financial Policies by June, Revenue projections in July, Operations in August and Capital in September.  
The goal is approval of the Budget Ordinance and Revenue Rate Resolution at the first regular Council meeting in October which meets the requirements 
of the City Charter. 
 
3. Revenue policies – The annual budget process is based on the initial revenue projections. Revenue projections will include rate review, annual inflation 
increases and frequency estimates. Existing revenue estimates start with a minimum of 75% of the projected trends based on the past year and year to date 
projections.  Volatile and/or new revenue sources are estimated at a maximum of 50% of the prior year or industry projections. 
 
4. Expenditure policies – Expenditure budget preparation begins with existing staff including any appropriate adjustments for, merit, and increased cost of 
benefits. Salary ranges and benefit packages should be periodically reviewed with comparable communities based on population, general fund tax revenues 
and cost of living.  

59



 

 

  
Supplies and services should be constantly reviewed for efficiency and effectiveness, eliminating outdated programs and identifying appropriate citizen 
service levels. The operating budget should include the Asset Management Plan (AMP) to provide for the most effective delivery of services. 
 
Debt is funded per required schedules including reserves. 
 
Capital is budgeted based on priorities, available funding and estimated fund balances. 
 
5. City Manager budget review - The City Manager will review the details of each proposed budget for efficiency and compliance with Council direction.  
Department Directors may include supplemental budget requests in the annual budget request to the City Manager and ultimately the Council. 
 
6. Budget presentation - The annual budget document will be prepared based on guidelines identified by the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA).  Traditionally this begins with an introduction to the budget followed by more detailed information presented by fund and department.  The 
budget introduction includes a budget message and a highlights section identifying the major issues addressed by the City and how the budget is adopted 
to address those issues.  Expenditures shall be presented by categories.  
 
7. Citizen participation - The budget process will provide for the full participation of the public and ensure opportunities for public hearings and citizen 
participation. 
 
8.  Public hearings - Open public hearings at regularly scheduled City Council meetings and work sessions as required by the Home Rule Charter and to 
provide citizens additional opportunities for input regarding the proposed budget will be held. 
 
9.  State, Charter and other requirements - The City will adopt the budget in accordance to State, Home Rule Charter and other  requirements and certify 
the mill levy to the County by the required date. 
 
10. Grants - Groups requesting grants from the City of Evans shall provide a description of services provided within the City;  current year organizational 
budget summary identifying revenues and expenditures; financial statement for most recently completed fiscal year; list of Board of Directors and key 
officers, or active volunteers; and demonstration of non-profit status. 
 
11.  Funding subsidy - Funds that receive a subsidy from another fund, in addition to fees and charges or dedicated revenues will include a rationale for 
the subsidy; and a means for determining the annual level of that subsidy or conditions under which the subsidy should be eliminated. 
 
C. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 
Council approval establishes the annual budget  limits.  Authority for Departments to work within the limits approved by the Council is essential for 
efficient management of the City.  Departments will not exceed the approved budget without the prior approval of the City Council.  The budget will be 
managed based on the following policies: 
 

60



 

 

1.  Purchasing and accounting system - The City will maintain a system for monitoring the budget during the fiscal year.  Adequate tools must be available 
to assist staff in managing the budget.  The budget system will provide for budget approval before any expenditure is committed by City staff.  This system 
shall also provide reports and query systems which will be used by the staff to prepare Council reports.   
 
2. Council reports - Staff will prepare monthly reports for Council review. Additional reports will be presented in coordination with the annual budget 
process and financial audit.  The Council report will include information on revenues and expenditures, comparing actual to budget, and performance 
measures related to service levels.  The report shall follow the same format as the budget approval.   
 
3.  Level of approval - The Council will approve specific grants for qualified non-profit or community organizations.   
 
In relationship to Department Budgets the Council will approve: 
 

a. The number of full time positions and dollar amount for total regular staff, temporary staff and overtime by fund and category as defined by the 
LRP’s. 

 
b. The dollar amount for supplies and services for each fund and category as defined by the LRP’s.   

 
c. Each specific Capital request including start up cost and ongoing maintenance. 

 
d. The total of expenditures from each fund including transfers in and out.   

 
4.  Amending the approved budget - The staff may submit requests to amend the approved budget during the year.  Additional requests will be made only 
after the staff has determined that no savings exists that can be transferred.  Departments will provide information to the City Council during regular 
Council meetings.  (Departments may not expend funds until after the City Council has approved the additional expenditure).  The Finance Department 
will prepare appropriation ordinances officially amending the budget.  Departments may expend funds after City Council approval and before adoption of 
the appropriation ordinance.  
 

a. Transfers of existing budget - The City Manager may approve transfer of budget between Categories and Departments within a fund. The City 
Council must approve budget transfers between funds in the form of an ordinance. 

 
b. Transfers between categories and programs - Department Directors may request City Manager approval to transfer budget between categories 

(payroll, supplies & services, and capital) within a Department.  The Manager will review requests to ensure compliance with the goals and 
objectives of the annual budget as approved by the City Council.  
 

c. Supplemental appropriation requests – Staff will prepare a prioritized list of one–time supplemental budget requests which will be reviewed by the 
Finance Committee, then presented to the City Council for final approval. 

 

61



 

 

5.  Budget savings - During the budget year, some expenditure savings can be realized by Departments. The City Manager may allow transfers of savings to 
fund other identified needs within the department.    
 
6. Encumbrance of Fixed Expenses – Predictable fixed expenditures will be encumbered on purchase orders in the first month of each year. 
 
D. INTERGOVERNMENTAL BUDGETS 
Some costs of the City could be influenced by other governments, either because of duplication of services or mandates imposed by State and Federal 
governments.   
 
1. Payment for services - The City will budget expenditures for grant-funded programs only after grant award or letter of commitment and only for the 
amount of grant award.  City overhead or "indirect" costs for grant-funded programs will be included in all grant proposals, where permitted.  All grants 
will be reviewed for long term impacts to the City. 
 
2.  Outside involvement - The City will aggressively oppose State or Federal actions that mandate expenditures that the Council considers unnecessary.  
The City will pursue intergovernmental funding to support the incremental cost of those mandates. 
 
3.  Intergovernmental agreements - The City will work with other governments to identify the jurisdiction most capable and appropriate to provide specific 
public services. When the City cannot transfer responsibility for service delivery, it will consider intergovernmental agreements and contracts for service 
delivery. 
 
E. STATE of COLORADO AMENDMENT 1 
 
On November 3, 1992, the Citizens of the State of Colorado approved Amendment 1, aka The Tax Payers Bill of Rights (TABOR).  Amendment 1 
specifically and significantly addresses the following issues: 1) spending limitations (revenues), 2) operating reserves, 3) emergency reserves and 4) debt 
service. 
 
On April 5, 1994, the Citizens of Evans approved the following revenue change in compliance with Amendment 1: 

City of Evans, Colorado 
Amendment One Election Question 

QUESTION #1 - SHALL THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, WITHOUT INCREASING OR ADDING ANY TAXES OF ANY KIND, BE PERMITTED TO COLLECT, 
RETAIN, AND EXPEND THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE CITY’S SALES AND USE TAX, ACCOMMODATIONS TAX, NON-FEDERAL GRANTS, FEES ON FISCAL YEAR 
SPENDING, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE RESTRICTIONS ARTICLE X, SECTION 20 OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION, FROM THE DATE OF 
JANUARY 1, 1993 AND THEREAFTER? 
 
The City will be in compliance with the remaining requirements of Amendment 1 specifically including election, debt and reserve requirements.  
Considering the reasons behind the original approval of the Tabor Amendment (lack of trust in government), the City shall take an active role in citizen 
participation, communication and relationship building with our citizens in order to maintain and increase our level of trust and accountability.  The City 

62



 

 

shall participate in regional and state wide organizations because the actions of other municipalities or levels of government shall influence state wide 
legislation which may impact Evans. 
 
III. Accounting, Auditing, & Financial Reporting Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The City will maintain a system of financial management, control and reporting for all operations, departments and funds. This will ensure that overall 
City goals and objectives will be met and will instill confidence in citizens that the City is well managed and fiscally sound. 
 
POLICIES 
The Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting systems for the City will be based on the following polices: 
 
1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) - The City will maintain its accounting records and report on its financial condition and results of 

operations in accordance with State and Federal law and regulations, and GAAP. 
 
2. The City will classify governmental fund balances as follows: 

 
Non-spendable – amounts that cannot be spend either because they are in non-spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact.  

 
Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or 
because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Committed—amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council is the highest 
level of decision making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by City Council. 
 
Assigned—amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be used or specific purposes. 
Under the City’s adopted policy, the City Manager may assign amounts for specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned—all other spendable amounts. 

 
3. Independent audit - An independent firm of certified public accountants will annually perform a financial and compliance audit of the City's financial 
statements as required by state statute.  Their opinions may be contained in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), and the Report 
on Compliance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 (if required based on federal funding levels). 
 

63



 

 

4.  Internal auditing - To complete a full range of audit services, the City's Finance Department will supervise performance audits which review cash 
management, revenues, expenditures, purchasing and other areas that impact the City budget. 
 
5. Accounting internal controls - The City will maintain an internal control structure consisting of three elements: 
 

e. Control environment - Consisting of an "overall attitude and awareness of actions" as they influence the City.  The management and staff shall 
consider all the financial implications of decisions, both current and long term. 

 
f. Accounting system - An effective accounting system will result in the 1) Identification and recording of all valid transactions 2) Description on a 

timely basis of the type of transaction in sufficient detail to permit proper classification of the transaction for reporting purposes. 3) Recording of 
the transaction in the correct time period. 4)  Proper presentation of all transactions and related disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
g. Control procedures - Consists of 1) Proper authorization of transactions and activities, 2) Adequate segregation of duties, 3) Adequate documents 

and records,  4) Adequate safeguards regarding access and use of assets and records, 5) Independent checks on performance. 
 
A. ACCOUNTING STRUCTURE 
All City funds and operations must work to achieve the City's mission and goals. 
 
1.  Number of funds - The City will minimize the number of funds, Departments, programs and account codes.  The funds will be categorized by standard 
GAAP functional classifications and the creation of new funds will be approved by the City Council. The development of new funds, Departments, 
programs, and accounts will be recommended by the Finance Department and approved by the City Manager. 
 
2.  Statement of purpose - Each fund in the City will have a Statement of Purpose which consists of:   
 

a. Intent - Purpose(s) of the fund. 
 

b. Revenue restrictions - Source(s) of revenues to the fund and descriptions of restriction. 
 

c. Contingency - Size and use of contingency, if any.  Contingency levels shall be based on the uncertainties associated with the purposes of the fund 
or project. 

 
d. Reserves - Size and purpose of required reserves.  Required reserves will be based on operating needs or debt needs and prudent management 

requirements.  
 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Financial reports will provide direction and guidance in several areas; 
 

64



 

 

1. Budgetary comparisons - Comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget. 
 
2.  Financial condition and results of operations - Assessing the changes in fund balances as a result of operations. 
 
3. Compliance - Assisting in determining compliance with finance-related laws, rules and regulations. 
 
4. Efficiency and effectiveness - Assisting in evaluating management and staff in efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
5.  Manager reports – The Finance Department will prepare reports at the end of April and each month thereafter identifying the difference between 
actual and budget for revenues and expenditures by fund.  This requirement is also included in the Budget Policies.  Reports will identify the current and 
projected variance in budget as well as progress on performance measures.  These reports will be presented to the City Manager and may be included in 
Council updates. 
 
C. CHECK CONTROLS 
The City will follow these policies related to check controls and the signing of checks: 
 
1. Payment discounts - The City will take advantage of payment discounts to reduce expenditures when the rate offered is deemed favorable compared to 
the rate of investment income the City is earning on cash. 
 
2. Invoice control - All invoices shall be mailed directly to the Finance Department and the vendor will reference an approved purchase order number. 
 
3. Check preparation - No check will be prepared for approval without an authorized purchase order, compliance with the procurement procedure and 
adequate budget unless specifically identified in these policies. 
 
4.  Check requirements - In most cases the staff will be required to complete the following steps to obtain a check: 
 

a. Budget - Adequate budget must exist before staff considers a purchase. 
 

b. Requisition - Staff will complete a "requisition" which identifies the vendor, amount, description of purchase, use of items as it relates to the 
budget (account coding), and budget available.  In accordance with established limits, authorized staff, Department Directors, and/or City 
Manager approve requisitions based on efficiency, appropriateness and general financial and management practices. 

 
c. Purchase order - Approved requisitions become purchase orders and only at this time can an order be placed with an "approved vendor".  Vendors 

must be established as legitimate businesses meeting administrative and IRS requirements.   
 

d. Invoices - Invoices are directed first to the Finance Department for entry into the accounting system for cash flow and cash discount reviews. 
 

65



 

 

e. Department approval – After Finance Department entry, invoices are approved by Departments that the items or services received  were 
acceptable.  

 
f. Contracts - Major purchases may require following the procurement procedure (V.14.) which may include Council approval of the contract before 

a requisition can be completed. 
 
5. Check register - The City Manager reviews and approves the check register. 
 
6. Distribute checks - Checks will be mailed following approval.  Staff will copy and distribute to the Council the check register on a monthly basis. 
 
IV. Revenue Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The City must consider its discretionary revenues as a group rather than in isolation.  Both individual revenues and the total package must be viewed in 
the context of broader City goals.  The City must be sensitive to the balance between the need for services and the City's ability to raise fees, charges and 
taxes to support City services.  As much as is possible and feasible, City services that   benefit specific users should be paid for by fees and charges to 
provide maximum flexibility in use of general taxes to meet the cost of broader public services. 
 
POLICIES 
Revenues and rates in the LRP and annual budget will be based on the following policies: 
 
1.  Specific use of services - Charges for services that benefit specific users should recover full costs, including all direct costs, indirect costs, depreciation on 
capital plant and equipment, and General Fund overhead.  Departments that impose fees or service charges should prepare and periodically update cost-
of-service studies for each such service.  Competing City policies may dictate a subsidy of a portion of the costs of such services.  
 
2.  Diversify revenue - The City should strive to diversify its revenues in order to maintain needed services during periods of declining economic activity.  
 
3.  Recapture investment - The revenue structure should be designed to "recapture" for the City some of the financial benefits resulting from City 
sponsored programs or community investments. 
 
4.  Additional resources - The City will observe the following priorities in obtaining additional resources: 
 

a. Use existing resources efficiently - The City will use as efficiently as possible all existing resources. 
 

b. Collect existing revenues - The City will collect as efficiently as possible the resources to which it is already entitled. The city will minimize 
receivables and follow an aggressive policy of collecting receivables. 

 

66



 

 

c. Revenues are consistent with City goals - The City will seek new resources, consistent with the policies in this document and other City goals. 
 
5.  Consider total revenue mix - The City will review revenue raising proposals in light of its total revenue mix in order to encourage economic 
sustainability and keep the City competitive. 
 

a. City revenues impact - As part of the annual financial forecast or budget process, major revenue generating proposals will contain an evaluation of 
the impact on the community. 
 

b. Total community in review - The evaluation should be based on prior year circumstances and includes all local taxation and fees. 
 

c. Review each five years - At a minimum, such an evaluation shall be made at least once each five years. 
 
6.  Department responsibility - Department Directors will inform the City Manager of any revenue that varies from budget by 10% in any quarter.  
Department Directors will provide notice immediately and in the identified reports to the City Manager. 
 
7.  Use proven methods - The City will estimate its annual revenues by an objective, analytical process. 
 
8.  Use five year plans - The City will annually project revenues for the next five years.   
 
9.  Enterprise funds recover costs - The City will set fees, user charges and other revenues for each enterprise fund (Water, Sewer and Storm Drainage) at a 
level that supports the total direct and indirect cost of the activity including operating costs, system expansion, and major maintenance.  Indirect costs 
include the cost of annual replacement needs due to depreciation of capital assets.  Cost related to growth will be paid for by the growth. 
 

a. Water Fund rates consist of base, variable, payment in lieu (PIL), and tap fee revenues. The base rate is established each year based on the annual 
fixed costs to maintain the system. The variable rate is established each year based on the costs to operate the system, i.e. the expenses vary with 
the level of water treated. PIL revenue is reserved for water right acquisition. Tap fee revenue is reserved for system expansion. Interest income is 
allocated to the category based on cash balance. Please note that special attention must be given to funding required reserves as they increase. 

i. The water variable rate and tiers are established to encourage water conservation and the City Council will receive annual reporting on the 
specific number of customers who exceed tier 1 and tier 2. 

ii. Additionally the gallons consumed in tiers 2 and 3 should be identified and the corresponding revenue generated from this consumption will 
be considered “water conservation revenue”. 

 
b. The proceeding year’s revenue from both water conservation and major maintenance will be appropriated for expenditure once the amount is 

realized by the City Council. The City Manager will report to the City Council projects identified for use of these funds. 
 
10.  Legal requirements - The City will maintain compliance with legal revenue restrictions as identified by voters, for special revenue funds and other 
restricted revenues. 

67



 

 

 
V.  Operating Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
When the other Financial Policies fail to address a specific issue, general operating policies will be reviewed for direction.  In some cases these policies 
repeat what has already been stated in other areas, but that is only to emphasize the importance and value of that policy.  The City must contain its 
expenditures to current revenues, establish and adequately fund reserves; regularly monitor and report on budget performance, evaluate the fiscal impact 
of new proposals, operate as efficiently as possible, and constantly review City services for appropriateness and effectiveness.  
 
POLICIES 
The City shall follow these operating policies: 
1.  Current operating revenues to pay for current operating expenditures - Current operating revenues will exceed current operating expenditures.  Each 
City fund budget must identify ongoing resources that at least match expected ongoing annual requirements.  One-time cash transfers and ending balances 
in excess of reserves may be applied to reserves or to fund one-time expenditures; they will not be used to fund on-going programs.   
 
2.  Do not restrict revenues - The City will not normally earmark discretionary revenues for specific purposes. This will preserve the ability of the Council 
to determine the best use of available revenues to meet changing service requirements. 
 
3.  Reserves - The City will establish reserves for emergencies, unforeseen needs of a non-recurring nature, operating maintenance, equipment replacement 
and capital projects.  The nature of reserves for specific funds will be spelled out in the Statement of Purpose for each fund.  
 
4.  Financial controls - The Staff will maintain a system of financial monitoring and control.  The major components of this system include: 
 

a. Fiscal Impact Analysis: The Staff will perform a fiscal impact analysis of each significant administrative or legislative action of the City or affiliated 
agencies.  Where appropriate, the analysis will include the impact on the current budget and the LRP. 

 
 b. Financial Accounting System and Periodic Status Reports:  The Staff will prepare financial status reports on the revenues and expenditures to 

date and estimated year end balance as described in the Budget Policies. 
 
 c. Budget Controls:  The Finance Department will maintain a system of budgetary controls.  These controls will assist Department directors in 

identifying actual to budget variances.  
 
5.  Review for efficiency and effectiveness - The City will continually review the efficiency and effectiveness of its services to reduce costs and improve 
service quality.  This will include a review of all existing administrative procedures and software to eliminate exception based procedures, policies 
implemented to avoid compliance, special interest projects or programs that benefit less than the majority. 
 

68



 

 

a. The City Manager will review professional services/consulting agreements for efficiency and effectiveness. The evaluation may include staffing 
options, ongoing knowledge of City operations, and consideration for additional services.  

 
6.  Recover cost of providing services - City operations will be run on a basis devoted to increase efficiency of service delivery or recover the cost of 
providing the service by a user fee or charge. 
 
7.  Cash reserves - The City will maintain cash reserves in order to avoid borrowing for general operating purposes. 
 
8.  Year end accruals – Other than as required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the City will not increase accruals and non-cash 
enhancements to revenues in order to influence fund balances at year end. 
 
9.  Inventories – The City will maintain accurate inventories of capital assets, their condition, life span and cost.   
 
10.  Cash management systems - The Staff will develop, maintain and constantly seek to improve cash management systems which ensure the accurate and 
timely accounting, investment, and security of all cash assets.  All cash received by the City Departments will be deposited to the Finance Department 
daily. 
 
11.  Competition and the service provided - The City must review programs periodically in order to reduce needless competition with other public and 
private providers and to insure the most cost-effective and efficient provision of services.  The City will encourage competition with private providers by 
comparing the cost to provide services. 
 
12.  Citizen input - An effective and comprehensive periodic Citizen Service needs assessment will be conducted in order to ensure that City service 
priorities keep pace with the dynamic needs of the community.  The result of this needs assessment will be considered for approval by the City Council 
and may become an integral part of the budget and financial planning of the City. 
 
13.  Internal loans - Loans made between funds may be charged interest.  
 
14. Procurement Procedure - No order shall be placed by any City employee, contractor or representative that in any way encumbers or obligates the City 
until after that person has received an approved purchase order.  The City will not be held responsible for any order placed by any employee, contractor or 
representative if the vendor has not received an approved purchase order before delivery of services or goods.  The following policies will provide 
guidelines for all procurement: 
 

a. Local preference - When all other factors are the same the City encourages staff to purchase locally provided the cost is within 10% of other bids 
on items up to $25,000.  Factors may include quality of product, quality of service, delivery, maintenance, and other issues which may be relevant. 

 
b. Recycle - The City encourages recycling and environmental concerns.  When all other factors are the same the City encourages staff to purchase 

recycled products provided the cost is within 10% of other bids on items up to $25,000. 

69



 

 

 
c. Purchase order approvals - Requests for purchase orders will be approved in accordance with the predetermined spending limits as outlined by the 

City Manager.     
i. Exceptions - Purchases within preapproved spending authority may be made through the City purchasing card for items approved in the 

budget.  The cost of processing purchase orders, invoices and checks for payments make it practical that small purchases be exceptions to the 
procurement procedure. 

ii. Purchases for a single vendor which exceed the purchasing limits on an annual basis must be approved by the City Manager and reported to 
the City Council. 
 

d. Purchasing Limits – The following purchasing limits are established: 
 

Amount Approval 
$0 - $10,000 Department Director 
$10,000.01 - $25,000 Department Director + 

City Manager 
$25,000.01 - $50,000 Department Director + 

City Manager + 3 
written quotes 

$50,000.01 and up: 
Professional Services 

Department Director + 
City Manager + RFP + 
City Council 

$50,000.01 - 
$100,000: Supplies or 
Capital Projects 

Department Director + 
City Manager + 3 
written quotes 

$100,000.01 and up: 
Supplies or Capital 
Projects 

Department Director + 
City Manager + RFP + 
City Council 

 
e. Bids and Contracts -The City recognizes the need to use outside sources for providing Professional Services, constructing Capital Projects (vendors 

& contractors) and for providing services for day-to-day operations and maintenance.  The City requires staff to solicit bids for any purchase of 
goods over $100K and proposals for services over $50K per engagement or annually.  This requirement may be waived by the City Manager for 
ongoing service contracts where the past experience related directly to the City is a compelling reason to continue a service contract from year to 
year. Selection of vendors, contractors or consultants, may be based on past experience with the City, knowledge of the City and region, 
philosophy of the nature of the job, availability of time, quality of product, quality of service and material, maintenance, warranties, price and 
such other criteria as deemed appropriate for a particular public project.  Once a vendor has been chosen, the City Council shall consider 
approval of the contract. 

 

70



 

 

 When an invitation for bid (goods over $100,000) or request for proposal (services over $50,000) is required, a notice will be published in a local 
newspaper within 45 days and not less than 10 days from the bid deadline. The request shall include an adequate description of the scope of work 
to be completed, any specifics which may be required of the vendor, including the amount of any bid bond, all contractual terms, and conditions 
applicable to the public project. Bids shall be opened publicly at the time and place designated in the invitation for bids. The amount of each bid 
and such other relevant information as may be specified by rules, together with the name of each bidder, shall be entered on a record and open to 
public inspection. After the time of the award, all bids and requests for proposal documents shall be open to public inspection.  The City shall not 
be obligated to select the lowest bidder, but shall select based on the established criteria in the invitation to bid or request for proposal. Bidders 
may be disqualified for past failure to follow proper change order processes.  The City will use electronic means (i.e. internet, email, etc) to inform 
potential vendors and may use technology to improve transparency and purchasing efficiencies for the City. 

 
f. Emergencies - In the event of natural disasters, accidents or other emergencies where the health, safety or welfare of the community is at risk the 

procurement requirements may be waived by the City Manager.  The City Manager will notify the Council of any emergency immediately, 
identifying the nature of the emergency and any purchase which may be required. 

   
g. Travel – Consideration of the lowest cost to the City will be made when traveling for City business. When employees travel out of the County, 

they are required to use a City vehicle if available and practical.  Only if no fleet vehicles are available will the City reimburse employees for 
mileage at the approved IRS rate with prior Department Director approval.  Out-of-City per diem will be paid at the approved IRS reimbursement 
level.  Per Diem is reimbursement for all meals and incidentals, no additional reimbursements will be approved.  Lodging should be prepaid by 
City check or purchasing card when possible in order to avoid taxes.  Lodging reimbursements may include one “reasonable” phone call home for 
each night you are out of City. 
  

h. Meals in City - The City shall restrict the purchase of meals locally to the following items, unless specifically approved by the City Manager: 
a. Work related meetings with outside officials with Department Director or City Manager approval. 
b. Preparation for City-wide events on weekends (such as July 4th or Evans Fest). 
c. Manager and/or City Council members’ meetings with media, citizens, employees, Council and outside officials.  

 
i. Education and training - The City Council has approved in the Personnel Policies the desire to hire the best and most qualified staff available.  To 

maintain the quality of the staff over time, the City will fund adequate participation in professional organizations and training.  Recognizing the 
need for additional training, each Department Director will propose a budget which may include participation at the national level for 
Department Directors and professionals.  In addition to participation in national organizations, it may from time to time benefit the City to send 
employees to training out of the state.  The staff will attempt to identify regional training programs or local programs when possible.  The level of 
training and participation in organizations must be approved by Department Directors.  Department Director training will be approved by the 
City Manager and City Manager training will be approved by the Mayor.  All training must be included and funded in the annual budget. 
 

j. Education and training for Council and commissioners - The City is committed to professional and progressive leadership.  In order to maintain 
the City’s position as leaders in the community and region, it may be beneficial to provide training for the City Council and/or City sponsored 
Boards & Commissions regarding key management and or technical issues.  Travel for these members will be included in the annual budget. 

71



 

 

 
k. Computers, software, & peripheral purchases - All City-wide computer, software, & peripheral related purchases must be approved by the Systems 

Administrator with final approval from the City Manager. 
 
VI. Capital Planning & Budgeting Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) has a significant impact on the image of the City.  The following policies are designed to guarantee that current and 
future projects are maintained at a quality level and that capital projects do not restrict the City's ability to provide basic services.  The City must preserve 
its current physical assets and plan in an orderly manner for future capital investments, including the operating costs associated with these projects.  In 
addition to amenity improvements, the City must make the capital investment needed to support and enhance the delivery of basic services.  This 
commitment becomes even more important because the demands for basic services biases funding priorities toward the operating services (such as police 
officers and recreation programs) versus infrastructure (such as streets and buildings) which could be an issue in the future.  Capital expenditures for 
purposes of financial reporting, include buildings, land, major equipment and other items which have a value of over $5,000 and have a life greater than 
one year. Capital expenditures for purposes of budgeting, include buildings, land, major equipment and other items which have a value of over $100,000 
and have a life greater than one year. 
 
 
POLICIES 
The planning, funding and maintenance of all capital projects shall be based on the following policies: 
 
1. Bond rating - The City will maintain a strong bond rating that is consistent with other City goals.  The City will maintain good communications with 
bond rating agencies about its financial condition.  The City will follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus.   
 
2. Five-year capital plans - Each Department with capital expenditures will develop and maintain five-year capital plans.  This will include sources of 
funding and maintenance.   
 
3. Citizen involvement - The CIP development process will provide for the full participation of any citizen and or Committee appointed by City Council. 
 
4.  Details of plan - The City will prepare and update annually a City five-year CIP that identifies needs for capital replacement and additions.  The CIP 
lists all anticipated capital expenditures, total estimated cost, the year in which it will be started, the amount expected to be expended in each year, and the 
proposed method of financing these expenditures.  Methods of financing can include bonding, assessment districts, pay-as-you-go (e.g. taxes, current 
revenues, cash balances), or other. 
 
5.  Current capital budget - The City will prepare an annual Capital Budget which will include current year capital expenditures and sources of funds 
based on the current year of the Capital Improvement Plan.   
 

72



 

 

6. Include future maintenance - As part of the annual Capital Budget, the City will identify and include full costs of future maintenance needs and 
operating costs of new capital facilities and equipment prior to funding as part of the annual Capital Budget.  It is essential to recognize that many smaller 
projects can have a significant impact on the existing staff and maintenance levels when considering the total impact.  All capital projects will identify the 
maintenance requirements in terms of staffing (hours per week) and Supplies & Services. 
 
7. Identify project funding - The City staff will identify the estimated costs and funding sources for each capital project proposal before it is submitted to 
Council for consideration.  This will include capital construction as well as ongoing maintenance. 
 
8.  Asset Management Plan (AMP) - The City will develop an AMP that protects capital investment and minimizes future maintenance and replacement 
costs.  The City will maintain accurate information on the condition, life span use and replacement cost of their capital assets to assist in long term 
planning.  The AMP will also indicate future major repairs and their costs, utility costs and other operating costs. 
 

a. Equipment replacement - The City will estimate its equipment replacement (items over $5,000 with a life greater than one year). From this 
projection, a maintenance schedule will be developed and followed.   
 

b. Cash for equipment - Equipment replacement should be planned on a cash basis.  Equipment should be replaced on a useful life basis 
considering optimum trade-in value and maintenance costs.   

 
9. Planned funding - The budget will provide sufficient funding for adequate maintenance and scheduled replacement and enhancement of capital plant 
and equipment.  Whenever the AMP identifies there is a significant discrepancy between the need to maintain/modernize City infrastructure or facilities 
and the funds available for such improvements, the City staff will prepare and present to Council a strategy for meeting such needs.  The long range plans 
of the City will include all costs identified in the AMP. 
 
10. Major Maintenance - Although the annual operating budget should provide for adequate maintenance of capital, plant, and equipment, eventually a 
major expenditure will be required.  It is appropriate to consider these types of major expenditures when developing the capital improvement program. 
 
11. Capital priority - In general, the following guidelines will be used to identify capital priorities: safety, complete existing projects, maintenance of 
existing capital facilities, extensions of existing systems and new projects.  Maintenance should be given priority over acquisition of new facilities, unless a 
cost/benefit analysis indicates to the contrary.  State, Federal and local mandates or new service demands may require acquisition of new facilities or new 
construction even when maintenance needs are not fully met.  Unique opportunities may arise which should be considered as a priority particularly if 
there is community support for acquisition.  Maintenance of facilities should take priority over operating programs if deferring maintenance will result in 
greater costs to restore or replace neglected facilities. 
 
12.  Consistency with City policies and impact on community - The City will identify the ongoing costs and benefits that may be associated with each 
capital project to determine its consistency with other city policies and the impact on the community as a whole. 
 

73



 

 

13.  Alternative funding - Assessment district financing is appropriate for those areas of the City that are retroactively installing physical plant features 
which are normally required by subdivision standards at the time of development or which have been funded by another assessment district.  Such 
physical plant features include but not limited to, curb, gutters, sidewalks, street lights and sewers.  Assessment districts are also appropriate in cases where 
these types of physical plant features are being upgraded for the benefit of property owners in the area.  Unless otherwise directed by Council, assessment 
districts will include all costs associated with the project, including overhead and indirect costs, including but not limited to financing, and administrative 
costs.  The City will take actions to ensure that financial risk to the City is minimized. 
 
14. Long-term debt – is a liability that places a future contractual or other obligation against future revenues of the City.  For example, long-term debt 
includes liabilities arising from bonds, lease purchase agreements and installment purchase contracts. 
 

a. Use for capital - The City will confine long-term borrowing to capital improvements or projects that cannot be financed from current 
revenues. 

 
b. Life of debt not to exceed 75% of life of the project or acquisition - When the City finances capital projects by issuing bonds; it will pay back 

the bonds within a period not to exceed 75% of the expected useful life of the project.   
 

c. Debt restrictions - The City will not use long-term debt for current or annual operations. Debt that obligates future City Councils shall be 
approved consistent with City Charter and applicable State statutes. 

 
d. Legal debt limits - The City will review its legal debt limitation established by the Charter at least annually. Debt limits will be included in the 

statistics sections of the Financial Plan and Financial Report. 
 

e. Annual review - The City of Evans will conduct an annual review of its debt taking into consideration current market rates and future cash 
flows. 

 
VII. Investment Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this investment policy is to establish guidelines for the purchase and sale of investments for all funds of the City of Evans. 
 
Legality 
The investment program for the City of Evans shall operate in conformance with federal, state, and other legal requirements, including the Colorado 
Revised Statutes sections 11-10.5-101 et seq. and 24-75-601 et seq., as amended, and City of Evans, Colorado Home Rule Charter VIII.  
 
POLICIES 
This Investment Policy (the Policy) applies to the investment of all City of Evans (the City) funds, excluding the investment of employees' retirement 
funds. Proceeds from certain bond issues are covered by separate agreements.  

74



 

 

 
Pooling of Funds 
Except for cash in certain restricted and special funds, the City will consolidate cash and reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment 
earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration. Investment income will be allocated to the 
various funds based on their respective participation and in accordance with City of Evans Home Rule Charter VIII and generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP).  : 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
The primary objectives of investment activities, in priority order, shall be safety, liquidity, yield, and local considerations. 
 
1.  Safety –Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to 
mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk. 

a.  The City will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer, by: 
 Limiting investments to the types of securities listed in Section 8 of this Policy 
 Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with which the City will do business in accordance with 

Section 6, 
 Diversifying the investment portfolio to minimize the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or from any one individual 

issuer.  
 

b.  The City will minimize interest rate risk, the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest 
rates, by: 
i. Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to 

sell securities on the open market prior to maturity 
ii. Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools and limiting the 

average maturity of the portfolio in accordance with this policy 
 

2.  Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.  This is 
accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity).  
Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale 
markets (dynamic liquidity).  Alternatively, a portion of the portfolio may be placed in money market mutual funds or local government investment pools 
which offer same-day liquidity for short-term funds. 
 
3.  Yield - The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, 
taking into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and 
liquidity objectives described above.  The core of investments are limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to 
the risk being assumed.   
 

75



 

 

4.  Local Considerations - Where possible, funds may be invested for the betterment of the local economy or that of local entities within the State of 
Colorado.  Included is the Local Considerations Investment Program that allows the City to accept proposals from eligible institutions in order to reward 
local financial institutions that can document their commitments to private economic growth and local housing investment.  These respective institutions 
must be on the Public Deposit Protection Act list of qualified eligible financial institutions.  The Evans City Council recognizes that our Local 
Considerations Investment Program might diminish investment yields. 
 
5. Standards of Care   

a. Prudence -The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context 
of managing the overall portfolio.  The "prudent person" standard states that, "Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under 
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for 
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived. "Authorized City 
officials and employees acting in accordance with written procedures and this Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal 
responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely 
fashion and the liquidity and the sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this Policy. 
 

b. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest - Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could 
conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  
Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business.  They shall 
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio.  Employees and 
officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of 
the City. 

c. Delegation of Authority - Authority to manage the program derived from the City of Evans Home Rule Charter, Chapter VIII and granted to the 
City Treasurer who shall act in accordance with established written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the investment program 
consistent with this Policy.  Procedures should include references to safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, wire transfer 
agreements and collateral/depository agreements.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this 
Policy and the procedures established by the City Treasurer.  The City Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall 
establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials.   

 
6.  Authorized Broker/Dealers - To be eligible, a firm must meet at least one of the following criteria: 

1. be recognized as a Primary Dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or have a Primary Dealer within their holding company structure; 
2. report voluntarily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or 
3. qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15c-3 (Uniform Net Capital Rule). 

Broker/dealers will be selected by the City Treasurer on the basis of their expertise in public cash management and their ability to provide services for the 
City’s account. Approved broker/dealers and the firms they represent shall be licensed to do business in the State of Colorado and as such are subject to 
the provisions of the Colorado Revised Statutes, including but not limited to CRS 24-75-601. 
 

76



 

 

Each authorized broker/dealer shall be required to submit and annually update a City approved Broker/Dealer Information Request form which 
includes the firm's most recent financial statements.  The City’s Treasurer shall maintain each approved firm’s most recent Broker/Dealer 
Information Request form. In the event that an external investment advisor is not used in the process of recommending a particular transaction for 
the City’s portfolio, authorized broker/dealers shall attest in writing that they have received a copy of this policy.  
 
Financial Institutions and Depositories –  
As required by City of Evans Home Rule Charter Chapter VIII, Section 8.8, a list will be approved by the Evans City Council of financial 
institutions and depositories authorized to provide investment services. To be eligible, a bank shall qualify as an eligible public depository as defined 
in C.R.S 11-10.5-103. 
 
Minority and Community Financial Institutions - From time to time, the City Treasurer may choose to invest in instruments offered by minority and 
community financial institutions. In such situations, a waiver to certain parts of the criteria under Paragraph 1 may be granted. All terms and relationships 
will be fully disclosed prior to purchase and will be reported to the appropriate entity on a consistent basis and should be consistent with state or local law. 
These types of investment purchases should be approved by the Evans City Council in advance. 
 
7.  Safekeeping & Custody - The City Council shall select one or more banks to provide safekeeping and custodial services for the City.  A City 
approved Safekeeping Agreement shall be executed with each custodian bank prior to utilizing that bank's safekeeping services.  To be eligible for 
designation as the City's safekeeping and custodian bank, a financial institution shall qualify as a depository of public funds in the State of Colorado 
as defined in CRS 24-75-603 et seq.  
 
Custodian banks will be selected on the basis of their ability to provide services for the City's account and the competitive pricing of their safekeeping 
related services. 
 
The purchase and sale of securities and repurchase agreement transactions shall be settled on a delivery versus payment basis.  It is the intent of the 
City that all securities be perfected in the name of the City.  Sufficient evidence to title shall be consistent with modern investment, banking and 
commercial practices. 
 
All investment securities, except Certificates of Deposit, Money Market Funds, and Local Government Investment Pools, purchased by the City will 
be delivered by either book entry or physical delivery and will be held in third-party safekeeping by a City approved custodian bank, its correspondent 
bank or its Depository Trust Company (DTC) participant account. 
 
All Fed wireable book entry securities owned by the City shall be evidenced by a safekeeping receipt or a customer confirmation issued to the City by 
the custodian bank stating that the securities are held in the Federal Reserve system in a CUSTOMER ACCOUNT for the custodian bank which 
will name the City as "customer." 
 
All DTC eligible securities shall be held in the custodian bank’s Depository Trust Company (DTC) participant account and the custodian bank shall 
issue a safekeeping receipt evidencing that the securities are held for the city as “customer.” 

77



 

 

 
All non-book entry (physical delivery) securities shall be held by the custodian bank's correspondent bank and the custodian bank shall issue a 
safekeeping receipt to the City evidencing that the securities are held by the correspondent bank for the City as “customer.”  
 
8. Internal Controls - The City Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of 
the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse.  Details of the internal controls system shall be documented in an investment procedures manual and 
shall be reviewed and updated by the City Treasurer annually.  The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these 
objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) 
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.  
  The internal controls structure shall address the following points: 

 Control of collusion; 
 Separation of transaction authority from accounting and recordkeeping; 
 Custodial safekeeping; 
 Avoidance of physical delivery securities; 
 Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members; 
 Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers; and 
 Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party custodian. 

  Accordingly, the City Treasurer shall establish a process for an annual independent review of compliance with the Policy and its internal control 
procedures by an external auditor. 

 
9. Suitable & Authorized Investments  
Investment Types - The following investments will be permitted by this Policy and are defined by state and local law, where applicable: 

 U.S. Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds, and Treasury STRIPS with maturities not exceeding five years from the date of trade 
settlement; 

 U.S. government agencies with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement issued by the Government 
National Mortgage Association (GNMA).; 

 U.S. instrumentality obligations (debentures, discount notes, callable securities, step-up securities, and stripped principal or coupons) with 
maturities not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement issued by the following only:  Federal National Mortgage Association 
(FNMA), Federal Farm Credit Banks (FFCB), Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 
(FHLMC).  ; 

 Subordinated debt shall not be purchases.; 
 Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions, with maturities not exceeding five years, in FDIC insured state 

or nationally chartered banks or savings banks.  Certificates of Deposit exceeding the FDIC insured amount shall be collateralized in 
accordance with the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act;  

 Repurchase agreements with maturities of 180 days or less collateralized by U.S. Treasury Obligations and Federal Instrumentality Securities 
listed above with the maturity of the collateral not exceeding 10 years.  For the purpose of this section, the term collateral shall mean 

78



 

 

purchased securities under the terms of the City approved Master Repurchase Agreement.  The purchased securities shall have a minimum 
market value including accrued interest of 102 percent of the dollar value of the transaction.  Collateral shall be held in the City's custodian 
bank as safekeeping agent, and the market value of the collateral securities shall be marked-to-the-market daily. 
 

Repurchase Agreements shall be entered into only with dealers who have executed a City approved Master Repurchase Agreement with the 
City and who are recognized as Primary Dealers by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or have a Primary Dealer within their holding 
company structure.  Repurchase Agreement counterparties, if rated, shall have a short-term credit rating of at least A-1 or the equivalent and 
a long-term credit rating of at least A or the equivalent.  The Chief Financial Officer shall maintain a copy of the City's approved Master 
Repurchase Agreement along with a list of the broker/dealers who have an executed Master Repurchase Agreement with the City. 
 

 The City may utilize Tri-party Repurchase Agreements provided that the City is satisfied that it has a perfected interest in the securities used 
as collateral and that the City has a properly executed Tri-party Agreement with both the counterparty and custodian bank.Corporate bonds 
with a maturity not exceeding three years from the date of trade settlement, issued by any corporation or bank organized and operating within 
the United States.  The debt must be rated at least AA- or the equivalent by at least two NRSROs, and rated not less by any NRSRO that rates it.  
In addition, AAA rated FDIC guaranteed corporate bonds are herein authorized, within the aforementioned maturity requirements. 

 Money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 that  1) are "no-load" (i.e. no commission or fee shall be 
charged on purchases or sales of shares); 2) have a constant net asset value per share of $1.00; 3) limit assets of the fund to securities 
authorized by state statute; 4) have a maximum stated maturity and weighted average maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940; and 5) have a rating of AAAm or the equivalent. 

 Commercial Paper with maturities not exceeding 270 days from the date of trade settlement that is rated at least A-1 or the equivalent at the time 
of purchase by at least two NRSROs.  If the commercial paper issuer has senior debt outstanding, the senior debt must be rated by each service 
that publishes a rating on the issuer of at least A or the equivalent.  Furthermore, the issuer's commercial paper program's size shall exceed $200 
million.  Commercial paper may not exceed 20% of the Portfolio and no more than 5% may be invested with a single issuer. 

 Local government investment pools , authorized under CRS 24-75- 702, that 1) are "no-load" (i.e. no commission or fee shall be charged on 
purchases or sales of shares); 2) have a constant net asset value per share of $1.00; 3) limit assets of the fund to securities authorized by state 
statute; 4) have a maximum stated maturity and weighted average maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 
1940; and 5) have a rating of AAAm or the equivalent. 

 
Collateralization - Where allowed by the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) Section 11-10.5-101 et seq., full collateralization will be required 

on all demand deposit accounts, including checking accounts and non-negotiable certificates of deposit.   
 
10.  Investment Parameters  

a. Diversification - The investments may be diversified by: 
o limiting investments to avoid over concentration in securities from a specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury 

securities),  
o limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks, 

79



 

 

o investing in securities with varying maturities, and  
o continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local government investment pools (LGIPs) or 

money market fund to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.  
b. Maximum Maturities - To the extent possible, the City shall attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.  Unless 

matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of trade settlement in 
accordance with state statutes.  
 

  Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily 
available funds such as local government investment pools or money market funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing 
obligations. 

 
a. Competitive Bids - Each investment transaction shall be competitively transacted with authorized broker/dealers.  At least three broker/dealers 

shall be contacted for each transaction and their bid and offering prices shall be recorded. 
 

 If the City is offered a security for which there is no other readily available competitive offering, then the Treasurer will document quotations for 
comparable or alternative securities. 
 
11.  Policy Considerations - Any investment currently held that does not meet the guidelines of this Policy shall be exempted from the requirements of this 
Policy.  At maturity or liquidation, such monies shall be reinvested only as provided by this Policy. 
 
12. Approval of Investment Policy - The investment policy shall be formally approved and adopted by resolution of the governing body of the City of 
Evans.  Any future changes must be approved by the Evans City Council. 
 
13. Documentation to be maintained by the City Treasurer  

 Internal Controls Procedures Manual, 
 Listing of authorized personnel, 
 Relevant investment state statutes, 
 Listing of authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions/depositories, 
 Broker/Dealer Information form, 
 Credit studies for securities purchased and financial institutions used, 
 Safekeeping agreements, 
 Wire transfer agreements, 
 Sample investment reports,  
 GFOA Recommended Policies. 

 

80



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  October 2, 2012  
 
AGENDA NO.: 7.D  

 
 SUBJECT:  Preliminary Budget Revision – Community Development & Economic 

Development Departmental Assessment  
 
PRESENTED BY: Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The 2012 one-time list included an item related to the departmental assessment for Community 
Development and Economic Development. The need to conduct departmental assessments was 
identified through the Strategic Operational Planning (Strat Op) process in order to address the core 
issue of “organizational development”. The need to conduct the departmental assessments was also 
identified in the budgeting process as we move into the 2014 financial planning process.   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The budget estimate is $30,000 in order to conduct the assessment for both departments.  
 
The General Fund revenue source for this appropriation is excess 2012 State oil and gas severance 
revenue. This preliminary budget revision will not impact the budgeted ending fund balance as this 
revenue source has not been previously budgeted.   
________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary budget revision.  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 

“I move to approve the preliminary budget revision in the amount of $30,000 from the 
General Fund revenue related to the 2012 State oil and gas severance revenue.” 
 

 “I move to deny the preliminary budget revision.”   
 
  
  



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
 
DATE:    October 2, 2012 
 
AGENDA #:   7.E 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 26-2012, A Resolution Authorizing The 

Mayor’s Signature On A Cooperation Agreement Between 
City Of Evans, Colorado And the Evans Redevelopment 
Agency For Administrative Services 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Sheryl Trent, Community and Economic Development 

Director 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The City of Evans formed an Urban Renewal Authority (known as the Evans 
Redevelopment Agency) in 2009 for the purpose of redevelopment.  The ERA is a separate 
entity from the City of Evans and as such will have to fund personnel and other costs in a 
separate budget.  At this time, with no revenues forthcoming until further action is taken 
by the ERA, a cooperation agreement is necessary to conduct business. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This agreement is similar to the one between the City of Evans and the Fire District, 
and allows for the City to advance monies to the ERA for necessary costs until such 
time as the ERA can repay the City (this is a debt with no interest incurred by the ERA). 
 The agreement lists personnel and anticipated maximum time allocated to the ERA, 
which can change from year to year.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The agreement calls for a maximum contribution from the City of Evans to the Evans 
Redevelopment Agency of $100,000 for administrative and professional support, 
consultant support and services. This would be for personnel only, plus the overhead 
needed by the City to maintain those personnel such as benefits, office supplies, 
equipment, and other tools.  This amount would be funded from sales and property tax 
and might be advanced by the City and then repaid by the Agency when additional 
sales tax and property tax is realized in any Urban Renewal Area. 
 
The Agency will have a separate set of accounting and a separate audit, just as the Fire 
District does. 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
I recommend that the City Council approve Resolution No.26-2012 
 
RECOMMENDED CITY COUNCIL MOTION 
 
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 26-2012 as presented.” 
“I move to deny Resolution No. 26-2012.” 
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 26-2012 with the following changes ……. ” 
 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 26-2012 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF EVANS ADOPTING A COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF EVANS AND THE EVANS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Evans established the Urban Renewal Authority (known as 
the Evans Redevelopment Agency) in 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Evans Redevelopment Agency will have the first meeting on 
October 2, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for a cooperation agreement between the City of 
Evans and the Evans Redevelopment Agency in order to conduct business;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS: 
 
 Section 1.  The cooperation agreement between the City of Evans and the 
Evans Redevelopment Agency is hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute this agreement. 
 
 Section 2.  This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its passage.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED, THE 2nd DAY OF October, 2012. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________   By:___________________________ 

City Clerk     Lyle Achziger, Mayor 
 
  



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
AND 

EVANS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
FOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
  
 

THIS COOPERATION AGREEMENT (the "Cooperation Agreement") dated as of the 
2nd day of October, 2012, is entered into by and between the City of Evans, Colorado (the 
"City"), a home rule city and municipal corporation of the State of Colorado, and the Evans 
Redevelopment Agency (the "Agency") a body corporate duly organized and existing as an 
urban renewal Agency under the laws of the State of Colorado and the Charter of the City. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City is a home rule city and municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under and pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and the Charter of the 
City (the "Charter"); and 

WHEREAS, the Agency is a body corporate and has been duly organized, established 
and authorized by the City to transact business and exercise its powers as an urban renewal 
authority, all under and pursuant to the Charter and the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, section 
31-25-101, et seq., Colorado Revised Statutes (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 31-25-109 of the Act, the Agency has the power and 
Agency to issue or incur notes, interim certificates or receipts, temporary bonds, certificates of 
indebtedness, debentures, advances, or other obligations, including refunding obligations 
(collectively, the "Obligations"), for the purpose of financing the activities and operations 
authorized to be undertaken by the Agency with respect to the Projects in accordance with an 
adopted urban renewal plan and the Act, as approved by the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency currently has no employees and desires to utilize a portion of 
the time of certain employees of the City and the City is willing to allow such employees to 
devote a portion of their time to work on projects of the Agency, the cost for such employees to 
be reimbursed by the Agency to the City as an obligation of the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Act, Section 18, Article XIV of the Colorado Constitution authorizes the 
City and the Agency to enter into cooperative agreements, such as this Cooperation Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the following terms 
and conditions, Agency and the City hereby agree as follows: 

1.0 DEFINITIONS.  The terms defined in the recitals of this Cooperation Agreement shall 
have the meanings set forth therein.  In addition, the following terms shall have the 
meanings set forth below: 

 



 -2- 

1.1. "Collected Tax Revenues" means the Incremental Tax Revenues actually 
collected during the Fiscal Year and remitted to the Agency pursuant to Section 
2.1 of this Cooperation Agreement. 

1.2. "Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the City, which is January 1 of each 
calendar year through December 31 of the same calendar year. 

1.3. "Incremental Taxes" means, for each Fiscal Year, subsequent to the approval of 
the Reinvestment Plan, all Sales and Property Tax Revenues in excess of the Sales 
Tax Base Amount or the Property Tax Base Amount. 

1.4. "Obligations" shall have the meaning set forth in the third Whereas clause above. 

1.5. “Property Tax” means the property taxes levied by all jurisdictions on real and 
personal property pursuant to C.R.S. 39-1-101 et seq. 

1.6. “Property Tax Base Amount” means the property tax levied on all the assessed 
valuation certified for the tax year in which an urban renewal plan is adopted. 

1.7. “Property Tax Revenues” means the amount to be collected by the County 
Treasurer for each fiscal year from the levy of the Property Tax in any urban 
renewal area designated in an adopted urban renewal plan. 

1.8. "Sales Tax" means the sales tax levied by the City from time to time on the retail 
sale of taxable goods and services pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3.01 of 
the City's Municipal Code, as amended. 

1.9. "Sales Tax Base Amount" means the actual collection of Sales Tax Revenues 
during the twelve (12) month period ending on the date of adoption of any urban 
renewal plan. 

1.10. "Sales Tax Revenues" means the amount to be derived by the City in each Fiscal 
Year from the levy of the Sales Tax within any urban renewal area designated in 
an adopted urban renewal plan. 

2.0 COLLECTION AND REMITTANCE OF INCREMENTAL SALES TAX. 

2.1. The City agrees to cooperate with the Agency by collecting the Sales Tax 
Revenues and remitting promptly to the Agency the Pledged Sales Tax Revenues.  
The City makes no representation and provides no assurance that the Pledged 
Sales Tax Revenues will be sufficient to satisfy the Obligations of the Agency.  
The City's obligation under an urban renewal plan and this Cooperation 
Agreement to collect and remit to the Agency Incremental Sales Taxes is only for 
a twenty-five year period pursuant to the Act.  The Collected Tax Revenues shall 
be used by the Agency to pay Obligations incurred by the Agency in the planning, 
demolition, design, construction, financing or other activities related to the 
Projects in or for the benefit of Any Collected Tax Revenues not necessary or 
used to pay Obligations of the Agency during the then current Fiscal Year shall be 



 -3- 

returned to the City by the end of the first calendar quarter following such Fiscal 
Year. 

3.0 ADVANCE OF SALES AND PROPERTY TAX REVENUES. 

3.1. An amount not to exceed $100,000.00 of projected Sales and Property Tax 
Revenues from any urban renewal area may be advanced by the City to the 
Agency to be used by the Agency for costs incurred by the Agency for its staffing 
and consultants in connection with the projects in any urban renewal area 
designated in an adopted urban renewal plan.  Such amounts shall be paid directly 
to the Agency by the City and shall be disbursed by the Agency as it deems 
prudent and necessary for such purposes.  Any amounts so advanced by the City 
shall be a priority Obligation of the Agency.  Such amounts as are advanced, shall 
be payable to the City from future Sales and Property Tax Revenues  Due to the 
benefits gained by the City from the projects in any urban renewal area designated 
in an adopted urban renewal plan, no interest will be due on the amounts 
advanced to the Agency by the City. 

 
3.2. Notwithstanding anything in this Cooperation Agreement to the contrary, to the 

extent there are outstanding Obligations of the Agency payable to the City, and 
the Agency fails to appropriate funds to pay such Obligations, the City may retain 
Incremental Sales Taxes to reimburse the City for such outstanding Obligations of 
the Agency rather than remitting such Incremental Sales Taxes to the Agency as 
provided in Section 2.1. 

 

4.0 USE OF CITY EMPLOYEES. 
 

4.1. The City hereby authorizes the Agency to utilize the services of certain specified 
City employees to assist the Agency in work related to urban renewal projects in 
the City.  The City hereby assigns the employees listed in Exhibit A to perform 
such services for the percentage of their time specified in Exhibit A, which 
percentage shall be calculated on an annual basis.  The specific employees and the 
amount of time devoted to the projects may be modified from time to time by the 
City Manager of the City and the Executive Director of the Agency upon written 
notice of such modification to the City and the Agency.  The Agency shall 
reimburse the City for the applicable percentage of each such employees' wages 
or salary and benefits.  The use of such employees by the Agency and the 
proportionate cost of their services shall be deemed an advance by the City and an 
obligation of the Agency which shall be paid each year by the Agency to the City.  
If the Agency fails to reimburse the City on an annual basis for the cost of the 
services of such employees, the City may retain incremental sales tax revenues to 
pay such costs. 

 
4.2. The City shall retain the right to establish the employees' wages or salary and 

benefits, and the right to discharge, reassign, or hire employees to perform the 
services required by the Agency.  Except for the percentage of time devoted to the 



 -4- 

Agency activities which shall be under the direction or control of the Executive 
Director of the Agency, the City Manager retains the right to direct and control 
the employees.  The City, as the employer, has the responsibility for payment of 
salary or wages to the employee, and for reporting, withholding, and paying any 
applicable taxes with respect to the employees' wages or salary and payment of 
City sponsored employee benefit plans and payment of unemployment 
compensation insurance as may be required.  The City also retains the right to 
provide for the welfare and benefit of employees through such programs as 
professional training.  The Agency shall not have any responsibility for the 
payment or reporting of remuneration paid to the City's employees, all of such 
responsibilities being the obligation of the City.  The City intends to retain the 
right to maintain the employment relationship between the City and its employees 
on a long term, and not a temporary basis.  The employees of the City listed in 
Exhibit A know of and consent to co-employment by the City and the Agency.   

 
4.3. In the event of any employment related issues with employees assigned to work 

with the Agency, the Executive Director of the Agency shall report such concerns 
or issues promptly to the City Manager of the City who shall be responsible for 
addressing such concerns.  The decision of the City Manager relating to such 
employee shall be final, the sole recourse of the Agency being the right to 
terminate this Cooperation Agreement as provided in Section 2.3. 

 
5.0 MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

5.1. Governing Law.  This Cooperation Agreement shall be governed by, and 
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Colorado and shall be 
subject to the limitations, if any, that are applicable under the Charter or 
ordinances of the City. 

5.2. Notices.  All notices and other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently 
given and shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed by first class mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

  If to the City: 

   City of Evans, Colorado 
   100 37th Street 
   Evans, Colorado 80620 
    
  If to the Agency: 
    

Evans Redevelopment Agency 
100 37th Street 
Evans, Colorado 80620 

    



 -5- 

The City or the Agency may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or 
different addresses to which subsequent notices or other communications shall be 
sent. 

5.3. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party; provided, however, that there are no outstanding 
amounts payable by the Agency to the City unless satisfactory arrangements have 
been made, in the sole discretion of the City, for the payment of such amounts. 

5.4. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Cooperation Agreement, other 
than the requirement of the Agency to reimburse the City for obligations incurred 
by the Agency hereunder, shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision hereof. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Cooperation Agreement to 
be duly executed and delivered by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 
 
 
       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:       By:       
 Aden Hogan, City Clerk Lyle Acziger, Mayor 
 
 
 



 -6- 

 
 
 EVANS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:       By:       
 Sheryl Trent Lyle Achziger, Chair 
 Secretary/Executive Director 
 



EXHIBIT A 
TO 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
FOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
 
 
Employee       Allocation of Time to the Agency 
 
Director of Finance No more than 10% 
Director of Community and Economic Development No more than 50% 
City Manager No more than 5% 
Public Works Director No more than 5% 
Administrative Assistant No more than 30% 
City Clerk No more than 10% 


	Calendar
	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Staff Report - Approval of Minutes
	Minutes 9-18-2012
	EEDAC Staff Report
	Staff Report  - 2013 Fee Schedule
	Resolution No. 27-2012 Fees
	2013 Fee Schedule -FINAL 9.26.12

	NEW BUSINESS
	staff report - paradise billiards and restaurant
	findings letter - Paradise Billiards and Restaurant
	Paradise Billiards and Restaurant Packet_20120925132039
	One-Mile Radius Map - 818 31st Street, Unit L

	staff report - El Borrego De Oro
	Findings Letter - El Borrego De Oro
	El Borrego De Oro LLC PACKET
	El Borrego De Oro Radius Map

	Staff Report-- 2013 Budget
	Resolution No. 28-2012 - 2013 budget
	Ordinance No. 542-12 - 2013 Budget
	Budget Book Content - 9.26.12 FINAL

	Staff Report --Prelim Budget Revision CD&ED Department Assessment
	Staff Report - Cooperative Agreement
	Resolution No. 26-2012 - Cooperation Agreement
	Evans Cooperation Agmt


	REPORTS
	City Manager
	10-02-12

	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT



